Public Document Pack

To:

Members of the County Council

Date:

16 February 2022

Direct Dial:

01824706141

e-mail:

democratic@denbighshire.gov.uk

Dear Councillor
You are invited to attend a meeting of the COUNTY COUNCIL to be held at 10.00 am on
TUESDAY, 22 FEBRUARY 2022 VIA VIDEO CONFERENCE.
Yours sincerely

G Williams
Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services

AGENDA
PART 1 - THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE INVITED TO ATTEND THIS PART OF
THE MEETING
1

APOLOGIES

PRESENTATION OF SILVER ERS AWARD
2

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Pages 5 - 6)
Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business
identified to be considered at this meeting.

3

URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR
Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local
Government Act, 1972.

4

MINUTES (Pages 7 - 22)
To receive the minutes of the meeting of County Council held on 25 January
2022 (copy attached).

5

NORTH WALES POPULATION NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2022 (Pages 23 44)
To consider a report by the Interim Head of Service, Business Support
Services (copy attached).

6

CLIMATE AND ECOLOGICAL CHANGE STRATEGY - UPDATE ON YEAR
1 DELIVERY (Pages 45 - 92)
To consider a report by the Climate Change Programme Manager (copy
attached).

7

COUNCIL TAX 22/23 AND ASSOCIATED MATTERS (Pages 93 - 108)
To consider a report by the Head of Finance and Property (copy attached).

8

CAPITAL PLAN 2021/22 - 2024/25 AND RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE
STRATEGIC INVESTMENT GROUP (Pages 109 - 196)
To consider a report by the Head of Finance and Property (copy attached).

9

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT (TMSS) 2022/23
AND PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2022/23 TO 2024/25 (APPENDIX 1)
(Pages 197 - 226)
To consider a report by the Head of Finance and Property (copy attached).

10

ROLE OF DIVERSITY CHAMPION (Pages 227 - 232)
To consider a report by the Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services
(copy attached).

11

NOTICE OF MOTION (Pages 233 - 234)
Notice of Motion put forward by Councillor Brian Jones for consideration by
Full Council (copy attached).

12

NOTICE OF MOTION (Pages 235 - 236)
Notice of Motion put forward by Councillor Ellie Chard for consideration by
Full Council (copy attached)

13

COUNTY COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 237 - 240)
To consider the Council’s forward work programme (copy attached).

MEMBERSHIP
Councillors
Councillor Alan James (Chair)
Brian Blakeley
Joan Butterfield
Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones
Ellie Chard
Ann Davies
Gareth Davies
Meirick Davies
Gwyneth Ellis
Hugh Evans
Peter Evans
Bobby Feeley
Rachel Flynn
Tony Flynn
Huw Hilditch-Roberts
Martyn Holland
Alan Hughes
Hugh Irving
Brian Jones
Pat Jones
Tina Jones
Gwyneth Kensler
Geraint Lloyd-Williams
Richard Mainon

COPIES TO:

Press and Libraries
Town and Community Councils

Councillor Christine Marston (ViceChair)
Barry Mellor
Melvyn Mile
Bob Murray
Merfyn Parry
Paul Penlington
Pete Prendergast
Arwel Roberts
Anton Sampson
Peter Scott
Glenn Swingler
Andrew Thomas
Rhys Thomas
Tony Thomas
Julian Thompson-Hill
Graham Timms
Joe Welch
Cheryl Williams
David Williams
Eryl Williams
Huw Williams
Emrys Wynne
Mark Young

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000
Code of Conduct for Members

DISCLOSURE AND REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS

I, (name)

a *member/co-opted member of

Denbighshire County Council

(*please delete as appropriate)

CONFIRM that I have declared a *personal / personal and prejudicial
interest not previously declared in accordance with the provisions of Part
III of the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members, in respect of the
following:(*please delete as appropriate)

Date of Disclosure:

Committee (please specify):

Agenda Item No.

Subject Matter:

Nature of Interest:
(See the note below)*

Signed

Date
*Note: Please provide sufficient detail e.g. ‘I am the owner of land adjacent to the application for planning permission
made by Mr Jones', or 'My husband / wife is an employee of the company which has made an application for financial
assistance’.

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
COUNTY COUNCIL
Minutes of a meeting of the County Council held in via Video Conference on Tuesday, 25
January 2022 at 10.00 am.
PRESENT
Councillors Brian Blakeley, Joan Butterfield, Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones, Ellie Chard,
Gareth Davies, Meirick Davies, Gwyneth Ellis, Hugh Evans, Bobby Feeley, Rachel Flynn,
Tony Flynn,
Huw Hilditch-Roberts,
Martyn Holland,
Alan Hughes,
Hugh Irving,
Alan James
(Chair),
Brian Jones,
Pat Jones,
Tina Jones,
Gwyneth Kensler,
Geraint Lloyd-Williams, Richard Mainon, Christine Marston (Vice-Chair), Barry Mellor,
Melvyn Mile,
Bob Murray,
Merfyn Parry,
Paul Penlington,
Pete Prendergast,
Arwel Roberts, Anton Sampson, Peter Scott, Glenn Swingler, Andrew Thomas,
Rhys Thomas, Tony Thomas, Julian Thompson-Hill, Graham Timms, Cheryl Williams,
Eryl Williams, Huw Williams and Mark Young
ALSO PRESENT
Chief Executive (GB); Corporate Director: Communities (NS); Head of Legal, HR and
Democratic Services (GW); Head of Finance and Property/Section 151 Officer (SG);
Chief Accountant (RWE), Zoom Host (RTJ) and Committee Administrator (SLW)

1

APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ann Davies, Joe Welch,
David Williams and Emrys Wynne
At this juncture, the Chair, Councillor Alan James paid tribute to ex Councillor, Lloyd
Williams who had recently passed away. Councillor James mentioned Councillor
Williams’ dedication to the council and his hard work. Silent reflection was held in
respect.
Councillor Gwyneth Kensler also paid a tribute to Nancy Fletcher Williams who had
passed away on 3 January 2022 who was a former Councillor who represented
Rhyl.

2

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillors Hugh Irving and Tony Flynn declared a personal interest in Agenda
Item 8 as they are Governors at Prestayn High School
Councillor Rachel Flynn declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 7 as she
occasional works at Prestatyn High School

Page 7

3

URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR
No urgent matters.

Question put to Full Council by Cllr Rhys Thomas
“The UK Government announced in December that they were going to relax
immigration rules for overseas care workers. The Department of Health and Social
Care then announced that these measures would come into effect early next year
and be in place for 12 months.
We are all aware of the critical shortage of care workers in Denbighshire so is the
Lead Member aware of these welcome changes and have they come into effect
locally”?
Response by Lead Member Cllr Bobby Feeley:
We are aware of these welcome changes. Locally, here in Denbighshire, we are
also aware of the new ruling and are supporting providers who are keen to
maximise any opportunities to recruit care workers in line with the UK Government’s
relaxation of the immigration rules. It was, indeed, announced in December that
care workers, care assistants and home care workers will be eligible for the health
and care visa on a 12 month period. This will mean that we will be able to recruit
additional care workers to boost the adult social care workforce which should make
it quicker and easier for social care employers to recruit eligible workers to fill the
gaps.
The corona virus pandemic has highlighted a range of staff shortages in the social
care sector placing pressures on the existing workforce despite the incredible and
tireless efforts of social care staff. Although I am quite sure my letter to the Prime
Minister sent on your behalf helped it a bit, it has to said, the changes to the
legislation also followed on from a recommendation from Migration Advisory
Committee to make care workers and home carers eligible for the Health and Care
visa and to add the occupation to the skilled workers occupation list. At the time,
the response from UK Government which I shared with you all was rather
disappointing but looks as if a short time later we got the result we wanted. This,
obviously, won’t solve the problem overnight but it will help and for that I am very
grateful.

Question put to Full Council by Cllr Graham Timms
“Could you please give an update to the council on the problems relating to the
provision of social care in the Dee Valley and across Denbighshire?”
Response by Lead Member Cllr Bobby Feeley:
“We are still experiencing challenges with the provision of social care across
Denbighshire. However, the unmet demand has reduced in the last month by 138
hrs. The Contracts and Commissioning Team are in discussions with Wrexham

Page 8

around a sub-regional rural approach for the south of the county which has been
problematic.
A range of measures and initiatives have been agreed and monitored by a new
Denbighshire County Council Social Care Recruitment and Retention Group
Chaired by Nicola Stubbins, the Corporate Director for Communities. This will
include looking at pay rates for all roles across adult and children social care and
promoting our benefits. Additional dedicated HR Resource has been put in place to
support social care recruitment and retention. We have accessed additional covid
recovery funding to support recruitment to care for both external care providers and
our internal services. Providers are also taking initiatives on recruitment and
retention which includes such incentives as;
 Financial support towards driving lessons for new applicants
 Funding to purchase bikes for non-driving applicants
 A variety of different golden hello and employment referral schemes
 Boosted advertising on social media
 Online application platform
 Supporting providers to apply for oversees workers permits via Home Office
initiatives
The Contracts Officers are currently looking at fee setting for care providers for
2022/23. Denbighshire County Council will be actively advocating that all carers
are paid the Real Living Wage, the fees awarded to providers will ensure that this is
possible. We continue to negotiate with new providers to provide for people’s
social care needs and we have one new provider already who will begin within the
next few weeks that is subject to necessary checks. In addition, we are working
with health to access providers who they have existing business relationships with.
I am sure you will understand that although things are improving, this problem
actually pre-dates the pandemic so improvements coming forward now will take
time to make a real difference.
Both the UK Government and the Welsh Government are certainly taking initiatives
and putting more money into social care but, it is still not enough, and even when
factoring in paying the Real Living Wage, funding of social care most certainly does
not compare with NHS. We are, however, making progress and we will keep
trying.”
Councillor Graham Timms submitted a supplemental question:
“I recognise it is a huge problem in Denbighshire and much wider as well. It is a
particular problem in the Dee Valley which really desperately needs to be
addressed. It seems it has been caused by the cherry picking of care providers.
They choose the best packages and then suddenly when they think it does not suit
them they drop these people with no help whatsoever and leave a huge hole. I am
pleased to hear about the new initiatives but, obviously, they will take time to come
through and I wonder if it is time to start thinking about moving back to providing
social care through the county council rather than having masses of other
companies and contracts. We can then ensure we look after our staff and they are
looking after our population.”

Page 9

Response from the Lead Member, Councillor Bobby Feeley:
“Denbighshire County Council are doing that also.
Recruitment days and
recruitment drives have been held over the last year or so. It is equally as difficult
for us within social care in-house to recruit as it is for the outside companies.”
Additional response from Nicola Stubbins, Corporate Director: Communities:
“Regarding the comment on “cherry picking” which is very concerning, if Councillor
Timms has evidence of this, please let me know and we will talk to the providers.
The majority, if not all, of our social care providers are dedicated to that work and
the role they undertake, which is a crucial role.
It has been a really challenging time and, as the Lead Member mentioned, these
issues pre-date the pandemic. As things have got more difficult and challenging,
and staffing has become an issue, agencies have had no choice but to hand back
packages of care and I know, having had discussions with them, that had not been
something that they have wanted to do. They have relationships with those
individuals that have been built up, sometimes over many years. It tends to be the
most complex cases as they are most labour intensive and more difficult to provide
that level of staffing for. I have not seen evidence that providers are cherry picking
in a negative context but, clearly their staffing situation means that those more
complex and challenging cases are more difficult for them to resource efficient
staffing to meet those individual needs. If Councillor Timms or any Member has
any evidence to the contrary, please raise that directly with me and I will look into
those details and work with our providers to ensure that that is something that is not
tolerated.”
4

MINUTES
The minutes of Full Council held on 7 December 2021 were submitted.
Accuracy
Item 9 – Notice of Motion – Councillor Gwyneth Kensler stated that it should read
“Councillor Graham Timms proposed that the question be put”.
Matters Arising
Cllr Arwel Roberts – Petition re: Abergele Road, Rhuddlan. A response had been
received but not the one I wanted. I hope they will reconsider the situation because
people with disabilities live along that road and they have to travel far just to cross
that road. We must remember people less fortunate than ourselves who are in
wheelchairs so, hopefully, the County Council and Officers will look at the matter
again.
RESOLVED that, subject to the above, the minutes of Full Council held on 7
December 2021 be confirmed as a correct record.

Page 10

5

BUDGET 2022/23 - FINAL PROPOSALS
The Lead Member for Finance, Performance and Strategic Assets, Councillor Julian
Thompson-Hill, introduced the Budget 2022/23 – Final Proposals report (previously
circulated).
The Council was legally required to set a balanced and deliverable budget before
the start of each financial year and to set the resulting level of Council Tax to allow
bills to be sent to residents.
The Draft Local Government Settlement for 2022/23 had been received by the
council on 21 December 2021 and resulted in a positive settlement of 9.2%,
compared to the Welsh average of 9.4%. The Final Settlement was expected on 1
March but the Welsh Government (WG) had indicated that there should be very few
changes.
Within the announced figure the WG advised that there were a number of new
responsibilities, not all of which had clear funding consequentials within the data.
The expectations required to fund included the following:
 All pay increases for both teaching and non-teaching posts were included
within the RSG;
 The responsibility to pay both in-house social care and the private sector
social care the Real Living Wage;
 The core operational costs in connection with the new Corporate Joint
Committee; and
 Mitigation for the fact that the Covid Hardship Fund would cease as from the
end of the existing financial year.
The WG draft settlement included indicative average settlement increases of 3.5%
for 2023/24 and 2.4% for 2024/25 (estimated DCC figures would be 3.3% and
2.2%). Although this was welcome from a planning perspective, it did indicate that
difficult decisions would be required over the coming years.
As part of the settlement there were “transfers in” of £0.275m which had been
passported to the relevant service areas as in previous years:
 Gate Fees for Regional Waste Recycling £0.109m
 Social Care Workforce Grant £0.166m
The final proposals to balance the 2022/23 budget were shown in the Medium Term
Financial Plan (MTFP) in Appendix 1.
The pressures identified amounted to £17.628m. A draft settlement of around 11%
would have been required in order to fund all the pressures. The net +9.2%
settlement generated £15.005m additional revenue leaving a funding gap of
£2.623m. The following items were included in the proposals in order to bridge the
gap:
 Fees and Charges Income Budgets had been inflated in line with agreed
Fees and Charges policy which increased external income by £0.120m;

Page 11





Operational efficiencies amounted to £0.634m had been identified which
were within Head Service delegated responsibility in consultation with Lead
Members (shown in Appendix 2 of the report for summary by category);
No savings had been requested from Community Support Services or
Schools;
It was recommended that the Council Tax increased by 2.95% which, along
with minor changes to the Council Tax Base, would generate £1.869m
additional revenue. This compared to the previous year’s increase of 3.8%
and 4.3% the year prior to that.

The Section 151 Officer confirmed that work had taken place with other Local
Authorities in Wales for a joint approach and the WLGA in relation to allocation for
pay and the Real Living Wage in Social Care settings. The Section 151 Officer
stated this to assure members regarding the figures within the report.
Councillor Paul Penlington expressed concern if council tax were to be raised by
2.95% and raised the point that approximately £14m per year was to service loans
for council projects. Councillor Penlington also raised horizon scanning for capital
works and enquired as to what were the capital works, what would be the cost of
the works and would there be further debts due to the works.
The Lead Member for Finance, Performance and Strategic Assets, responded by
confirming that 2.95% rise in council tax was a realistic figure that could be
delivered and could deliver the level of services which was expected by
Denbighshire residents. There was a significant figure which was within the budget
for servicing historical capital expenditure. That was for a whole range of things for
schools, flood policies etc. carried out by the council and some of those go back
some considerable time as they were usually paid over a 25 year period.
In
construction projects, occasionally they go over the time stated and above budget
but everything was done at all times to minimise the impact in terms of that.
In terms of horizon scanning, at the July Budget Workshop the Section 151 Officer
and the Lead Member for Finance, in terms of capital, Services were asked what
they thought they would need during the next 5-10 years. The list came to
approximately £180m which Denbighshire could not meet but to give an idea of the
scale of what would be needed in the future. Each individual scheme would need a
Business Case and go through the internal processes prior to being included in the
Capital Plan. Some of those schemes would require an element of funding with
some budget allocated to meeting that.
Councillor Glenn Swingler raised the fact that the cost of living was the highest it
had been for over 30 years. The retail and price index stood at 7.5%. Gas and
Electricity prices were soaring and expected to rise by another 50%. Food prices
were soaring, and higher National Insurance payments to be introduced. The
money from the Welsh Government to the Council was higher than expected which
was welcome. However, Denbighshire County Council had a budget in excess of
£200m. As the rising costs would force even more Denbighshire individuals to fall
into poverty, lose their homes, require free school meals, access more health care,
family breakdowns etc., that would ultimately cost the council a lot more money.

Page 12

At this juncture Councillor Glenn Swingler PROPOSED for 2022/2023 Denbighshire
County Council not to increase Council Tax. This was proposed due to the
hardship people of Denbighshire were going through currently as the rise in the cost
of living would cause a lot of people financial difficulties.
Councillor Gwyneth Ellis SECONDED the proposal put forward by Councillor
Swingler for a 0% rise in Council Tax.
The Lead Member for Finance, Councillor Thompson-Hill responded to Councillor
Swingler clarifying 2.95% increase in council tax provided £1.723m of income.
There would need to be plans from Councillor Swingler as to which of the £17m of
pressures would not be met or which services would have £1.723m of cuts.
The Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services, Gary Williams informed members
they would need to debate the amendment proposed by Councillor Swingler.
Following the debate, a vote would take place on the amendment and would then
go back to the substantive recommendations within the report.
Councillor Swingler again expressed concern regarding the financial pressures
being placed upon the working people of Denbighshire and reiterated that for one
year Denbighshire County Council should not make any increase in the council tax.
Both the Lead Member for Finance and the Section 151 Officer expressed concern
as there would be a gap in the budget if the council tax were not to be increased. It
was stated that a balanced budget was required and the proposal would not
constitute a balanced budget. Councillor Swingler would need to indicate which
pressures would not be funded and in which areas there would be service cuts to
accommodate the amount of income lost. It was also confirmed by officers that
discussions would need to take place with services regarding potential savings.
Time would be an issue as a balanced budget was required before the end of the
financial year and this would cause problems for all services within the county.
Councillor Gwyneth Ellis stated that the Wellbeing Impact Assessment should take
into consideration the loss of income and increase in the cost of living as this would
have a negative impact on people’s health and mental wellbeing within the county.
In this regard she questioned why the impact would be neutral.
The Section 151 Officer, Steve Gadd responded that assessments were always
difficult because the primary reason for the assessment of neutral impact whilst
recognising that any increase in council tax would have an impact on individual
budgets. In Wales, there was the Council Tax Reduction Scheme which meant that
the most vulnerable people and those on benefits did not pay the council tax so that
had to be balanced with the actual provision of services delivered for everyone in
Denbighshire.
In England, for example, the Council Tax Reduction Scheme did
not exist, but as it did in Wales, it offered protection to those who would struggle to
pay. It was a difficult process to do the wellbeing impact assessment on a
particular thing that helped fund every single service in the council. Without council
tax, schools would not be funded, would not be able to fund social care, and would

Page 13

not be able to fund every service in the council. It was a very difficult process but
both sides are included in the Wellbeing Impact Assessment by Officers.
Councillor Gwyneth Ellis stated that she appreciated doing the wellbeing impact
assessment was difficult but under healthier Denbighshire people’s emotional and
mental wellbeing should be taken into consideration. The rise in council tax was
going to have an impact on people’s emotional and mental wellbeing and Councillor
Ellis thought, in her opinion, it was wrong it would not be considered in the report.
fThe Section 151 Officer stated If the vote on the amendment were carried as there
was not a set of proposals which could be carried during the meeting, hence there
would not be a balanced budget. If one part of the budget were to be removed the
budget proposals would not be valid. He also stated if the amendment were
granted, members would not be able to vote on the budget as it would not be a
balanced budget.
The Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services clarified that whilst a vote could
be taken on the amendment and if carried would change the recommendation,
consideration would have to then be given to the recommendation as passed. This
was due to the fact that there were no suggestions being put forward to fund the
gap that the amendment would have caused. Members had a legal responsibility to
set a balanced budget which would not be in place if the amendment were to be
passed.
The Chief Executive, Graham Boase stated, in his opinion, a rise of 2.95% was a
reasonable level of council tax. The overall budget had to be taken together as it
was difficult to isolate certain parts of the budget. A balanced budget required a
rise of 2.95% in council tax.
Councillor Graham Timms raised a point of order to propose the question of the
amendment be put to the vote. Seconded by Councillor Andrew Thomas.
The Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services clarified the amendment proposed
was to amend the recommendation in the report so that recommendation 3.3 would
read “that Council approves a 0% rise on the average Council Tax”.
Councillor Paul Penlington requested a recorded vote.
The Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services confirmed that 7 members would
be required to support the request for the recorded vote.
Councillors Paul Penlington, Gwyneth Ellis, Gwyneth Kensler, Rhys Thomas, Alan
Hughes, Arwel Roberts and Glenn Swingler supported the recorded vote for the
amendment proposed by Councillor Glenn Swingler.
At this juncture, Cllr Meirick Lloyd Davies confirmed he would abstain from the vote
as he had missed a majority of the discussion.

Page 14

A recorded vote took place as follows:
FOR – Councillors Gwyneth Ellis, Alan Hughes, Gwyneth Kensler, Paul Penlington,
Arwel Roberts, Glenn Swingler, Rhys Thomas
AGAINST – Councillors Alan James, Brian Blakeley, Joan Butterfield, Jeanette
Chamberlain-Jones, Ellie Chard, Gareth Davies, Hugh Evans, Bobby Feeley,
Rachel Flynn, Tony Flynn, Huw Hilditch-Roberts, Martyn Holland, Hugh Irving,
Brian Jones, Pat Jones, Geraint Lloyd Williams, Richard Mainon, Christine Marston,
Barry Mellor, Melvyn Mile, Bob Murray, Merfyn Parry, Pete Prendergast, Anton
Sampson, Peter Scott, Andrew Thomas, Tony Thomas, Julian Thompson-Hill,
Graham Timms, Cheryl Williams, Eryl Williams, Huw Williams and Mark Young
ABSTAIN – Councillor Meirick Lloyd Davies
FOR – 7
ABSTAIN – 1
AGAINST – 33
Therefore, the amendment failed and debate went back to the original
recommendations as set out in the report.
Councillor Graham Timms stated that the settlement received would make a
difference to the people of Denbighshire. In 2017 Councillor Timms had raised the
issue of paying the Real Living Wage to all Denbighshire workers. He confirmed
that the Welsh Government paid the Real Living Wage, as did the NHS in Wales.
14 councils also paid the Real Living Wage to their workers. Denbighshire had a
responsibility to pay the Real Living Wage. Within the forward work programme the
Real Living Wage had been put for consideration by the next Council.
Denbighshire should move forward with paying the Real Living Wage and he urged
the Lead Member for Finance to come back to Full Council with proposals how this
could be introduced.
Councillor Joan Butterfield supported Councillor Timms for the payment of Real
Living Wage to all Denbighshire Workers.
The Lead Member for Finance, Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill stated it was
beneficial to have a three year budget settlement for planning ahead.
Regarding the Real Living Wage, this had not been progressed as the national pay
award had not been agreed and was not able to bring a report forward without the
confirmation of the pay award. On the implications on what was being budgeted
for, it was likely that all Denbighshire staff would then be covered by the Real Living
Wage element.
Councillor Meirick Ll Davies stated that on page 18 of the Welsh pack at item no. 5,
it read “that the Cabinet confirms it has read….”, it should read “that the Council
confirms it has read ….”

Page 15

The Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services apologised for the error and it was
actually correct in the English papers.
In terms of the Real Living Wage, all Council staff were paid the Real Living Wage
at the time of the last pay deal. The pay deal that was to take effect on the 1 April
2021 had still not been agreed nationally between the employers and the trade
unions. The final offer that had been made by the employers would have meant
that all of Denbighshire staff would be continued to be paid the Real Living Wage.
Some of the trade unions had balloted in respect of industrial action, one trade
union ballot did not meet the legal threshold in terms of turn out. Another trade
union was currently balloting and confirmation was awaited from the National Joint
Council of Employers and Trade Unions whether negotiations would be finalised.
The deal that was offered would have meant that all Denbighshire staff would
continue to be paid the Real Living Wage.
Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill proposed the approval of the proposals for
members to approve the Budget 2022/2023 – Final Proposals, seconded by
Councillor Christine Marston.
A zoom poll vote took place as follows:
FOR – 33
ABSTAIN – 3
AGAINST – 3
RESOLVED that Council:
(i) Note the impact of the Draft Local Government Settlement 2022/2023;
(ii) Supports the proposals outlined in Appendix 1, and detailed in Section 4, in
order to finalise the budget for 2022/2023;
(iii) Approve the average Council Tax rise of 2.95% proposed;
(iv) Delegate authority to the Head of Finance and Property in consultation with
the Lead Member for Finance and adjust the use of cash included in the
budget proposals by up to £500k if there is movement between the draft
and final settlement figures in order to allow the setting of Council Tax in
a timely manner;
(v) Confirms it has read, understood and taken account of the Wellbeing Impact
Assessment.
6

COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME 2022/2023
The Lead Member for Finance, Performance and Strategic Assets, Councillor Julian
Thompson-Hill, introduced the Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2022/2023 report
(previously circulated).
Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill PROPOSED to accept the Council Tax Reduction
Scheme 2022/2023, SECONDED by Councillor Peter Scott.
A zoom poll took place and it was unanimously agreed to accept the report.

Page 16

RESOLVED that,
 Members adopt the Council Tax Reduction Schemes and Prescribed
Requirements (Wales) Regulations 2013 and the Council Tax Reduction
Schemes
(Prescribed
Requirements
and
Default
Scheme)(Wales)(Amendment) Regulations 2022 in respect of the 2022/2023
financial year
 Members approve the discretionary elements of the scheme, shown in
section 4.4 for 2022/2023 financial year.

AT THIS JUNCTURE (11.55 A.M.) THERE WAS A 20 MINUTE BREAK
THE MEETING RECONVENED AT 12.15 P.M.
7

NOTICE OF MOTION
Councillor Brian Jones withdrew the Notice of Motion.

8

NOTICE OF MOTION
Councillor Paul Penlington put forward the Notice of Motion for consideration by Full
Council –
“That this council tasks officers to seek additional Welsh Government funding in
order to fund a complete re-build of Prestatyn High School”
At this juncture Councillor Penlington informed members that he wished to amend
the wording of the Notice of Motion slightly.
The Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services confirmed this would be
acceptable.
Councillor Penlington read the amendment as follows –
“This Council tasks officers to seek additional Welsh Government funding in order
to fund a complete re-build of Prestatyn High School based on earlier designs
drawn up for the 21st Century Schools programme that modernised to meet the
current needs of secondary pupils of Prestatyn and our climate change and
ecological emergency declaration”.
Councillor Penlington PROPOSED the Notice of Motion, SECONDED by Councillor
Glenn Swingler.
The Lead Member for Education, Children’s Services and Public Engagement,
Councillor Huw Hilditch-Roberts explained procedure in place was that the
Modernising Education Board assessed the condition of all schools in Denbighshire
and that was the process which had been in place for the past 14 years. Over £2m
had been spent at Prestatyn High School to address urgent areas which had
included refurbishment of laboratories, heating upgrade, new windows, new toilets
etc. The standard construction costs for a complete new school together with net

Page 17

carbon costs would be in the region of £55million. Therefore, the cost of the
feasibility study alone would cost £850k. The Lead Member confirmed that he was
not aware of plans which had been drawn up for a new building for Prestatyn High
School or a feasibility study in 2017. He would confirm with officers.
Councillor Hilditch-Roberts stated that the way forward, taking into account the
sums involved it is important the council had a process to determine the priority
order for investment in school buildings. The process is evidence based, taking into
account the respective needs of all schools to ensure that those in greatest need
are dealt with first. A comprehensive condition survey of all schools was
undertaken in order to identify the schools that required improvements. This was
undertaken prior to the submission of the 21st Century Band B proposals to Welsh
Government which had been put forward to Cabinet and Scrutiny on numerous
occasions. This survey was considered by the Modernising Education Board and
provided evidence based information upon which they could recommend the priority
order of schools which needed work.
Councillor Hilditch-Roberts PROPOSED an amendment in light of the Notice of
Motion that the Modernising Education Board be asked to review the condition
surveys of all schools to see whether those had been significantly changed to the
condition of the school estate which would call into question that the current priority
order of schools is still current and correct. The outcome of this review could be
reported to Cabinet together with any recommendations the Modernising Education
Board may have as a result.
Councillor Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones SECONDED the amendment put forward
by Councillor Huw Hilditch-Roberts.
The Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services clarified that debate should take
place on the amendment and if the amendment was carried then that would
become the Notice of Motion which would be voted on as the substantive Notice of
Motion. If the amendment was not agreed members would refer back to the Notice
of Motion as put forward by Councillor Penlington.
Councillor Paul Penlington supported the amendment put forward by Councillor
Huw Hilditch-Roberts.
The zoom poll vote took place on the amendment put forward by the Lead Member
for Education, Councillor Huw Hilditch-Roberts and the result was as follows For – 32
Abstain – 0
Against – 5
The amendment was passed and became the substantive Notice of Motion.
A vote took place on the substantive Notice of Motion to which a majority were in
favour, 2 Councillors indicated they were against (Councillors Rhys Thomas and
Glenn Swingler) and 1 Councillor abstained (Councillor Gwyneth Ellis).

Page 18

RESOLVED that the Modernising Education Board be asked to review the condition
surveys of all schools to see whether those had been significantly changed to the
condition of the school estate which would call into question that the current priority
order of schools is still current and correct. The outcome of this review could be
reported to Cabinet together with any recommendations the Modernising Education
Board may have as a result.
9

NOTICE OF MOTION
Councillor Tony Flynn withdrew his Notice of Motion.

10

NOTICE OF MOTION
Councillor Rachel Flynn put forward the Notice of Motion for consideration by Full
Council –
Councillor Flynn stated that the Notice of Motion was put forward on behalf of the
Womens Cross Party Group of the Women in Politics Group.
“We ask that Denbighshire County council take a more decisive stance with its
grievance policy and procedure. In light of the updated diversity and equalities act,
we ask that the council forms a new internal procedure to ensure the behaviour of
councillors can be held to account.
We also ask that the council reviews it policies and procedure for reviewing
grievances concerning bulling and harassment, involving Councillors, Officers, and
others whether it be virtually, physically or on social media.’
‘Recommendation.
1. That the Democratic Services Committee look at the current grievance process
to ensure it is fit for purpose.
2. That the council create a diversity and ethics working group to examine how the
council protects and promotes diversity and good ethics in Wales, including
awareness of how women are still being treated unequally and the effects of
misogyny and sexual discrimination on women.
3. That we are more forthright as a council in tackling unacceptable behaviour in
any Community, Town or County Council forum.”
Councillor Rachel Flynn PROPOSED the Notice of Motion, SECONDED by
Councillor Barry Mellor.
The Leader, Councillor Hugh Evans responded by thanking Councillor Flynn for
bringing forward the Notice of Motion. As Lead Member for Equality and Leader of
the Council he was committed the Council continually strived to place equality at
the heart of all work carried out. The Council was committed to diversity and made
a declaration in September 2021 to commit to become a diverse council and the
Democratic Services Committee would, later this week, consider a draft action plan
related to some of the barriers to participate in local democracy. In terms of
disputes between members, a new legal duty on Group Leaders would take effect

Page 19

after the May elections to promote and maintain high standards of conduct amongst
their Groups.
In addition, the recent independent Penn Review of ethical framework in Wales,
had reported to the Wales Government and had made recommendations regarding
the use of ambit of local resolution processes. The Government’s response to the
Review was awaited, and details of any proposals to change guidance and/or
legislation as a result.
Councillor Hugh Evans responded to the recommendations contained within the
Notice of Motion as follows 1. This recommendation refers to the local resolution process used to try and
resolve issues between members of the County Council on an informal basis
without the need to involve the Ombudsman. Councillor Evans agreed there
should be a review of the process. Councillor Evans PROPOSED that a
Working Group of members be established to undertake a review of work with
the Standards Committee and the Monitoring Officer to develop a suitable
process in the context of the new duty to which he referred, and any changes
introduced as a result of the Penn Review.
2. The Council did, at one time, have an Equalities Group which was removed as
part of an agenda to mainstream equalities issues. However, there is ongoing
work being done by the Business Improvement and Modernisation team to
consider the establishment of an Equalities Group and Councillor Evans
proposed that the work should continue and take into account any overlap
between equalities issues and the ethical framework.
3. The Council would provide support, training and guidance to Town and
Community Councils but it had no direct role in resolving disputes within those
Councils other than through the Ombudsman and Standards Committee. As
members, all should be mindful of their responsibilities to treat each other with
respect and consideration and that would all challenge unacceptable behaviour
when seen.
The review of the local resolution process would be the appropriate mechanism to
consider what changes would be needed to be made in the context of the new duty
on Group Leaders and the Penn Review.
Councillor Hugh Evans PROPOSED
recommendations as follows –

the

following

amendments

to

the

Recommendation 1 - That a Group of members be established to work with the
Monitoring Officer and the Standards Committee to review the current local
resolution process and make recommendations in respect of any changes to be
adopted.
Recommendation 2 – That Officers work to establish proposals for an Equalities
and Diversity Group to include an appropriate terms of reference

Page 20

Recommendation 3 – That the Council works with the Town and Community
Councils to provide support and assistance within the context of the current ethical
framework and any changes made as a result of the Penn Review.
Councillor Mark Young SECONDED the amendments put forward by Councillor
Hugh Evans.
A vote took place and a majority of members approved the amendments with one
vote against the amendment.
The Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services clarified that as the amendment
had been carried, it was now the substantive Notice of Motion and a vote would be
taken on the substantive Notice of Motion.
A vote took place and a majority of members approved the substantive Notice of
Motion with one vote against (Councillor Gwyneth Kensler).
RESOLVED that:
(1) a Group of members be established to work with the Monitoring Officer and
the Standards Committee to review the current local resolution process and
make recommendations in respect of any changes to be adopted.
(2) Officers work to establish proposals for an Equalities and Diversity Group to
include an appropriate terms of reference
(3) the Council works with the Town and Community Councils to provide support
and assistance within the context of the current ethical framework and any
changes made as a result of the Penn Review.
11

YOUNG PERSONS' CHAMPION
The Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services introduced the Appointment of
Young Person’s Champion report (previously circulated).
On 7th December 2021 Council resolved to create the role of Young Persons’
Champion in accordance with the role description attached as Appendix 1.
Nominations had been sought from the political groups in order that Council may
elect a member to be appointed as Young Person’s Champion.
Councillor Joan Butterfield nominated Councillor Cheryl Williams, seconded by
Councillor Brian Blakeley.
Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill nominated Councillor Rachel Flynn, seconded by
Councillor Peter Scott.
A vote by zoom poll took place and the results were as follows Councillor Cheryl Williams – 19
Councillor Rachel Flynn – 15

Page 21

Therefore, it was
RESOLVED that Councillor Cheryl Williams be appointed as the Young Person’s
Champion.
12

COUNTY COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
The Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services introduced the Council Forward
Work Programme together with the Council Briefing Forward Work Programme
(previously circulated).
It was stated that it was normal practice not to hold Full Council during the preelection period which was due to commence on 18 March and, therefore, the
Council meeting due to take place on 5 April would be cancelled.
14 March 2022 – Special Council and Council Briefing were to take place.
RESOLVED that, subject to the above, the Council and Council Briefing Forward
Work Programme be approved and noted.

THE MEETING CONCLUDED AT 1.15 P.M.

Page 22

Agenda Item 5

Report to

Council

Date of meeting

22nd February 2022

Lead Member / Officer

Cllr Bobby Feeley / Cllr Huw Hilditch-Roberts / Ann Lloyd /
Rhiain Morrlle

Report author

Ann Lloyd

Title

Regional Population Needs Assessment 2022

1. What is the report about?
1.1. The North Wales Regional Population Needs Assessment (PNA) 2022, is
required by the Social Services and Well-Being (Wales) 2014 Act and the Care
and Support (Area Planning) (Wales) Regulations.
1.2. The first Population Needs Assessment was published in 2017 and has been
used as the basis for this latest document.

2. What is the reason for making this report?
2.1. A decision is required on approval of the North Wales Regional Population
Needs Assessment.

3. What are the recommendations?
3.1 That Full Council approve the North Wales Population Needs Assessment 2022.

4. Report details
4.1. The North Wales PNA (Appendix 1) has been undertaken as a joint exercise by
the six Local Authorities, BCUHB and Public Health Wales. The PNA aims to
improve our understanding of the population across North Wales and how their
needs will evolve and change over the coming years.

Page 23

4.2. The PNA will:- identify the care and support needs across North Wales; identify
the services that are available to meet those needs; and identify any gaps /
unmet needs and actions required.
4.3. Some of the data that has been used to inform the PNA is out of date, e.g.
Census data has been used from the 2011 Census as the 2021 data will not be
released to meet the timescales in which Welsh Government require the
Regional PNA to be published. The PNA will be updated with the relevant data
as it becomes available over this 5-year cycle of the PNA.
4.4. The assessment is the basis on which the Regional Partnership Board should
make decisions for future planning and commissioning of care and support
needs. It is also intended to influence local level decision making including
corporate improvement plans and in the development of strategies and plans.
4.5. The Regional PNA has been split into thematic chapters which include:Children and Young People; Older People; Health, Physical Disability and
Sensory Impairment; Learning Disability; Autistic Spectrum Disorder; Mental
Health; and Unpaid Carers. In addition, there is also the inclusion of other
groups such as refugees, armed forces veterans and those experiencing
homelessness.
4.6. Attached in Appendix 2 are the Denbighshire priorities, which will be included in
the final version of the PNA, along with a similar document for each of the Local
Authorities and BCUHB.
4.7. What happens next? The PNA will be used to inform the Market Stability Report
which is due for publication in June 2022. The Market Stability Report will
assess the stability and sufficiency of the social care market in light of the
findings and needs identified within this assessment.
4.8. Running in parallel to the Regional PNA is the development of a North Wales
Well-Being Assessment, which the North Wales Public Services Board (PSB) is
due to publish in May 2022. Links have been made with the PSB where
commonalities in priorities and themes have been identified across the Region.

Page 24

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate
Priorities?
5.1. The PNA supports the following Corporate Priorities:

Everyone is supported to live in homes that meet their needs;



The Council works with people and communities to build independence and
resilience;



A place where younger people will want to live and work and have the skills to
do so.

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services?
6.1. The North Wales Social Care and Well-Being Improvement Collaborative funds
a Regional Project Manager to support the project and associated costs
including translation and specialist engagement.
6.2. Future commissioning of gaps / unmet needs in the social care market will need
to be funded either through appropriate grant funding or from existing social
care budgets.

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact
Assessment?
7.1. A well-Being Impact Assessment is not required for the Regional PNA.

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny
and others?
8.1. The development of the Regional PNA has been engagement led, with a large
scale regional consultation and engagement exercise being undertaken. The
results of the consultation and engagement exercise are summarised in each of
the main chapters.

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement
9.1 The North Wales Social Care and Wellbeing Services Improvement
Collaborative has funded the regional project which has included 2 x regional
project managers to support the development of the population needs

Page 25

assessment. Associated costs, such as translation and for specialist
engagement was also funded by the partnership.
9.2 There has been a cost to the local authorities, BCUHB and Public Health Wales
in staff time and resource to support the project. This includes staff to carry out
engagement work with the public, service users, staff and elected members
and staff to support the analysis and writing of the report. The majority of this
work took place between April 2021 and December 2021 for the population
needs assessment.
9.3 Going forward the population needs assessment will identify regional and local
priorities. It may be the case that these priorities require some level of
investment at either regional or local level.

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to
reduce them?
10.1. There are no identified risks in publishing the Regional Population Needs
Assessment

11. Power to make the decision
11.1. Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000.
11.2. Section 7.4.2 (b) of the Council’s constitution.

Page 26

North Wales Population
Needs Assessment

April 2022
Draft

Page 27

Appendix 1 - References

2

Page 28

Contents
1.

Approach to the Population Needs Assessment ................................................. 4

2.

North Wales Overview ........................................................................................ 4

3.

Children and Young People ................................................................................ 5

4.

Older People ....................................................................................................... 7

5.

Health, Physical Disability and Sensory Impairment ......................................... 10

6.

Learning Disabilities .......................................................................................... 11

7.

Autism ............................................................................................................... 12

8.

Mental Health (Adults)....................................................................................... 13

9.

Unpaid Carers ................................................................................................... 15

3

Page 29

2. Approach to the population needs
assessment
Written Statement: Strengthening Welsh language services in health and social care,
October 2021, Welsh Government
https://gov.wales/written-statement-strengthening-welsh-language-services-healthand-social-care-0
A More Equal Wales: The Socio-economic Duty, Welsh Government 2021
https://gov.wales/more-equal-wales-socio-economic-duty
COVID-19 Adult Safeguarding Insight Project, Local Government Association
December 2021
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/covid-19-adult-safeguarding-insight-projectfindings-and-discussion
A Telling Experience: Understanding the Impact of Covid-19 on people who access
care and support – a rapid evidence review with recommendations
https://www.thinklocalactpersonal.org.uk/covid-19/tlap-insight-group/TIG-report/
Into Sharp Relief: Inequality and the pandemic, Welsh Parliament Equality, Local
Government and Communities Committee, August 2020
Covid Hubs in North Wales offering support to the hardest hit, Welsh Government
https://gov.wales/covid-hubs-north-wales-offering-support-hardest-hit

3. North Wales overview
Summary Statistics by regions of Wales 2020, Welsh Government
https://gov.wales/summary-statistics-regions-wales-2020

4

Page 30

Is Wales Fairer? The State of Equality and Human Rights, 2018, Equality and
Human Rights Commission
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/publication-download/wales-fairer-2018
Wellbeing of Wales 2021, Welsh Government
https://gov.wales/wellbeing-wales-2021
Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation, Welsh Government, StatsWales, 2019
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Community-Safety-and-SocialInclusion/Welsh-Index-of-Multiple-Deprivation
Annual Equality Report 2020 – 2021, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board
https://bcuhb.nhs.wales/use-of-site/publication-scheme/class-five-our-policies-andprocedures/equality-and-human-rights/equality-and-human-rights-reports/
Locality Health and Social Care Needs Assessment North Wales 2021, Community
Transformation Team, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board, Public Health
Wales
National Survey for Wales (Loneliness and isolation Data)
https://gov.wales/national-survey-wales

4. Children and young people
Locality Health and Social Care Needs Assessment, North Wales,
Dr Ellie Messham, Specialty Registrar, Betsi Cadwaladr Public Health Team, Public
Health Wales, Community Services Transformation, 2021
Public Health Wales Observatory, 2020, Smoking in Wales (2020) - Public Health
Wales (nhs.wales)
North Wales Population Needs Assessment Rapid Review, 2020, North Wales
Social Care and Wellbeing Services Improvement Collaborative
https://www.northwalescollaborative.wales/north-wales-populationassessment/rapid-review/
5

Page 31

Harold, G., Acquah, D., Sellers, R. and Chowdry, H. (2016) What works to enhance
inter-parental relationships and improve outcomes for children. University of Sussex:
Early Intervention Foundation. [Online]. Available at:
https://www.eif.org.uk/report/what-works-to-enhance-interparental-relationships-andimprove-outcomes-for-children
Royal College of Psychiatrists, (2010). No health without public mental health, the case for action.
Royal College of Psychiatrists: London. 2010.

School Health Research Network, Student Health and Wellbeing Survey 2019
https://www.cardiff.ac.uk/news/view/2509156-fifth-of-young-people-in-wales-wereexperiencing-poor-mental-health-prior-to-covid-19,-report-shows
Children and Young People’s Mental Wellbeing during the Covid-19 pandemic report
2021, Public Health Wales
https://phw.nhs.wales/news/coping-strategies-made-a-difference-to-young-peoplesmental-well-being-during-pandemic/
Mental health, young people and the pandemic, Senedd Research, 2020
https://research.senedd.wales/research-articles/mental-health-young-people-andthe-pandemic/
ACE Support Hub Annual Report 2020 - 2021
A Health Needs Assessment: The impact of COVID-19 on children and young
people’s experiences of violence and adverse childhood experiences, Violence
Prevention Unit Report, 2021
No Wrong Door: bringing services together to meet children’s needs, Children’s
Commissioner for Wales, June 2020
https://www.childcomwales.org.uk/publications/no-wrong-door-bringing-servicestogether-to-meet-childrens-needs/
The Mental Health Emergency, How has the coronavirus pandemic impacted our
mental health?, June 2020, Mind Cymru
Coronavirus and Me, Children’s Commissioner for Wales, 2020

6

Page 32

https://www.childcomwales.org.uk/coronavirus-our-work/coronavirus-and-me-results/
Is Wales Fairer? The State of Equality and Human Rights, 2018, Equality and
Human Rights Commission
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/publication-download/wales-fairer-2018

5.

Older people

Age Friendly Wales: Our strategy for an ageing society, Welsh Government, 2021
https://gov.wales/age-friendly-wales-our-strategy-ageing-society
Life expectancy estimates all ages, Office for National Statistics, 2021
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/healtha
ndlifeexpectancies/datasets/lifeexpectancyestimatesallagesuk
Care and Social Services Inspectorate for Wales (2016) 'Above and Beyond:
National review of domiciliary care’ 2016
http://cssiw.org.uk/docs/cssiw/report/161027aboveandbeyonden.pdf
North Wales life expectancy measuring inequalities, Public Health Observatory 2016
https://phw.nhs.wales/services-and-teams/observatory/data-and-analysis/measuringinequalities-2016/
Ageing Well in Wales – Falls Prevention
https://www.ageingwellinwales.com/en/themes/falls-prevention
Digital Inclusion, Digital Communities Wales
https://www.digitalcommunities.gov.wales/digital-inclusion-in-health-and-care/
https://www.digitalcommunities.gov.wales/digital-inclusion-in-wales-2/
Digital Inclusion in the Pandemic, Age UK 2021

7

Page 33

https://www.ageuk.org.uk/globalassets/age-uk/documents/reports-andpublications/reports-and-briefings/active-communities/digital-inclusion-in-thepandemic-final-march-2021.pdf
Victor, C. (2011). Loneliness in old age: the UK perspective.
Valtorta, N.K., Kanaan, M., Gilbody, S., Ronzi, S. and Hanratty, B., 2016. Loneliness
and social isolation as risk factors for coronary heart disease and stroke: systematic
review and meta-analysis of longitudinal observational studies

http://www.ageingwellinwales.com/Libraries/Documents/Promising-Approaches-toReducing-Loneliness-and-Isolation-in-Later-Life.pdf
North Wales Dementia Strategy 2020,
https://www.northwalescollaborative.wales/regional-priorities/north-wales-dementiastrategy/
Alzheimer’s Society, About Dementia, 2019
https://www.alzheimers.org.uk/about-dementia
Dementia prevention - Ref Public health England [2017], The Effect of mid-life risk
factors on dementia in older age: key messages. PHE Publications, London, uk
Dementia Action Plan for Wales 2018 – 2022, Welsh Government
https://gov.wales/dementia-action-plan-2018-2022
Leave No-one Behind: Action for an age friendly recovery, 2020, Older People’s
Commissioner for Wales
https://www.olderpeoplewales.com/en/news/news/20-08-18/Leave_noone_behind_Action_for_an_age-friendly_recovery.aspx

A framework for aging-friendly service and supports in the age of Covid-19, Hoffman,
Webster and Bynum, 2020
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/32441572/

8

Page 34

The impact of Covid-19 pandemic on elderly mental health, Banerjee, 2020
https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/full/10.1002/gps.5320
Social isolation, loneliness and health in the time of Covid, Campbell, 2020

The Centre for Better Ageing, Digital Inclusion
https://ageing-better.org.uk/digital-inclusion
Taking Action Against Ageism, Older Peoples Commissioner for Wales, 2019
https://www.olderpeoplewales.com/en/ageism/action.aspx
Support Services for Older People Experiencing Abuse in Wales, Older Peoples
Commissioner for Wales, 2021
https://www.olderpeoplewales.com/en/Publications/pub-story/21-0615/More_tailored_support_services_needed_to_ensure_older_people_being_abuse
d_can_get_the_help_and_support_they_need.aspx
Relative Income Poverty: April 2019 to March 2020, Welsh Government
https://gov.wales/relative-income-poverty-april-2019-march-2020-html
Supporting Care Commissioners and Procurers to Promote “Social Value” Models of
Delivery, A Wales Co-operative Centre Project
https://wales.coop/wp-content/uploads/2021/10/WCC-Think-Piece-Scoial-Value0621.pdf
Ensuring access to information and services in a digital age: Guidance for Local
Authorities and Health Boards, Older Peoples Commissioner for Wales
https://www.olderpeoplewales.com/en/Publications/digitalguidance.aspx
Into Sharp Relief: Inequality and the pandemic, Welsh Parliament Equality, Local
Government and Communities Committee, August 2020

9

Page 35

6. Health, physical disability and sensory
impairment
Scope UK, Disability Facts and Figures, accessed 2021
https://www.scope.org.uk/media/disability-facts-figures/
Disabled People of Working Age, StatsWales, accessed 2021
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Equality-andDiversity/Disability/DisabledPeopleOfWorkingAge-by-MainHealthProblemLocalAuthority
Locked out: liberating disabled people’s lives and rights in Wales beyond COVID-19,
2021, Welsh Government
https://gov.wales/locked-out-liberating-disabled-peoples-lives-and-rights-walesbeyond-covid-19
How common is hearing loss?, National Institute for Health and Care Excellence,
2019
https://cks.nice.org.uk/topics/hearing-loss-in-adults/backgroundinformation/prevalence/
Common mental illness in people with sensory impairment: results from the 2014
adult psychiatric morbidity survey, N. Shoham et al, 2019
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/31685070/
Understanding disabilities and impairments, UK Government publication, 2017
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/understanding-disabilities-andimpairments-user-profiles/saleem-profoundly-deaf-user
Conceptual Model of Hearing Health Inequalities: Critical Interpretive Synthesis,
Tsimpida et al, 2021
https://journals.sagepub.com/doi/full/10.1177/23312165211002963
Relative income poverty: April 2019 to March 2020
https://gov.wales/relative-income-poverty-april-2019-march-2020-html
10

Page 36

7. Learning disabilities
Public Health England, NCARDRS Statistics 2018 Summary Report (updated 2020)
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/ncardrs-congenital-anomaly-annualdata/ncardrs-statistics-2018-summary-report
Learning disability and dementia, Dementia UK
https://www.dementiauk.org/get-support/maintaining-health-in-dementia/learningdisability-and-dementia/
North Wales Population Needs Assessment Rapid Review, 2020, North Wales
Social Care and Wellbeing Services Improvement Collaborative
https://www.northwalescollaborative.wales/north-wales-populationassessment/rapid-review/
Locked out: liberating disabled people’s lives and rights in Wales beyond COVID-19,
2021, Welsh Government
https://gov.wales/locked-out-liberating-disabled-peoples-lives-and-rights-walesbeyond-covid-19
Blair, British Journal of Family Medicine 2015 – Common problems of people with
learning disabilities
https://www.bjfm.co.uk/blog/common-health-problems-of-people-with-learningdisabilities

North Wales Learning Disability Strategy 2018, North Wales Social Care and
Wellbeing Services Improvement Collaborative
https://www.northwalescollaborative.wales/north-wales-populationassessment/north-wales-population-assessment-2017/
Covid-19 impact on people with learning disabilities (Information collected by the
North Wales Disability Transformation Team)

11

Page 37

https://www.northwalescollaborative.wales/engagement/covid-19-impact-on-peoplewith-learning-disabilities/
Is Wales Fairer? The State of Equality and Human Rights, 2018, Equality and
Human Rights Commission
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/publication-download/wales-fairer-2018
Health Inequalities & People with Learning Disabilities in the UK: 2012 Eric Emerson,
Susannah Baines, Lindsay Allerton and Vicki Welch
Into Sharp Relief: Inequality and the pandemic, Welsh Parliament Equality, Local
Government and Communities Committee, August 2020
Social Model of Disability, Foundation for People with Learning Disabilities
https://www.learningdisabilities.org.uk/learning-disabilities/a-to-z/s/social-modeldisability
‘I Know it was Every Week, but I Can't be Sure if it was Every Day: Domestic
Violence and Women with Learning Disabilities: Wiley Journal of Applied Research
in Intellectual Disabilities

8.

Autism

Left Stranded – Report into the impact of coronavirus, National Autistic Society, 2020
https://www.autism.org.uk/what-we-do/news/coronavirus-report
The Impact of the COVID pandemic on adults with learning disabilities and / or
autism, their family carers and service provision, Directors of Adult Social Services,
2021
https://www.adass.org.uk/covid-learning-disabilities-autism-carers-impact
Women’s Health Care for People with Autism and Learning Disabilities
https://livingautism.com/womens-health-care-people-autism-learning-disabilities/
National Autistic Society, ONS Outcomes for Disabled People in the UK, 2020
12

Page 38

https://www.autism.org.uk/what-we-do/news/new-data-on-the-autism-employmentgap
Locked out: liberating disabled people’s lives and rights in Wales beyond COVID-19,
2021, Welsh Government
https://gov.wales/locked-out-liberating-disabled-peoples-lives-and-rights-walesbeyond-covid-19

Autism Employment Gap, National Autistic Society, 2021
https://www.autism.org.uk/what-we-do/news/new-data-on-the-autism-employmentgap

9. Mental health (adults)
Optimal Mental Wellbeing, Tudor, K. 1996: Mental Health Promotion Paradigms and
Practice Routledge, London
Mental Wellbeing Impact Assessment: National MWIA Collaborative (England) May
2011
Five Ways to Wellbeing - Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (nhs.wales)
ICAN BCUHB Service, https://bcuhb.nhs.wales/news/health-board-news/lifechanging-i-can-mental-health-support-service-to-be-extended/
Mental Health Delivery Plan 2019 – 2022, Welsh Government
https://gov.wales/mental-health-delivery-plan-2019-to-2022
A Mental Health Emergency: How has the coronavirus pandemic impacted our
mental health?, Mind, June 2020
A Mentally Well Wales, 2021, Senedd Research
https://research.senedd.wales/research-articles/a-mentally-well-wales/
Locked out: liberating disabled people’s lives and rights in Wales beyond COVID-19,
2021, Welsh Government

13

Page 39

https://gov.wales/locked-out-liberating-disabled-peoples-lives-and-rights-walesbeyond-covid-19
Race and Mental Health – Tipping the Scale, Mind, 2019
https://www.mind.org.uk/about-us/our-policy-work/mental-health-actreview/independent-review-of-the-mental-health-act-faqs/mental-health-act-blogseries/race-and-mental-health-tipping-the-scale/
Physical impairments and mental health, The Kings Fund, 2020
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/projects/time-think-differently/trends-disease-anddisability-mental-physical-health
Walby, S. (2004). The Cost of Domestic Violence. Research Summary: Women &
Equality Unit
Howard, L.M., Trevillion, K., Khalifeh, H., Woodall, A., Agnew Davies, R., & Feder,
G. (2009): Domestic violence and severe psychiatric disorders: Prevalence and
interventions. Psychological Medicine, 40(6), 881–893.
Mind and the Welsh Language, Mind
https://www.mind.org.uk/about-us/mind-cymru/our-welsh-offer/
A review of evidence on socio-economic disadvantage and inequalities of outcome,
Welsh Government, 2021
https://gov.wales/review-evidence-socio-economic-disadvantage-and-inequalitiesoutcome-summary-html
Office for National Statistics – Suicide, 2020
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/d
eaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/2020registrations
Jones, C., Andrew, R. and Atenstaedt, R. (2016) 'Population Health Profile of North
Wales, to support needs assessment for Social Services and Wellbeing Act and
wellbeing assessment for Future Generations Act'. Public Health Wales.
Public Health Wales (2016a) 'Making a difference: Investing in sustainable health and
well-being for the people of Wales'.

14

Page 40

Public Health Wales (2016b) 'Measuring inequalities 2016'. Available at:
www.publichealthwalesobservatory.org/inequalities2016 (Accessed: 08 Aug 2016).

10. Unpaid carers
North Wales Carers Strategy 2018, North Wales Social Care and Wellbeing Services
Improvement Collaborative
https://www.northwalescollaborative.wales/carers/
National Strategy for Unpaid Carers 2021, Welsh Government
https://gov.wales/strategy-unpaid-carers-html
Carers Wales Data
https://www.carersuk.org/wales/about-us
Carers Wales – Physical and Mental Strain of caring
https://www.carersuk.org/wales/news-campaigns/news/the-physical-and-mentalstrain-of-caring-jeopardising-unpaid-carers-ability-to-care-in-the-future-in-wales
A New Vision for Respite and Short Breaks in Wales, Carers Trust
https://carers.org/policy-and-influence/a-new-vision-for-respite-and-short-breaks-inwalesCarers Trust Survey Results, Impact of Coronavirus on young carers and young
adult carers, July 2020
https://carers.org/what-we-do/our-survey-on-the-impact-of-coronavirus-on-youngcarers-and-young-adult-carersBecker, S., Dearden, C. and Aldridge, J. (2000) 'Young carers in the UK: research,
policy and practice', Research, Policy and Planning, 8(2), pp. 13-22.

Coronavirus and the Social Impact on Unpaid Carers in Great Britain, April 2021,
ONS

15

Page 41

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/socialc
are/articles/coronavirusandthesocialimpactsonunpaidcarersingreatbritain/april2021
Care, Poverty and Coronavirus Across Britain, 2020, Oxfam
https://policy-practice.oxfam.org/resources/care-poverty-and-coronavirus-acrossbritain-620980/
State of Caring Report, 2019, Carers UK
https://www.carersuk.org/news-and-campaigns/news-rss/6161-state-of-caring-report2019
Caring for Carers, 2018, Social Market Foundation
https://www.smf.co.uk/publications/caring-for-carers/

16

Page 42

Key Local Messages for Denbighshire PNA
1.

An increasingly ageing population with more complex needs
combined with a recruitment and retention crisis across
social care is leading to longer waiting times and inability to
commission all requested care and support for adults

Actions required:
i.
ii.
iii.

1.

Optimise use of resources through better partnership working with
neighbouring LAs, Health and providers.
Supporting new local, small scale provision through Community Catalysts.
Increasing use of preventative services to maintain independence.

Deepening poverty & deprivation giving potential increase in
demand for services while LA income is reduced

Actions required:
i.
ii.

iii.
iv.

2.

Focus on rural areas with most problems in terms of available services and
affordable transport for people to access them.
Prepare for increased numbers of households requesting support due to high
energy costs and rising inflation rates. Fewer people self-funding care and
support.
Prepare for increase in homelessness / housing requests, including for those
aged 16 – 18.
Prepare for increased applications for school uniform grants and changes to
free school meals applications – note that free school meals are expected to
be offered to all foundation phase pupils by September 2022 and all primary
school pupils by September 2023. Concern around how deprivation levels will
be measured in the future.

Need for improved support for unpaid carers

Actions required:
i.
ii.
iii.

Respite opportunities must be increased and reflect choice and control needs.
Increase numbers of unpaid carers who identify to and engage with the LA.
A Task &Finish Group will commence early in 2022 to work on this.

3.

Need for help in early stages of dementia

Actions required:
i.
ii.
iii.

Work underway on improving dementia pathways to facilitate access and
support people and their families pre, during and post diagnosis.
Ensure adequate provision through medium of Welsh.
Ensure existing provision of services adequately meets the needs of people
with early stage dementia to maintain a degree of independence for as long
as possible.

FINAL DRAFT

Page 43
26/01/2022

4.

Short term funding impacts on planning ability, service
stability and viability (essential staff leave for permanent posts)

Actions required:
i.
ii.

5.

Full engagement with RPB regarding scope and use of grant funding, paying
particular attention to sustainability for individual projects.
At Director level, engaging with WLGA and WG on securing longer term core
funding settlements.

Increasing loneliness and mental health issues following on
from Covid-19 pandemic

Actions required:
i.

ii.
iii.
iv.

v.

Implement the Framework on embedding a whole school approach to
emotional and mental well-being
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-03/framework-onembedding-a-whole-school-approach-to-emotional-and-mental-well-being.pdf
To have busy Talking Points across Denbighshire in places and settings that
work for local communities
Single Point of Access and Community Navigator Service continue to connect
more people to resources and support in their local communities.
To grow our Edge of Care Team within Community Support Services, seeing
more volunteers active in their local communities supporting adults’
independence and combating loneliness.
Work is ongoing with partner LAs and BCUHB to implement joint practices
designed to support the mental and emotional health of children and young
people, ensuring access to both emergency and longer term support. This
includes children and young people with complex behaviour due to
attachment and trauma issues.

FINAL DRAFT

Page
44
26/01/2022

Agenda Item 6
Report to

Council

Date of meeting

22nd February 2022

Lead Member / Officer

Cllr Brian Jones (Lead Member for Waste, Transport and
the Environment), Cllr Tony Thomas (Lead Member for
Housing and Communities), Cllr Graham Timms (Climate
Change and Ecological Emergency Political Working Group
Chair) / Alan Smith (BIM Head of Service & Climate and
Ecological Change Programme Senior Responsible Owner)

Report author

Andrew Cutts (Climate Change Programme ManagerMaternity Cover)

Title

Climate and Ecological Change Strategy – Update on Year
1 delivery

1. What is the report about?
1.1 To provide information on the delivery and progress made so far during year 1 of
the Climate and Ecological Change Strategy 2021-2030 (‘Strategy’) delivery and
explore options for the Climate Change and Ecological Emergency Political
Working Group and induction of Members following the May 2022 elections.

2. What is the reason for making this report?
2.1 Scrutiny Chairs and Vice Chairs in March 2021 agreed to continue the Climate
Change and Ecological Emergency Political Working Group up until the end of
this Council and for this Working Group then to present a report to County
Council during the Spring of 2022 on the progress achieved to date, prior to the
end of the current Council’s term of office.

3. What are the Recommendations?
3.1 To note the progress made so far during year 1 of the Strategy delivery.
3.2 To agree in principal to continue the Climate Change and Ecological Emergency
Political Working Group into new Council (2022-2027).

Page 45

3.3 To provide feedback on the draft plan / approach for inducting Members of the
new Council after the May 2022 elections on this agenda.
3.4 That the Committee confirms that it has read, understood and taken account of
the Well-being Impact Assessment (Appendix 1) as part of its consideration.
3.5 To consider the creation of a dedicated Cabinet lead for Climate and Ecological
Change as recommended by the Climate Change and Ecological Emergency
Political Working Group.

4. Report details
4.1. The Council declared a Climate Change and Ecological Emergency in July 2019.
Subsequently the Climate and Ecological Change Strategy (2021/22-2029/30)
was adopted in February 2021 which commits the Council to become a Net
Carbon Zero and Ecologically Positive Council by 2030 in addition to reducing
carbon emissions from the goods and services we buy (the Council’s supply
chain) by 35% by 2030.
4.2 The Strategy provides a route map to achieve the 2030 goals. There are a
number of key performance indicators that are being used to judge the
performance of the Council in achieving its 2030 goals, including: reducing
carbon emissions the Council emits from various sources, increasing carbon
sequestration of land the Council owns/leases and manages and increasing the
species richness of the land the Council owns/leases and manages.
4.3 Whilst the first year of judgement against goal delivery is 2021/22 (the first year
of the Strategy), 2020/21 performance has been monitored and results given in
Appendix 2. This was included in the Annual Performance Review 2020/21 which
was approved by Council on 6th July 2021.
4.4 Learning from 2020/21 and the impact of Covid-19 along with the understanding
that we need to reduce our carbon emissions as much as we can has led to the
adjustment of our targeted delivery pathway within our Net Carbon Zero goal.
This is summarised in Appendix 3.
4.5 The Climate and Ecological Change Strategy lists 37 policy/process changes
and 75 activities that the Council would undertake to deliver on our 2030 goals.
All these policy/process changes and activities are ‘owned’ by individual Service
Areas and listed within Service Business Plans. This list of actions is not static

Page 46

and can be added to at any time and will need to be in order to continually
improve and deliver on our 2030 goals. The next official review and refresh of the
Strategy, date as published in the strategy document, is 2023/24.
4.6 Progress status updates on Service Business Plans are sought every quarter
which now include Climate and Ecological Change Strategy actions.
4.7 The Strategy is being delivered as a Programme with 8 work streams underneath
it. Under each work stream a set of deliberate projects will be developed and
delivered each financial year, subject to funding. The Programme status is
reported using RAG methodology every 6 weeks for the overall programme
(achieving 2030 goals) and for the projects being delivered during that particular
financial year (2021/22). The in-year status RAG is currently “YellowExperiencing Obstacles”. The step change in pace and scale of projects being
delivered in 2021/22 compared to previous years is highly commended but delay
in mobilisation has meant a delay in benefit realisation resulting in the yellow
RAG status (1 down from green).
4.8 See Appendix 4 for an update on Council progress on this agenda since the
Emergency Declaration in 2019 and projects delivered in Year 1 in newsletter
form which exemplifies the progressive and commendable work.
4.9 DCC was audited by Audit Wales in December 2020 to June 2021 on its ability to
deliver on its environmental ambitions, including how the Council plans to
integrate, embed, measure, and communicate its environmental ambitions. Audit
Wales’ findings were highly positive and further information can be viewed via
Governance and Audit Committee report (26th January 2022).
4.10 There is a recommendation from the Climate Change and Ecological Emergency
Political Working Group, supported by the Lead Members, to continue the group
following election in May 2022, reflecting on the positive impact such a working
group has had working with officers. The Terms of Reference for the Climate
Change and Ecological Emergency Political Working Group is provided in
Appendix 5. If Council agree in principal to this recommendation, Democratic
Services would ask, following the May elections, for political grouping to
nominate 2 representatives for the working group and would support the first
meeting including the nomination of chair and vice chair.
4.11 A draft outline plan for inducting Members of the new Council after the May 2022
elections on this agenda is provided in Appendix 6 and feedback is welcomed by
Councillors on this Council in readiness.

Page 47

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate
Priorities?
5.1 Year 1 of the Strategy will make a direct contribution to the current Environment
Priority within the Corporate Plan 2017-2022 (specifically 15% carbon reduction
target and planting 18,000 more trees by 2022).
5.2 It represents the delivery document for the Council achieving its aim of becoming
Net Carbon Zero and Ecologically Positive by 2030 in response to the Climate
Change and Ecological Emergency declared by the Council in 2019.
5.3 The Strategy will make our contribution to the Welsh Government policy for the
public sector to be carbon neutral by 2030, for Wales to meet its legally binding
target of reducing emissions to Net Zero by 2050 and supports the Council’s
statutory duty under Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 to “seek to
maintain and enhance biodiversity”.

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services?
6.1

Some changes and actions set out in the Strategy will require capital investment,
others revenue funding, and some delivered at no additional cost. Many of the
changes and actions will save the Council money over the long term. All
interventions will be individually financially appraised via capital business cases
and through revenue budget plans and processes. In 2021/22 £200,000 has
been allocated for staff and £189,000 for prudential borrowing repayments to
lever c.£2m of capital investment. Further investment of £0.440m in 2022/23
provides £0.233m for additional staff to undertake the necessary work and the
remaining £0.207m is to fund the revenue impact of capital spend (prudential
borrowing).

6.2 The council will not have to provide all of the money to deliver the Strategy itself.
We expect that grants from Welsh Government, National Government and
supporting bodies will be available to help fund the planned work over the 9
years. So far in 2021/22 the Council has attracted £849,049 of external funding
to deliver its programme of net carbon zero and ecologically positive work which
has reduced the prudential borrowing requirement on the Council from this
Programme.

Page 48

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact
Assessment?
7.1 The DCC Climate and Ecological Change Strategy and Action Plan in its very
nature of combating climate and ecological change has protecting and improving
the well-being of generations now and in the future at its heart. See Appendix 1
for full report.

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny
and others?
8.1 The Climate and Ecological Change Strategy (2020/21-2029/30) was consulted
on with Members in September/October 2020, with the public in
November/December 2020 and finally adopted unanimously by Council in
February 2021.
8.2 Actions within the Strategy have been subject to Scrutiny during 2021/22,
including at Communities Scrutiny in September 2021.
8.3 This paper has been coproduced with the Climate Change and Ecological
Emergency Political Working Group.

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement
9.1 Significant investment will be required to address the issues and ambition of the
Strategy. It is important that external sources of funding are maximised in order
to help lower the impact on the Council’s finances. As detailed in section 6, the
approved Budget for 2022/23 includes investment of £0.440m. Further medium
and long term investment will be considered during the Budget Process for
2023/24 and beyond as the detailed plans and funding schemes are put
together.

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to
reduce them?
10.1 Notable risks are included in Appendix 7.

11. Power to make the decision
11.1 See Appendix 8 for relevant powers.

Page 49

This page is intentionally left blank

Denbighshire County Council's Climate
and Ecological Change Strategy (20212030)
Well-being Impact Assessment Report
This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental and cultural well-being of
Denbighshire, Wales and the world.
Assessment Number:

Brief description:

Date Completed:
Completed by:
Responsible Service:
Localities affected by the
proposal:

802
The Strategy is all about the Council achieving Net Carbon Zero and Ecologically Positive by
2030. The document explains what we mean by those two goals, how the Council is currently
performing on both, what we hope 2030 will look like for the Council having achieved our goals
and the changes and actions we hope to deliver over the next 9 years, subject to the securing of
the necessary funds. The strategy contains a set of existing and new policies across the range of
Council services and operations that are supportive of low carbon, increased carbon
sequestration and biodiversity improvement. The Strategy covers the years 2021/22 – 2029/30
and outline the projects/activities the Council intends to deliver, subject to the securing of the
necessary funds, to work towards achieving our net carbon zero and ecologically positive Council
goals. Note: The scope of the strategy is council owned emissions and council owned landcoverage isn't the whole of Denbighshire as a geographical county.
01/02/2021 15:18:40 Version: 2
Helen Vaughan-Evans
Business Improvement & Modernisation
Whole County,

Who will be affected by the
proposal?

- DCC Staff - DCC Councillors - DLL Staff - Schools - Those who use our buildings - Those who use
our vehicles (fleet car, pool cars etc) - Our supply chain - Shared Services - Those who use or
would like to use our open green spaces - Wildlife - DCC Volunteers - Residents, visitors,
businesses, landlords who may use a more 'green' service from us in the future.

Was this impact assessment
completed as a group?

Yes

Page 51

IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider how the proposal is applying the
sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are
met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach
( 3 out of 4 stars ) Actual score : 33 / 36.

Summary for each Sustainable Development principle

Long term

Prevention

Long term thinking and securing legacy has been a central pillar in development and collation of
the final strategy document. The postcards from the future provide clarity on a 2030 net carbon
zero and ecologically positive council. Designing out carbon use and natures decline is at the
forefront of policy changes suggested to then maximise benefit for the long term. Legacy
considered through rolling out carbon literacy training and embedding change in Council
constitution.
The strategy outlines where, what, how and when in terms of policy change, projects and activities
needed for the Council to make its contribution to reducing carbon emissions and increasing carbon
sequestration to prevent the problem of climate change getting any worse and to improve
biodiversity to combat and prevent natures decline.

Integration

Integration with other goals, priorities and objectives have been considered in the development
and collation of this strategy. The supporting strategies section provides the links to other agendas.
Maximising cobenefits has been a central pillar in the proposed policy changes and actions within
document. References to the local development plan and ambitions for the revised LDP to actively
contribute to tackling climate and ecological change within the document.

Collaboration

The document is for Council own emissions and council owned land and collaboration has been
mainly internal but broad- involving every service area, SLT, Cabinet and MAG. Ideas within the
strategy originate in part to public engagement exercise conducted in January/February 2020 and
final document shaped by public consultation in November/December 2020.

Involvement

Ideas within the strategy originate in part to public engagement exercise conducted in
January/February 2020 and final document shaped by public consultation in November/December
2020. Online discussion forums on the Council's Consultation Portal are being used to continue
involvement and dialogue with the public. Internally staff are and will continue to be brought into
task and finish groups to shape thinking and actions as we deliver the strategy.

Summary of impact
Well-being Goals
A prosperous Denbighshire
A resilient Denbighshire
A healthier Denbighshire
A more equal Denbighshire
A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
A globally responsible Denbighshire

Positive
Positive
Positive
Neutral
Positive
Neutral
Positive

Main conclusions
The net carbon zero and ecologically positive are 2030 goals and the DCC’s Climate and Ecological Change Strategy is for a 9-year
period 2021/22-2029/30 so it engenders long term thinking at its core. It outlines the action needed over next 9 years to ensure DCC
contributes to mitigating climate and ecological change impacts now and for future generations.
Under the five delivery principles of the Well-being of Future Generations Act the Strategy scored 3 out of 4 stars (actual score 33/36).
To maintain the score, it will be important to continue the collaborative and integrated approach in its delivery both internally across
the Council and in consultation with the public.
Against the seven well-being goals of the Act, the potential impact of the Strategy is evaluated as 5 Positive and 2 Neutral. The
strategy in its very nature of combating climate and ecological change has protecting and improving the well-being of generations
now and in the future at its heart and the delivery of the programme will continue to maximise on the opportunities to do just that.
To ensure the realisation of this benefit, the programme should take a long term view on maintaining and managing anything that is
put in/delivered/created and also to continue to involve residents and communities in delivering the Council's programme. This could
include sharing learning so they themselves can deliver action to tackle climate and ecological change in their personal lives and
within their communities. The Council will need to balance the ambitions of our local populous with the internal resource available.

Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

Page 52

We have consulted published research or guides that inform us about the likely impact of the proposal

We have involved an expert / consulted a group who represent those who may affected by the proposal
We have engaged with people who will be affected by the proposal

Page 53

THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE WORLD
A prosperous Denbighshire
Overall Impact
Justification for impact
Further actions required

Positive
Impact is a positive one due to the direct positive impact on generating a low carbon society, the
improvement in infrastructure and transport and the knock on benefits around economic
development, jobs and skills.
It will be important to minimise any negatives around any potential reduction in office
accommodation.

Positive impacts identified:
This strategy is all about reducing carbon and increasing carbon sequestration (carbon absorbed by
Council owned and operated land).

A low carbon society

We will aim to reduce our carbon from our supply chain, buildings, fleet, business travel,
commuting, street lighting, waste.
Our learning will be shared with the public and partners.
Our staff and councillor behaviour will be encouraging for low carbon both professionally and
personally.
Investment in our buildings to reduce carbon will increase the quality of them.

Quality communications,
Investment in low carbon transport and travel to support staff and councillors to choose low carbon
infrastructure and transport travel options.
Protection, restoration and creation of green spaces to provide infrastructure for well being.
Economic development

Leveraging environmental benefit in local communities via procurement and engagement with our
supply chain.
Low carbon purchasing may increase spend in more local suppliers.

Quality skills for the long
term

Quality jobs for the long
term

Childcare

Investment in carbon literacy training for staff and councillors which will improve their skill and
knowledge.
Carbon sequestration and ecological improvement projects will provide volunteer opportunities for
existing volunteers and new.
The strategywill be delivered as a programme and is creating 4 permanent job roles and generate
work for existing staff within project management.
The programme will target the securing of external funding which will create jobs to deliver those
particular projects/initiatives.
Encouragement and strengthening of flexible working for staff and councillors will enable positive
choices for staff in making work work around other responsibilities.

Negative impacts identified:
No negative impacts. This strategy is all about reducing carbon and increasing carbon
A low carbon society
sequestration.
Quality communications,
There may be a reduction in the number of buildings the Council own and operate in the County
infrastructure and transport which potentially could impact on the footfall of people supporting rural towns.
Economic development
Reducing travel potentially impacting footfall in local town locations.
Quality skills for the long
Potential automation or/and reduction of some tasks, loss of those skills.
term
Quality jobs for the long
Additional new jobs could be temporary in nature if predominately externally funded.
term
Childcare
N/A

A resilient Denbighshire
Overall Impact

Positive
The Strategy will contain policies to reset the default in favour of low carbon, increasing carbon
sequestration, protecting and restoring biodiversity and creating resilient ecosystems.

Justification for impact

It will contain projects to deliver specific improvement actions.
A biodiversity enhancing approach is often a more hands off approach with associated revenue
savings. Similarly the reduction of energy and fuel consumption will reduce cost.

Page 54

Further actions required

A holistic view around carbon reduction is required to ensure any unintended consequences are
avoided in terms of deliberate action taken. Read across from the strategy to work being
undertaken in the sphere of climate change adaptation will be required (e.g. Flooding). Taking a
whole life cost approach to projects and procurement decisions will be important and ensuring
maintenance/management costs of any new green spaces is properly explored and reduced as
much as possible via appropriate land management choices.

Positive impacts identified:
The Strategy will contain policies to reset the default in favour of protecting and restoring
biodiversity and creation resilient ecosystems.
Biodiversity and the natural
It will contain projects to deliver specific improvement actions.
environment
A biodiversity enhancing approach is often a more hands off approach with associated revenue
savings.
Biodiversity in the built
environment

The Strategy will contain policies to reset the default in favour of protecting and restoring
biodiversity and creation resilient ecosystems.
It will contain projects to deliver specific improvement actions.
The Strategy will contain policies to support the reduction of waste and the increase in reuse and
recycling.

Reducing waste, reusing
and recycling

It will contain projects to deliver specific improvement actions in these areas.
Reducing carbon in our supply chain should also support reducing waste as whole life costing will
discover products/services which have a longer operating life.
The Strategy will contain policies to reset the default in favour of low carbon .

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption

It will contain projects to deliver specific improvement actions to reduce energy use in our
buildings and fuel consumption in our fleet. It will also target reduction of energy and fuel
consumption in our business travel and staff commuting.
Energy/fuel reduction project not only reduce carbon but also reduce cost through reduced
consumption.
The strategy has been developed in consultation and engagement with the public.

People’s awareness of the
environment and
biodiversity

Opportunities to continue the discussion and debate with the public will be taken via online
discussion forums on our county conversation portal, a 6 monthly newsletter and an annual public
engagement event.
Opportunities will be taken to include learning from our work into school eco committees,
geography curriculum, youth forums.
Biodiversity and carbon sequestration projects could involve volunteers and will create spaces for
nature and focus for awareness and education.
Contributing to the reduction of carbon and mitigate the impacts of climate change will contribute
to not making the flooding situation worse from rain and weather events.

Flood risk management

Opportunities will be taken to link the carbon sequestration and ecological improvement agendas
to reducing surface water, fluvial and coastal flooding e.g. upland management (tree planting),
installation of urban rain gardens.

Negative impacts identified:
Biodiversity and the natural Need to ensure if we create any new woodlands, for example, that management plan is deliverable
environment
in terms of capability and capacity.
Biodiversity in the built
Need to ensure any Green Infrastructure installed is fit for purpose and properly maintained
environment
Reducing waste, reusing
Products that have a longer life may cost more upfront but cost less over the lifetime of the
and recycling
product.
Ensure that reducing energy/fuel use in one area doesn't increase energy/fuel use in another e.g.
Reduced energy/fuel
reducing business travel and staff commuting by more home working which increases carbon
consumption
generated in the home over and above what is saved.
People’s awareness of the
environment and
biodiversity

The scope of the strategy and action plan is council owned emissions and council owned landcoverage isn't the whole of Denbighshire as a geographical county.
Use of the online Y Portal only could preclude those lacking in digital skills and connectivity the
opportunity for further engagement on the development of future projects under this proposal.
This strategy is about carbon reduction and climate mitigation rather than focused on climate
adaptation.

Flood risk management
Collaborative working with Flood Risk Management to understand the environmental and broader
climate change impacts of flood mitigation is required.

A healthier Denbighshire

Page 55

Overall Impact

Positive
The strategy aims to protect and restore existing nature spaces and create new ones.

Justification for impact

Access to local green space has been linked to better social outcomes around health and wellbeing.
Spaces will aim to be restored and created via the use of volunteers.

Further actions required

Positive impacts identified:
A social and physical
environment that encourage
and support health and
well-being
Access to good quality,
healthy food

Need to ensure any green spaces created are designed with all users in mind including biodiversity.

The strategy will aim to protect and restore existing nature spaces and create new ones.
Access to local green space has been linked to better social outcomes around health and wellbeing.
Action may fall out of this work to increase use of allotments in schools and the use of this food in
school catering.
The strategy and action plan will aim to protect and restore existing nature spaces and create new
ones.

People’s emotional and
mental well-being

Access to local green space has been linked to better social outcomes around health and wellbeing.

Access to healthcare

Carbon sequestration and biodiversity improvement work will involve volunteers. Volunteering and
getting involved has been linked to increase sense of well being.
There may be a reduction in health related issues as people are outdoors (e.g. providing options
for social prescribing)

Participation in leisure
opportunities

Carbon sequestration and biodiversity improvement work will involve volunteers- an active leisure
option.
The strategy will aim to protect and restore existing nature spaces and create new ones. This will
aim to improve and offer more options for local green spaces for leisure.

Negative impacts identified:
A social and physical
environment that encourage Need to ensure any spaces for nature that are created are inclusive spaces and any anti social
and support health and
behaviour concerns designed out from the outset.
well-being
Access to good quality,
N/A
healthy food
Need to endeavour to ensure spaces and views are protected that mean a lot to people. e.g. trees
aren't planted which then block a cherished view.
People’s emotional and
mental well-being
There could be a negative impact on those required to work from home as a result in reduction of
office space/ location. Due to digitalisation of services there could be a negative impact on
wellbeing due to less physical/ face to face contact, increasing social isolation.
Access to healthcare
N/A
Participation in leisure
Access for leisure needs to be balanced with requirements for land management of the space for
opportunities
biodiversity improvement.

A more equal Denbighshire
Overall Impact
Justification for impact
Further actions required

Positive impacts identified:
Improving the well-being of
people with protected
characteristics. The nine
protected characteristics
are: age; disability; gender
reassignment; marriage or
civil partnership; pregnancy
and maternity; race; religion
or belief; sex; and sexual
orientation
People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

Neutral
Limited deliberative action on this wellbeing goal. However the strategy will have a positive
influence in bringing about better outcomes for all people.
For the strategy to have more impact on this well-being goal we would need to increase its scope
to include supporting the reduction of emissions from the county of Denbighshire as well as the
County Council.

Enshrined in the ethos of the strategy is for DCC to make its contribution to reduce further climate
change which will be damaging to the wellbeing of all people but particularly those young people
who will need to live with climate change impacts the longest.
Enshrined in the strategy and action plan is taking a long term view.

N/A

Page 56

People affected by socioeconomic disadvantage and N/A
unequal outcomes
Areas affected by socioeconomic disadvantage

The protection, restoration and creation of new green spaces in urban as well as rural locations will
provide access to spaces for exercise and recreation. People in deprived areas will benefit from a
reduction of travel and the conversion of miles into low carbon options will improve air quality and
reduce congestion.

Negative impacts identified:
Improving the well-being of
people with protected
characteristics. The nine
protected characteristics
are: age; disability; gender If more services are digitalised, consideration would need to be given to accessibility to mitigate
reassignment; marriage or any possible negative impact for those with disabilities.
civil partnership; pregnancy
and maternity; race; religion
or belief; sex; and sexual
orientation
People who suffer
discrimination or
N/A
disadvantage
People affected by socioeconomic disadvantage and The strategy does not target carbon reduction/fuel poverty of those in private rented/social
housing/privately owned homes.
unequal outcomes
Areas affected by socioeconomic disadvantage

N/A

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for impact

The development of the strategy has involved the public from the outset via the emergency
declaration to the public engagement period in early 2020 and strategy consultation in
November/December 2020. There is an active group of c.93 members of the public who are
engaged on this agenda with regular 2 way dialogue with DCC. Increasing low carbon travel
options and the quality and quantity of green spaces will have a positive impact on the
attractiveness of local areas, connected communities and rural resilience.

Further actions required

Need to ensure no one is left behind in the shift to digitalised services.

Positive impacts identified:
Safe
communities
N/A
and
individuals
Development of the Climate and Ecological Change Strategy started in January with the public engagement period
asking for the public’s feedback on the Council’s proposed net carbon zero and ecologically positive Council goals.
Summary of the responses received can be accessed here:https://countyconversation.denbighshire.gov.uk/uploadedfiles/Public%20Engagement%20Summary%20Report.pdf.
The DCC Staff Council have been asked for their ideas.
Workshops with each service area took place in June, July and August to gather ideas and information for policies
Community
and projects within each service function to support the Council in becoming net carbon zero and ecologically
participation positive by 2030.
and resilience
The final draft Climate and Ecological Change Strategy went out for public consultation during
November/December. Summary of the responses received can be accessed here:https://countyconversation.denbighshire.gov.uk/uploadedfiles/Public%20Consultation%20on%20Draft%20Strategy%20Summary%20Report.pdf
The Council will continue to engage with the public proactively, constructively and sensitively on this agenda being
very clear on the scope and scale of the Council’s targets. This will be via online discussion forums hosted by the
Council on our County Conversation platform, email digests to the 'green mailing group' and an annual public event.
The strategy will target the protection, restoration and creation of 'green' spaces and the access to quality natural
habitat across Denbighshire.

The
attractiveness
of the area
The strategy is about reducing carbon from business travel, staff commuting and fleet- reducing miles travelled and
converting as many miles to low carbon which will reducing pollution, improve air quality and reduce congestion.
Connected
The strategy may lead to projects relating to low carbon travel, e.g. bus provision/cycle ways, car share schemes
communities across the county to encourage people out of their cars.
Rural
resilience

The strategy will target the protection, restoration and creation of 'green' spaces and the access to quality natural
habitat across the whole of Denbighshire

Page 57

Negative impacts identified:
Safe communities and
N/A
individuals
There is a risk of not meeting public expectation on this agenda. Some sectors of the public would
Community participation
like DCC to be targeting reduction of the carbon emissions across the whole of Denbighshire as a
and resilience
county.
The attractiveness of the
area
Connected communities

Need to ensure we have the capability and capacity to manage and maintain whatever we put
in/install/create to ensure attractiveness for the long term
Need to ensure the staff and councillors feel connected even if there is more home working.

Rural resilience

As the Council continues to channel shift delivery to more online and less physical, need to make
sure that broadband infrastructure is sufficient in all areas of the county to support this. As well as
addressing any other possible barriers e.g. access to services, digital skillset.

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
Overall Impact
Justification for impact
Further actions required

Neutral
Whilst Denbighshire's natural environment is a big contributor to the culture and heritage of the
county, the strategy will not deliver direct deliberative action to generate a vibrant culture or a
thriving Welsh language.
Ensure a good amount of time is provided to support welsh translation of any technical/specialist
terminology documents.

Positive impacts identified:
People using Welsh
N/A
All literature, signage, information boards will be provided in both Welsh and English.
Promoting the Welsh
Any public meetings will have bilingual slides and translator.
language
Consultation/ Online forums to be carried out bilingually
Reducing the running cost of culture and heritage sites by reducing energy and fuel use will
contribute to the financial viability of these sites/services.
Culture and heritage
Protecting and restoring natures landmarks as part of this programme will support their availability
for future generations.
Negative impacts identified:
People using Welsh
N/A
Promoting the Welsh
Specialist terminology is sometimes difficult to translate.
language
Consideration needs to be given to what is and isn’t permissible on buildings within conservation
Culture and heritage
area.

A globally responsible Denbighshire
Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for impact

Our carbon footprint includes our supply chain and the strategy will target reduction of carbon
emissions from our supply chain. This has the potential to stimulate local supply chains and provide
local benefit. The programme will also look to leverage environmental benefit at the community
level via Community Benefits process which will include the supported delivery of carbon
sequestration and biodiversity enhancing projects.The delivery of the climate and ecological
change programme will be done in collaboration with neighbouring authorities and partners where
possible.

Further actions required

Need to ensure the climate and ecological change strategy is understood by our partners and
neighbouring authorities so opportunities for collaboration are identified and progressed. Build in
time for collaboration.

Positive impacts identified:
The strategy will target reduction of carbon emissions from our supply chain. This will lead to the
development of low carbon encouraging specification for goods and services which will include
transportation from point of origin to us as the client. This has the potential to stimulate local
Local, national, international supply chains and provide local benefit.
supply chains
The programme will also look to leverage environmental benefit at the community level via
Community Benefits process which will include the supported delivery of carbon sequestration and
biodiversity enhancing projects.
Human rights
N/A

Page 58

The strategy will help support the Public Service Board (PSB) in the delivery of their
"Environmental Resilience" goal.
Broader service provision in The procurement service is a shared service with Flintshire County Council (FCC) and so work to
the local area or the region decarbonise our supply chain can lead to more joint procurement and benefit in both counties.
The strategy and action plan will provide the narrative on which to seek external funding which we
can do collaboratively across the region.
The strategy outlines where, what, how and when in terms of policy change, projects and activities
needed for the Council to make its contribution to reducing carbon emissions and increasing carbon
sequestration to prevent the problem of climate change getting any worse and to improve
biodiversity to combat and prevent natures decline.
Reducing climate change
The strategy will make our contribution to the Welsh Government policy for the public sector to be
carbon neutral by 2030, for Wales to meet its legally binding target of reducing emissions by at
least 95% by 2050 and supports the Councils statutory duty under Section 6 of the Environment
(Wales) Act 2016 to “seek to maintain and enhance biodiversity”.

Negative impacts identified:
Local, national, international The focus on local supply chain may mean spend on more national and international supply chains
supply chains
will reduce.
Human rights
N/A
Broader service provision in Collaboration can sometimes slow progress initially but can lead to better outcomes. Need to
the local area or the region programme in time for collaboration.
Reducing climate change
N/A

Page 59

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 2 – 2020/21 Performance of KPI’s under the
Strategy
NET CARBON ZERO COUNCIL BY 2030
Our goal is for the total carbon emitted by the Council minus the total carbon
absorbed from Council owned/leased and managed land to equal zero by 31st
March 2030.
The following sources of emissions will count towards our net carbon zero goal and
will be referred collectively as Denbighshire County Council’s Net Carbon Zero
Footprint:


Buildings



Waste generated in operations



Fleet



Staff commuting



Street lighting



Business travel

The following sources of carbon absorption will count towards our carbon zero goal:


Grassland the Council owns/leases and manages



Forest / woodland the Council owns/leases and manages

Indicator Title

Total carbon tonnage emitted
(Corporately) for the Net Carbon Zero
goal
BUILDINGS CO2
"Total carbon tonnage emitted
(Corporately) through buildings"

19/20
% carbon
(Baseline) reduction/
increase
(tonnes)
by 2030

16,448

10,151

Page 61

20/21
% carbon
Performanc reduction/
e (tonnes) increase
compared
to
baseline

- 55 %

12,642

-23 %

- 60 %

7,894

-22 %

Indicator Title

19/20
% carbon
(Baseline) reduction/
increase
(tonnes)
by 2030

FLEET CO2
"Total carbon tonnage emitted
(Corporately) through fleet"

2,693

WASTE CO2
"Total carbon tonnage emitted
(Corporately) through waste"

418

STAFF COMMUTING CO2
"Total carbon tonnage emitted
(Corporately) through staff
commuting"

20/21
% carbon
Performanc reduction/
e (tonnes) increase
compared
to
baseline

- 60%

2,086

-23 %

- 50 %

208

-50 %

- 20 %

1,719

-7 %

- 50 %

610

-23 %

- 80 %

126

-77 %

+ 203 %

2,365

-2 %

-

1,564.16

+0.03%

+ 575 %

801

-6 %

1,848

STREET LIGHTING CO2
"Total carbon tonnage emitted
(Corporately) through street
lighting"

788

BUSINESS TRAVEL CO2
"Total carbon tonnage emitted
(Corporately) through business
travel"

550

Total carbon tonnage sequestered
(Corporately) for the Net Carbon Zero
goal
GRASSLAND CARBON
ABSORBED
"Total carbon tonnage
sequestered (Corporately) through
grassland"
FOREST LAND CARBON
ABSORBED
"Total carbon tonnage
sequestered (Corporately) through
forestland"

2,418

1,564

854

Page 62

Indicator Title

19/20
% carbon
(Baseline) reduction/
increase
(tonnes)
by 2030

Net Carbon Zero- total carbon
tonnage emitted minus total carbon
tonnage sequestered

14,030

20/21
% carbon
Performanc reduction/
e (tonnes) increase
compared
to
baseline

n/a

10,277

-27 %

SUPPLY CHAIN PLUS TARGET BY 2030
The Council aims to reduce the carbon emitted from our supply chain by 35%. We
will work with companies and businesses who we buy our goods and services from
to reduce the carbon intensity of what we buy and how we deliver services and also
to maximise on the local community benefit we can generate from those contracts.

Indicator Title

Total carbon tonnage emitted
(Corporately) through supply
chains

19/20
(Baseline)

% carbon
reduction
by 2030

22,710

- 35 %

20/21
% carbon
Performance reduction/
(tonnes)
increase
compared
to
baseline

22,202

-2.2 %

ECOLOGICALLY POSITIVE COUNCIL BY 2030
To achieve our Ecologically Positive goal, the Council needs to increase the
percentage of our owned and operated land that has a higher species richness.

This can be achieved by restoring and changing how we manage land that we
currently own and operate to increase species diversity, and by increasing the land
ownership therefore creating new spaces (ecological niches) for nature.
The Council’s percentage of owned and operated land in the lowest categories of
species richness should be lower than the percentage of Council owned and

Page 63

operated land is in the highest categories of species richness for the Council to
achieve its Ecologically Positive goal.

Indicator Title

19/20
(Baseline)

2030 target
%

20/21
Performanc
e

%

% increase/
decrease
compared
to baseline

%
Percentage of DCC owned
and operated land in lowest
categories of species
richness

62 %

49 %

Percentage of DCC owned
and operated land in highest
categories of species
richness

38 %

51 %

Page 64

61.86 %

-0.58 %

38.14 %

+0.58 %

Appendix 3 – Adjustment of our targeted delivery pathway
within our Net Carbon Zero goal following learning from
Covid-19 2020/21 year.
a) Carbon Reduction in Buildings- 2030 target increased from 50% to 60%
b) Carbon Reduction in Waste- 2030 target increased from 35% to 50%
c) Carbon Reduction in Staff commuting- 2030 target reduced from 55% to 20%
d) Carbon Reduction in Street lighting- 2030 target increased from 50% to 55%
e) Increase in Carbon Sequestration- 2030 target reduced from 324% to 203%

Page 65

This page is intentionally left blank

Climate & Ecological Change Newsletter
Nantglyn wildflower meadow

Welcome to the second instalment of the Climate and
Ecological Change Newsletter to update on Denbighshire
County Council’s actions to respond to the climate change and
ecological emergency.
Denbighshire County Council declared a Climate Change and Ecological Emergency in
July 2019. In response, by 31 March 2030, the Council aims to become a:
•

Net Carbon Zero Council

•

Ecologically Positive Council

•

Reduce supply chain emissions by 35%

The Climate and Ecological Change Strategy 2021-22 to 2029-30 tells you more about
those two aims and the tasks we are going to seek to deliver to achieve our 2030
goals. This strategy was formally adopted by Council in February 2021.

Page 67
Issue 002

February 2022

Climate & Ecological Change Newsletter

Projects and activities to meet the aims are being delivered across Denbighshire County
Council. This newsletter showcases some of the excellent work, projects and interventions
to reduce the Council’s carbon emissions, increase council’s carbon sequestration and
improve biodiversity as part of Year 1 of strategy delivery and achieving our 2030 goals.
Not every project is mentioned and there is some excellent and progressive work taking
place in active travel and decarbonisation of our retained council housing not included
here.

Carbon reduction in buildings
At Ysgol Dinas Bran, Llangollen, solar PV panels and LED lighting has been installed,
together with upgrading heating controls to enable better zoning of temperature in
classrooms. This will decrease the carbon emissions at the site by approximately 18%
(72.6 tonnes per year) and bring the emissions of Ysgol Dinas Bran to a similar level as
the modern Rhyl High School. The Ysgol Dinas Bran project was mentioned by MPs in
Westminster at PM questions.

Page 68
climatechange@denbighshire.gov.uk

Climate & Ecological Change Newsletter

At Pavilion Theatre, Rhyl, there is now a 19.6 kW PV array on the roof. LED lighting is
being installed in the auditorium and the project includes the upgrading of the boiler and
heating and ventilation system. These will decrease the carbon emissions at the site by
approximately 30% (173.2 tonnes per year).

The project underway at Betws Gwerfil Goch primary school will show what can be
achieved at sites not connected to the gas network. The oil boiler is being replaced with an
Air Source Heat Pump. This is complemented by a solar PV array on roof and battery
storage. The project will decrease the carbon emissions at the site by 7 tonnes per year.

Page 69
climatechange@denbighshire.gov.uk

Climate & Ecological Change Newsletter

Carbon reduction in transport
The pilot Electric Taxi Scheme gives licensed taxi drivers in Denbighshire the chance to
trial a fully electric, wheelchair-accessible taxi for 30 days and view the financial and
environmental benefits of zero-emission vehicles. The pilot runs until the end of March
2022 in Prestatyn and Rhyl. It was featured on the 6.30pm BBC Wales News in the lead
up to COP26 in November 2021.

Electric Vehicle (EV) charge points for use by the public are going to be installed in
eight council run public car parks in Denbigh, St Asaph, Llangollen, Ruthin, Prestatyn and
Rhyl. They are due to be available for use in Spring 2022.

Page 70
climatechange@denbighshire.gov.uk

Climate & Ecological Change Newsletter

This spring we are also installing charging points at several of our offices and depots to
support the transition of fleet vehicles to electric. The transition of 30 cars/small vans has a
predicted reduction in carbon emissions of 30.74 tonnes CO2e per year.

Page 71
climatechange@denbighshire.gov.uk

Climate & Ecological Change Newsletter

Carbon reduction in waste
In summer 2021 the Reuse Hub Shop at Rhyl waste and recycling park was opened.
This helps to prevent textiles, bric a brac, furniture and small electrical items from
otherwise entering the waste stream and increases the number of items being re-used
instead.

Carbon reduction in supply chain
This year we have been testing approaches and running a pilot to evaluate carbon data
as part of procurement of goods and services. This includes standard wording in tender
documents about the Council’s declared climate and ecological emergency and asking
suppliers to submit carbon performance data at tender and annually thereafter.

Page 72
climatechange@denbighshire.gov.uk

Climate & Ecological Change Newsletter

Carbon sequestration
The County Tree Nursery created at St Asaph will providing up to 5,000 tree saplings of
local provenance a year to plant across the county. This will reduce supply chain
emissions by not buying trees from other part of the UK as well as contributing to carbon
sequestration. Growing and planting locally sourced trees will increase biosecurity by
dramatically reducing the risk of spreading disease eg ash dieback. It will also lead to
ecological improvement through the tree nursery producing local provenance native trees
including species such as the black poplar, which is rarer than the giant panda. There is
also wildflower seed cultivation being carried out.
The County Tree Nursery site itself has been designed as a demonstration for learning, eg
a sustainable drainage system (SuDS). The photo shows two polytunnels with an oak
sapling in the foreground. We think this natural regeneration was assisted by a jay seen in
the area.

Page 73
climatechange@denbighshire.gov.uk

Climate & Ecological Change Newsletter

The Council is progressing woodland creation at four sites in our ownership at Rhyl,
Dyserth and Ruthin. Over 14 hectares of broadleaf woodland will be created with at least
20% tree canopy coverage to be achieved, and with much of the remaining land to be put
to neutral or calcareous grassland. The woodland will incorporate ponds, outdoor
classrooms, seating and aspects for ecology such as bird/bat boxes and owl posts. They
are forecast to sequester around 76 tonnes of carbon after 20 years.

Ecologically positive
There are now 58 managed wildflower meadow sites that contribute to our improved
species richness ambitions. These sites, along with our 11 roadside nature reserves,
contribute to approximately 20 hectares (equivalent to 30 football pitches) of native
wildflower habitat in Denbighshire. After just one year of changing management at these
sites, we have recorded common spotted orchids in Stryd y Brython, Ruthin, as well as
hound's-tongue and toothed medick at two of our Prestatyn sites. Toothed medick had
never had a confirmed record in Wales and hound's-tongue is a near-threatened plant on
the GB red list and has only been recorded 18 times in Denbighshire in the last 116 years.

Page 74
climatechange@denbighshire.gov.uk

Climate & Ecological Change Newsletter
This project also contributes to the Council’s Bee Friendly status, signed up to in 2018,
aimed at supporting the recovery of bees and other pollinators. The signage artwork was
designed by a Denbighshire pupil.
The wildflower meadow project now includes sites in Prestatyn, Rhyl, Meliden, Rhuddlan,
Dyserth, Rhewl, Denbigh, Henllan, Nantglyn, Llanferres, Llanrhaeadr, Pwllglas, Ruthin,
Corwen, Cynwyd and Llangollen.

Page 75
climatechange@denbighshire.gov.uk

Climate & Ecological Change Newsletter

Behaviour Change
Behaviour Change underpins all our work to reduce carbon, increase carbon sequestration
and improve biodiversity to reach Net Carbon Zero and Ecologically Positive Council by
2030.
We have invested in Carbon Literacy Training as an organisation. In total, 206 learners
completed a 1-day accredited Carbon Literacy Training, including Councillors, CEO,
Senior & Middle Managers and Project Managers. We also have an Introduction to Climate
Change e-learn. By the end of September 2021, 252 officers had completed this e-learn
module from across the council, including staff/teachers based in schools. Our
commitment to staff training on this topic has been recognised by the Carbon Literacy
Project. In September 2021 the Council was awarded Carbon Literate Organisation
Bronze status.

Page 76
climatechange@denbighshire.gov.uk

Climate & Ecological Change Newsletter

Part of the work on Behaviour Change has been regular internal communication. This
includes intranet pages, a link on front page of intranet and corporate website, regularly
featuring in daily staff emails and appearing in IT system sign in banners. Staff pledges
were publicised during COP26 including this one from our CEO, providing a role model in
behaviour change contributing to reaching Net Carbon Zero and Ecologically Positive
Council by 2030.

The Climate Change team offered two-hour workshops for Service Away Days. This is a
deep dive into linking the climate and ecological emergency to service areas and
discovering where staff/teams can contribute. Practical changes coming from these
include Working Denbighshire Team idea: reusing reprocessed bikes from the Police to
give to individuals to get to job interviews and work.

We ran an intensive COP26 engagement campaign during the fortnight COP26 UN
Conference on Climate Change was hosted in Glasgow in November 2021, including
public webinars, social Media Campaign and providing COP26 Resource.

Page 77
climatechange@denbighshire.gov.uk

Climate & Ecological Change Newsletter

Our online Business Breakfast convened speakers from North Wales Mersey Dee
Business Council, The Rhug Estate, Anglesey Sea Zoo and Celtic Financial Planning Ltd.

“Good to see local authorities being proactive with businesses.”
We hosted a public webinar on Becoming a Carbon Zero Community. We were delighted
to host speakers from Centre for Alternative Technology, Friends of the Earth and St
Asaph Eco Churches to hear about their activities.
“..very interesting and well organised.”
“I found the overall atmosphere of the event (despite it being online), the exchange of
ideas, and reports of actions in combination very uplifting and also quite reassuring - in the
sense that there is a shared interest to move towards zero carbon.”

Our COP26 social media campaign shared information and promoted the council’s
climate and ecological change work each day based on the COP26 themes. Posts
included information about East Rhyl Coastal Flood Defence Scheme, Denbigh’s
Passivhaus project, our EV fleet and Eco taxi trial, Ysgol Dinas Bran greening project,
wildflower meadow biodiversity project, Ysgol Bro Cinmeirch COP26 video. Engagement
was high and most posts reached over 1,000 viewers.

Page 78
climatechange@denbighshire.gov.uk

Climate & Ecological Change Newsletter

A bilingual PDF resource with COP26
information and educational activity
ideas was provided to schools. Schools
have been sharing their work via social
media and by emailing the Climate Change
team. Activities included climate change
posters at Ysgol Cefn Meiriadog, COP26
class discussions at Ysgol Pen Barras, and
work on food miles by Ysgol Y Faenol at
their local Co-op. This was picked up and
shared by Co-op supermarket on Twitter.

For more information, see https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/environmentalhealth/climate-and-ecological-change/climate-and-ecological-change.aspx
How to get involved: Log in or register for Y Panel on County Conversation to get involved
and receive climate and ecological change updates and consultation information.

Page 79
climatechange@denbighshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 5 - Terms of Reference for the Climate Change
and Ecological Emergency Political Working Group

Climate Change and
Ecological Emergency
Working Group
Terms of Reference
28 July 2021

Page 81

Terms of Reference
Role and purpose
On the 2 July 2019 Denbighshire County Council passed the following motion:

Denbighshire County Council will:
o Immediately declare a climate and ecological emergency
o Commit to making the authority net carbon zero by 2030 at the latest
o Set up a task and finish group to draw up a clear plan within 6 months to
achieve the above, including ways to enhance biodiversity in Denbighshire
o Call on the Welsh Government and UK Government to provide assistance
and resources to enable us to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and
enhance biodiversity
o Work with partners across the public, private and third sector to help solve this
climate and ecological emergency
The Climate Change and Ecological Emergency Working Group was established in
October 2019 to be the task and finish group referred to in Council’s decision above
to ensure momentum to deliver the plan for 2030 delivery. This plan was formally
adopted by Council on 23rd February 2021 and called DCC’s Climate and Ecological
Change Strategy (2020/21 – 2029/30) [‘Strategy’].
At the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice Chairs 11th March 2021, Members passed the
recommendation to:


for the purpose of supporting the delivery of the Climate and Ecological
Change Strategy during its first year, the cross party Climate and Ecological
Change Working Group continue to meet for the duration of the current
Council’s term of office; and



the Group present a report to County Council during the Spring of 2022 on the
progress achieved to date, prior to the end of the current Council’s term of
office.

Page 82

The Working Group is an advisory, non-decision making body but may make
recommendations or requests to other Denbighshire County Council committees,
panels, lead members or officers as appropriate.
Its purpose is to:


Be a cross party political reference group for officers on the climate change
and nature recovery agenda



Provide challenge to ensure delivery of the Strategy



Champion the climate change and nature recovery agenda amongst
Councillors, within Political Groups and with constituents.

Membership
The Working Group membership is 8 county councillors, with 2 members appointed
by each of the 4 political groups on the Council. Any vacancies on the Working
Group will be filled by the leader of the political group whose member had vacated
their position.
A chair and vice chair of the Working Group will be appointed at the Working Group’s
first meeting.
The Working Group will seek to agree its decisions by consensus of the members
present. Where this is not possible and a vote is held, a decision will be determined
by a majority of the votes of those present. If there is an equality of votes the chair
presiding may – though is not obliged to - use a second or casting vote to resolve the
issue.

Quorum
The quorum for meetings of the working group will be 3 members of the working
group.

Attendance at Working Group meetings
Meetings of the Working Group will be private, internal meetings of the 8 county
councillors on the Working Group and the officers supporting the Group’s work.

Page 83

Attendance at working group meetings as observers by other county councillors will
be permitted. Contribution from observers will be permitted at the discretion of the
Chair.
Attendance by members of the public or the press will not be permitted except at the
specific invitation of the Working Group.
The Working Group will determine the frequency of its meetings.
The Working Group shall be entitled to request information or participation from
external groups, individuals and specialists.

Support for the Working Group
Officer support will include the Climate and Ecological Change Programme Senior
Responsible Owner, Climate Change Programme Manager, project management
and specialist officers.

Document Distribution and Access
The agenda and documents for Working Group meetings will be circulated to the
working Group, supporting officers and all councillors prior to each meeting. It is
intended to circulate agenda packs 3 clear working days before each meeting. The
agenda packs will be available from the mg intranet.
Working Group agenda will be available on the public website, including the meeting
minutes. The Working Group will authorise the communication of information arising
from its activities.

Page 84

Appendix 6 - Draft outline plan for inducting Members of
the new Council after the May 2022 elections on this
Climate and Ecological Change agenda
When

What
Crib sheet for prospective candidates (existing or new)

Before Elections


Setting context on climate change- this is what Council has
committed to- include this on a landing page for
prospective candidates on website.



Climate Change Team presence at any ‘candidate
roadshows’ planned.

Sessions with new Lead Member/s
First 2 months
after Elections



Introduction session in first couple of weeks once Cabinet
formed with Programme Sponsor and Programme
Manager



Touch bases at least monthly for first 6 months thereafter

Resource Pack for Councillors on the agenda


Messages just for Councillors on Linc

Standalone briefing sessions on the agenda


2 sessions, choice of dates/times, one during the day, one
during evening

Include mention/content on the agenda in other presentations/
induction sessions for Members


Climate and Ecological Change examples given within e.g.
How Council’s works/ Introduction to Scrutiny/ Licencing/
Planning training sessions provided by officers to Members

Page 85

Reconvening the Climate Change and Ecological Emergency
Political Working Group ASAP after elections (if agreed in
principal by Council)


If Council agree to recommendation in February 2022
Council meeting, to continue the group following election



Democratic Services ask for political grouping to nominate
2 representatives for group

Encouragement for all Members to complete the Introduction
to Climate Change E-Learn


Potential to seek agreement of Council post-election to
make this a mandatory requirement



Offer currently being developed “Introduction to Ecological
Change”- encourage that to be completed once available.

Encouragement for all Members to complete 1-day accredited
Carbon Literacy training


Potential to seek agreement of Council post-election to
make this a mandatory requirement for Cabinet Members
(who have not been trained in 2021)



All other Councillors who have not been trained in 2021
this would be optional



Offer currently being developed for Ecological Literacy.

Production and circulation of a series of 5 min topic videos


For example on:
o Introduction to Climate and Ecological Change
Strategy 2021-2030.
o Carbon Reduction Projects Showcase
o Carbon Sequestration Projects Showcase
o Biodiversity Improvement Projects Showcase

Page 86

Site Visits


Put on site visits and field trips for Members to Climate and
Ecological Change Projects, for example:
o To see wildflower meadow
o To see PV school project
o To see woodland creation projects
o To see County Tree Nursery

Phone calls with Leaders of Political Groupings - check in on
Month 4
onwards after

how the Climate and Ecological Change engagement has
landed

Elections


“Had a lot of training over past month, how are your group
feeling, anything you need to know more on?”.

Page 87

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 7 – Notable Risks
RISK

DESCRIPTION

MITIGATION ACTION

Affordability
of the Council
being able to
achieve its
net carbon
zero and
ecologically
positive
goals.

There is a risk that the
Council is unable to commit
or attract sufficient resource
(revenue and capital) to
coordinate the programme,
deliver net carbon zero and
ecologically positive projects
and deliver other projects in
an enhanced eco way
meaning funding bids are not
submitted, opportunities not
maximised, actions are not
delivered and benefits are not
realised.



Proactively seeking external
finance with Welsh
Government and Whitehall
Departments using the strategy
and action plan as our
narrative.



Submitting strong and
coordinated external funding
bids, working collaboratively
across the region as well as
across internal DCC
departments.



Early input into the Budget
Board on calls on revenue and
capital for the following
financial year.



Ongoing dialogue with Section
151 officer in relation to longer
financial plans via the Medium
Term Financial Plan.



Carbon Literacy Training and
ongoing support to officers to
factor in eco enhancement
from inception stage of
projects, building in sufficient
provision within external
funding bids.



Implementing whole life costing
into business case process to
capture fully the long term
costs and benefits of schemes.



Maximising on the delivery of
the many projects which save
both money and carbon
annually for the Council.

Page 89

RISK

Being
responsive to
new
opportunities
to reduce
carbon.

Meeting
Public
Expectation.

DESCRIPTION

MITIGATION ACTION

There is a risk that new
opportunities may arise
between now and 2030 that
we need to respond to that
will enable us to go further on
reducing our carbon
emissions, for example the
introduction of a readily
accessible new technology or
a major development in ways
to generate energy.

There is a risk of not meeting
public expectation on this
agenda and the democratic
and reputational damage that
could cause.

Page 90



Maximising on the delivery of
projects which deliver upon
COVID-19 recovery
requirements and carbon
saving for the Council.



Horizon scan and keep abreast
of developments within the
climate and energy sectors.



Annual review paper to Full
Council stating any major
changes impacting the
strategy.



Formally review and refresh
the strategy document every 3
years up until 2030 (2023/24
and 2026/27).



Continue to engage with the
public proactively,
constructively and sensitively
on this agenda being very clear
on the scope and scale of the
Council’s targets.



Through working with the
Public Service Board (PSB)
and community development
partners, support the public in
contributing personally to this
agenda at a community level.



Celebrating the Council’s
existing and continued success
in this agenda via press
releases/social media and
ensuring the public are aware
of the range of work the
Council are undertaking.

Appendix 8- Power to Make the Decision
1. Section 2, Local Government Act 2000 - the power to do anything which DCC
consider is likely to achieve the promotion or improvement of the environmental
well-being of their area.

2. Section111, Local Government Act 1972- the power to do anything which is
conducive to, or calculated to facilitate, the discharge of the Council’s functions.

3. Section 13.2, DCC Constitution - All decisions of the Council will be made in
accordance with the following principles: 13.2.8 having regard to tackling climate
and ecological change.

Page 91

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7

Report to

County Council

Date of meeting

22 February 2022

Lead Member / Officer

Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill / Steve Gadd, Head of Finance
and Property

Report author

Steve Gadd, Head of Finance and Property

Title

Council Tax 22/23 and Associated Matters

1. What is the report about?
In adopting the resolutions of the Council budget meeting of the 25 January 2022 it is
necessary for the Council to pass further resolutions in a particular form to ensure that the
Council Tax and its associated matters are legally valid.

2. What is the reason for making this report?
A decision is required to set the levels of Council Tax for 2022/23.

3. What are the Recommendations?
3.1. It is necessary for the County Council, as the Billing Authority, to consider the
precepts received from the Police & Crime Commissioner for North Wales and
the Town/Community Councils and declare the Council Tax levels for the
2022/23 financial year.
3.2. It is recommended that the amounts calculated by the Council for the 2022/23
financial year, in accordance with Sections 32 to 34 (1) of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992 (the Act) and Alteration of Requisite Calculations
(Wales) Regulations 2008 be as Appendix A section 3.
3.3. It is recommended that the amounts calculated by the Council for the 2022/23
financial year, in accordance with Sections 34 (2) to 36 (1) of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992 (the Act) be as Appendix A section 4.

Page 93

3.4. That the amounts of Council Tax for the 2022/23 financial year for each of the
categories of dwellings be as shown in Appendix C.
3.5. That the level of discount for Class A, B, and C as prescribed under the Council
Tax (Prescribed Class of Dwellings) (Wales) Regulations 2004 be set at zero for
the financial year 2022/23 with the caveat that this is dependent on no changes
to legislation or local conditions.

4. Report details
Due to the requirement to approve the resolution and recommendations in the prescribed
manner Appendix A contains the report details.

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate
Priorities?
If the recommendations are not approved the Authority will be unable to raise Council Tax
demands, therefore income required to fund Corporate Priorities will not be available.

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services?
The cost of raising and distributing Council Tax demands is met from within existing
resources.

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact
Assessment?
A wellbeing assessment for the Council Tax rise has been undertaken as part of the
budget process and formed part of the budget papers presented to Full Council on 25
January 2022.

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny
and others?
The level of Council Tax forms part of the budget set by the Council. In addition to regular
reports to the Corporate Governance Committee, the budget process has been considered
by SLT, Cabinet Briefing, Group Leaders and Council Briefing meetings. The School
Budget Forum have been included in the proposals throughout the year. Trade Unions
have been consulted through Local Joint Consultative Committee. The Covid pandemic
has continued to impact on the level of consultation and engagement with the public,

Page 94

however plans are in place to engage early with all stakeholders during the budget
process for 2023/24.

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement
The Council has a legal obligation to set a Council Tax. The regulations are prescriptive as
to how this is to be done and this report meets those requirements.

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to
reduce them?
The financial risk of being unable to collect Council Tax income. Collection rates are high
and are monitored closely throughout the year.

11. Power to make the decision
The Local Government Finance Act 1992 and Alteration of Requisite Calculations (Wales)
Regulations 2008.

Page 95

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A

1.0
1.1

SETTING THE COUNCIL TAX FOR 2022/23
Background.
At the Council meeting on the 25 January 2022 members considered and
approved Cabinet’s budget proposals and resulting impact on Council Tax for
next financial year.
The main features of the proposal included:















A positive settlement of +9.2% in the Council’s Local Government
revenue from Welsh Government.
A reduction in Welsh Government general capital funding of 15%.
The provision of additional resources for the impact of some inflationary
pressures.
An increase in funding to schools of £4.375m.
The provision of £3.127m in recognition of the continuing financial
pressures facing adult social care provision.
£0.750m to recognise existing pressures in Education and Children’s
Services relating to Out of County Placements and Recoupment.
Further pressures of £0.500m within School Transport have been
recognised.
Inflationary pressures met by operational efficiencies of £0.634m;
£0.120m increased income from Fees and Charges in line with the
agreed Fees and Charges policy; and increased Council Tax funding.
Investment in priorities amounting to £1.281m:
o Further investment in Carbon Zero Project of £0.440m
o Final increase required for the Rhyl Flood Scheme amounting to
£0.081m
o £0.235m increase to the Capital Finance Budget to support
increased investment in the Highways Capital Programme
o £0.175m to maintain the existing levels of Capital Spend within
the Block Allocations to make up for the shortfall in WG funding
o £0.350m to start to fund capital projects in year (e.g. those that
were brought forward by the Horizon Scanning exercise or that
came out of the new Corporate Plan)
Service non-strategic pressures of £1,111m
£0.300m to pay for DCC’s element of the ongoing budget requirement
for the new Corporate Joint Committee
A Covid contingency of £1.988m
Council also delegated authority to the Head of Finance and Property in
consultation with the Lead Member for Finance to adjust the use of cash
included in the budget proposals by up to £500k if there is movement
between the draft and final settlement figures in order to allow the setting
of Council Tax in a timely manner.

Page 97

1.2

Section 151 Officer’s statement
In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003 the
observations of the Section 151 Officer on the budget for 2022/23 are
required to be presented to members.
a) Robustness of Budget Estimates
The budget proposals for 2022/23 contain a level of financial estimates. This
is due to the uncertainty around the future impact upon the Council of
current economic events. A considered view has been taken on the level of
funding that services require and on the amount and timing of efficiency
savings.
I consider the budget proposals for 2022/23 to be sensible and robust.
b) Adequacy of Reserves
The level of general balances is stable and I consider they are broadly
appropriate given the financial risks that the council faces. Adequate general
balances are vital to protect the Council from unforeseen problems or inyear emergencies.
In adopting the resolutions of the Council meeting of the 25 January 2022
it will be necessary for the Council to pass certain further resolutions in
a particular form so as to ensure that the Council Tax and its associated
matters are legally valid. I attach a copy of the required resolutions and
request that these be approved.

1.3

The average increase for Council Tax bills (based on Band D) payable is:
2021/22
£

2022/23
£

Increase
%

Denbighshire County Council
1,436.76 1,479.16
Police & Crime Commissioner for North Wales
305.55
316.80
Town/Community Councils (Average)
55.21
57.49
Total
1,797.52 1,853.45

2.95
3.68
4.13
3.11

2.0

COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION
It is necessary for the County Council, as the Billing Authority, to consider the
precepts received from the Police & Crime Commissioner for North Wales and
the Town/Community Councils and declare the Council Tax levels for the
2022/23 financial year.

2.1

TOWN/COMMUNITY COUNCILS – PRECEPTS
The following precepts have been received:-

Page 98

2021/22
£
Aberwheeler
Betws Gwerfil Goch
Bodelwyddan
Bodfari
Bryneglwys
Cefn Meiriadog
Clocaenog
Corwen
Cyffylliog
Cynwyd
Denbigh
Derwen
Dyserth
Efenechtyd
Gwyddelwern
Henllan
Llanarmon yn Ial
Llanbedr D C
Llandegla
Llandrillo
Llandyrnog
Llanelidan
Llanfair D C
Llanferres
Llangollen Town
Llangynhafal
Llanrhaeadr Y C
Llantysilio
Llanynys
Nantglyn
Prestatyn
Rhuddlan
Rhyl
Ruthin
St. Asaph
Trefnant
Tremeirchion/Cwm/Waen
Total

3.0

3,600
3,117
30,000
3,840
6,255
6,180
5,996
68,700
7,722
4,986
229,944
6,000
46,000
7,625
3,600
16,044
22,440
15,000
9,984
4,338
10,688
6,049
29,169
15,150
144,795
4,000
12,576
10,664
8,976
5,500
495,960
166,000
553,611
151,260
101,869
5,255
15,201
2,238,094

2022/23
£
3,750
3,112
40,000
7,400
6,255
6,720
6,320
100,463
12,270
4,986
230,208
6,000
48,500
7,626
4,050
16,128
22,440
20,160
9,984
6,613
11,222
6,048
30,000
18,500
149,900
6,500
15,840
10,929
8,856
6,138
494,622
169,280
552,383
160,132
109,736
5,255
18,000
2,336,326

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL/TOWN AND COMMUNITY
COUNCILS - INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
It is recommended that the amounts calculated by the Council for the 2022/23
financial year, in accordance with Sections 32 to 36 of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992 (the Act) and Alteration of Requisite Calculations (Wales)
Regulations 2008 be as follows:-

Page 99

£
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

4.0

The aggregate of the amounts which the Council
estimates for the items set out in Section 32 (2) (a) to
(e) of the Act.

337,469,454

The aggregate of the amounts which the Council
estimates for the items set out in Section 32 (3) (a) to
(c) of the Act.

101,440,128

The amount by which the aggregate of Section 32 (2)
above, exceeds the aggregate of Section 32 (3)
above, calculated in accordance with Section 32 (4)
of the Act, as its budget requirement for the year.
The aggregate amount which the Council estimates
will be payable for the year into its general fund in
respect of redistributed non-domestic rates and
revenue support grant less cost of discretionary nondomestic rate reliefs.

236,029,326

173,577,029

The amount at (c) above less the amount at (d)
above, divided by council tax base for the year,
40,642.01, calculated by the Council in accordance
with Section 33 (1) of the Act, (i.e. basic amount
Council Tax).
The aggregate amount of all special items referred to
in Section 34 (1) of the Act (Town/Community
Council Precepts).
The amount at (e) above less the result given by
dividing the amount at (f) above by the council tax
base, calculated by the Council, in accordance with
Section 34 (2) of the Act, as the basic amount of its
Council Tax for the year for dwellings in those parts
of its area to which no special items relate.

1,536.64

2,336,326

1,479.16

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL/TOWN AND COMMUNITY
COUNCILS - COUNCIL TAX
It is recommended that the amounts calculated by the Council for the 2022/23
financial year, in accordance with Sections 34 (2) to 36 (1) of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992 (the Act) be as follows:(a) the amounts calculated in accordance with Sections 34 (2) and (3) of the
Act as the basic amounts of its Council Tax for the year for dwellings in part of
the Council's area:-

Page 100

COUNCIL TAX 2022/23 BAND 'D'
Community

Aberwheeler
Betws G G
Bodelwyddan
Bodfari
Bryneglwys
Cefn Meiriadog
Clocaenog
Corwen
Cyffylliog
Cynwyd
Denbigh
Derwen
Dyserth
Efenechtyd
Gwyddelwern
Henllan
Llanarmon yn Ial
Llanbedr D C
Llandegla
Llandrillo
Llandyrnog
Llanelidan
Llanfair D C
Llanferres
Llangollen Town
Llangynhafal
Llanrhaeadr Y C
Llantysilio
Llanynys
Nantglyn
Prestatyn
Rhuddlan
Rhyl
Ruthin
St. Asaph
Trefnant
Tremeirchion/ Cwm/Waen
(b)

County
Community
Council
Precept
£
£
1,479.16
21.07
1,479.16
19.95
1,479.16
47.62
1,479.16
35.07
1,479.16
35.95
1,479.16
32.00
1,479.16
50.16
1,479.16
99.96
1,479.16
51.99
1,479.16
17.62
1,479.16
66.00
1,479.16
25.10
1,479.16
41.24
1,479.16
26.48
1,479.16
18.00
1,479.16
42.00
1,479.16
37.71
1,479.16
40.00
1,479.16
32.00
1,479.16
20.35
1,479.16
21.92
1,479.16
36.22
1,479.16
48.62
1,479.16
45.01
1,479.16
80.29
1,479.16
19.01
1,479.16
30.00
1,479.16
43.20
1,479.16
24.00
1,479.16
36.98
1,479.16
63.74
1,479.16
98.88
1,479.16
57.66
1,479.16
63.52
1,479.16
72.10
1,479.16
7.66
1,479.16
26.71

Total
£
1,500.23
1,499.11
1,526.78
1,514.23
1,515.11
1,511.16
1,529.32
1,579.12
1,531.15
1,496.78
1,545.16
1,504.26
1,520.40
1,505.64
1,497.16
1,521.16
1,516.87
1,519.16
1,511.16
1,499.51
1,501.08
1,515.38
1,527.78
1,524.17
1,559.45
1,498.17
1,509.16
1,522.36
1,503.16
1,516.14
1,542.90
1,578.04
1,536.82
1,542.68
1,551.26
1,486.82
1,505.87

The amounts calculated in accordance with Section 36 (1) of the Act as the
amounts to be taken into account for the year in respect of dwellings listed in
different valuation bands. (Appendix B)

Page 101

5.0

Police & Crime Commissioner for North Wales - PRECEPT
The precept for the Police & Crime Commissioner for North Wales for 2022/23
is £12,875,389
In accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, it
is noted that the amounts applicable for the year in respect of dwellings listed
in different valuation bands are as follows :Valuation Bands

A
£
211.20

6.0

B
£
246.40

C
£
281.60

D
£
316.80

E
£
387.20

F
£
457.60

G
£
528.00

H
£
633.60

I
£
739.20

AGGREGATE COUNCIL TAX – 2022/23 (including Police & Crime
Commissioner for North Wales)
Having calculated the aggregates in each case of the amounts at 4.0 and 5.0
above in accordance with Section 30 (2) of the Local Government Finance Act
1992, it is
RECOMMENDED
That the amounts of Council Tax for the 2022/23 financial year for each of the
categories of dwellings be as shown in Appendix C.

7.0

PRESCRIBED CLASS OF DWELLINGS - THE COUNCIL TAX
(PRESCRIBED CLASS OF DWELLINGS) (WALES) REGULATIONS 1998 - SI
1998/105
AS AMENDED BY PRESCRIBED CLASS OF DWELLINGS - THE
COUNCIL TAX (PRESCRIBED CLASS OF DWELLINGS) (WALES)
(AMENDMENT) REGULATIONS 2004

7.1

In Wales, Section 12 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 creates a
special class of property (prescribed class of dwellings) which allows a local
billing authority to use its discretion in determining the level of discount to be
awarded. If a dwelling meets certain criteria, then a billing authority can set
the level of discount at either 25% or zero (i.e. no discount) for classes A & B,
50% or zero for class C.

7.2

The Council Tax (Prescribed Class of Dwellings)(Wales) Regulations 1998 as
amended 2004, has with effect from 1st April, 2004 designated three classes
of prescribed dwellings.
The classes are:-

Page 102

Class A.
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

Class B
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

Class C
a.
b.

A dwelling which is not the sole or main residence of an individual.
Dwelling which is furnished.
Occupation of the dwelling is prohibited by law for a continuous
period of at least 28 days in the relevant year.
Dwelling is not a mooring occupied by a boat or pitch occupied by a
caravan.
Dwelling is unoccupied and is managed by a personal representative in
relation to the administration of a deceased person.

A dwelling which is not the sole or main residence of an individual.
Dwelling which is furnished.
Occupation of the dwelling is not prohibited by law for a continuous
period of at least 28 days in the relevant year.
Dwelling is not a mooring occupied by a boat or pitch occupied by a
caravan.
Dwelling is unoccupied and is managed by a personal representative in
relation to the administration of a deceased person.

A dwelling which is unoccupied.
A dwelling which is substantially unfurnished.

7.3

The difference between the classes A and B is the fact Class B has
unrestricted occupation throughout 365 days a year whereas Class A is
restricted to a maximum of 11 months occupation in a year. E.g. planning
restriction as commonly applied to holiday chalets.

7.4

The main type of property covered by these regulations relate to furnished
dwellings and not someone's sole or main residence e.g. second homes.

7.5

Class C was introduced to end the Council Tax discount for chargeable
dwellings which are unoccupied and substantially unfurnished for periods
greater than 6 months.
This allows the Authority to levy a full charge once the initial 6 month
exemption period expires; this benefits Denbighshire residents in that
a. The property owner would be contributing a full charge
b. There is a financial incentive to the owner to occupy the property leading
to.
o The potential of increasing accommodation availability
o The reduction in the number of empty properties in communities

7.6

In the year 2009/2010 the Council resolved not to award a discount to Class
A, B or C for the remaining term of the Council with the caveat that this was
dependant on, no changes to Legislation or local conditions. The purpose of
this resolution enabled consistency in the calculation of the Tax Base, a
shorter report and the reduction in the volumes of paper produced.

Page 103

Council Tax Premium
Section 139 of the Housing Act 2014 allows for the Council to charge a
premium of up to 100%.
It was decided to introduce a 50% premium at Council on the 4th December
2017.Therefore, unless there are exceptions to be applied in accordance with
The Council Tax (Exceptions to Higher Amounts) (Wales) Regulations 2015,
Council Tax shall be charged at a premium rate of 50% above the standard
charge for properties defined as a ‘Second Homes’ or ‘Long Term Empty’
which has been empty for a continuous period of one year.

7.7

IT IS RECOMMENDED
That the level of discount for Class A, B, and C as prescribed under the
Council Tax (Prescribed Class of Dwellings) (Wales) Regulations 2004 be set
at zero for the financial year 2022/23 being the term of this Council with the
caveat that this is dependent on, no changes to Legislation or local conditions.
The Council Tax Premium continue for 2022/23 at a rate of 50%.

Page 104

Appendix B

2022/23
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNCIL COUNCIL

Page 105

COUNTY COMMUNITY TOTAL BAND A BAND B BAND C BAND D BAND E BAND F BAND G BAND H BAND I
PRECEPT PRECEPT
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
ABERWHEELER
1,479.16
21.07 1,500.23 1,000.15 1,166.85 1,333.54 1,500.23 1,833.61 2,167.00 2,500.38 3,000.46 3,500.54
BETWS G G
1,479.16
19.95 1,499.11 999.41 1,165.97 1,332.54 1,499.11 1,832.25 2,165.38 2,498.52 2,998.22 3,497.92
BODELWYDDAN
1,479.16
47.62 1,526.78 1,017.85 1,187.50 1,357.14 1,526.78 1,866.06 2,205.35 2,544.63 3,053.56 3,562.49
BODFARI
1,479.16
35.07 1,514.23 1,009.49 1,177.73 1,345.98 1,514.23 1,850.73 2,187.22 2,523.72 3,028.46 3,533.20
BRYNEGLWYS
1,479.16
35.95 1,515.11 1,010.07 1,178.42 1,346.76 1,515.11 1,851.80 2,188.49 2,525.18 3,030.22 3,535.26
CEFN MEIRIADOG
1,479.16
32.00 1,511.16 1,007.44 1,175.35 1,343.25 1,511.16 1,846.97 2,182.79 2,518.60 3,022.32 3,526.04
CLOCAENOG
1,479.16
50.16 1,529.32 1,019.55 1,189.47 1,359.40 1,529.32 1,869.17 2,209.02 2,548.87 3,058.64 3,568.41
CORWEN
1,479.16
99.96 1,579.12 1,052.75 1,228.20 1,403.66 1,579.12 1,930.04 2,280.95 2,631.87 3,158.24 3,684.61
CYFYLLIOG
1,479.16
51.99 1,531.15 1,020.77 1,190.89 1,361.02 1,531.15 1,871.41 2,211.66 2,551.92 3,062.30 3,572.68
CYNWYD
1,479.16
17.62 1,496.78 997.85 1,164.16 1,330.47 1,496.78 1,829.40 2,162.02 2,494.63 2,993.56 3,492.49
DENBIGH
1,479.16
66.00 1,545.16 1,030.11 1,201.79 1,373.48 1,545.16 1,888.53 2,231.90 2,575.27 3,090.32 3,605.37
DERWEN
1,479.16
25.10 1,504.26 1,002.84 1,169.98 1,337.12 1,504.26 1,838.54 2,172.82 2,507.10 3,008.52 3,509.94
DYSERTH
1,479.16
41.24 1,520.40 1,013.60 1,182.53 1,351.47 1,520.40 1,858.27 2,196.13 2,534.00 3,040.80 3,547.60
EFENECHTYD
1,479.16
26.48 1,505.64 1,003.76 1,171.05 1,338.35 1,505.64 1,840.23 2,174.81 2,509.40 3,011.28 3,513.16
GWYDDELWERN
1,479.16
18.00 1,497.16 998.11 1,164.46 1,330.81 1,497.16 1,829.86 2,162.56 2,495.27 2,994.32 3,493.37
HENLLAN
1,479.16
42.00 1,521.16 1,014.11 1,183.12 1,352.14 1,521.16 1,859.20 2,197.23 2,535.27 3,042.32 3,549.37
LLANARMON YN IAL
1,479.16
37.71 1,516.87 1,011.25 1,179.79 1,348.33 1,516.87 1,853.95 2,191.03 2,528.12 3,033.74 3,539.36
LLANBEDR D C
1,479.16
40.00 1,519.16 1,012.77 1,181.57 1,350.36 1,519.16 1,856.75 2,194.34 2,531.93 3,038.32 3,544.71
LLANDEGLA
1,479.16
32.00 1,511.16 1,007.44 1,175.35 1,343.25 1,511.16 1,846.97 2,182.79 2,518.60 3,022.32 3,526.04
LLANDRILLO
1,479.16
20.35 1,499.51 999.67 1,166.29 1,332.90 1,499.51 1,832.73 2,165.96 2,499.18 2,999.02 3,498.86
LLANDYRNOG
1,479.16
21.92 1,501.08 1,000.72 1,167.51 1,334.29 1,501.08 1,834.65 2,168.23 2,501.80 3,002.16 3,502.52
LLANELIDAN
1,479.16
36.22 1,515.38 1,010.25 1,178.63 1,347.00 1,515.38 1,852.13 2,188.88 2,525.63 3,030.76 3,535.89
LLANFAIR DC
1,479.16
48.62 1,527.78 1,018.52 1,188.27 1,358.03 1,527.78 1,867.29 2,206.79 2,546.30 3,055.56 3,564.82
LLANFERRES
1,479.16
45.01 1,524.17 1,016.11 1,185.47 1,354.82 1,524.17 1,862.87 2,201.58 2,540.28 3,048.34 3,556.40
LLANGOLLEN TOWN
1,479.16
80.29 1,559.45 1,039.63 1,212.91 1,386.18 1,559.45 1,905.99 2,252.54 2,599.08 3,118.90 3,638.72
LLANGYNHAFAL
1,479.16
19.01 1,498.17 998.78 1,165.24 1,331.71 1,498.17 1,831.10 2,164.02 2,496.95 2,996.34 3,495.73
LLANRHAEADR Y C
1,479.16
30.00 1,509.16 1,006.11 1,173.79 1,341.48 1,509.16 1,844.53 2,179.90 2,515.27 3,018.32 3,521.37
LLANTYSILIO
1,479.16
43.20 1,522.36 1,014.91 1,184.06 1,353.21 1,522.36 1,860.66 2,198.96 2,537.27 3,044.72 3,552.17
LLANYNYS
1,479.16
24.00 1,503.16 1,002.11 1,169.12 1,336.14 1,503.16 1,837.20 2,171.23 2,505.27 3,006.32 3,507.37
NANTGLYN
1,479.16
36.98 1,516.14 1,010.76 1,179.22 1,347.68 1,516.14 1,853.06 2,189.98 2,526.90 3,032.28 3,537.66
PRESTATYN
1,479.16
63.74 1,542.90 1,028.60 1,200.03 1,371.47 1,542.90 1,885.77 2,228.63 2,571.50 3,085.80 3,600.10
RHUDDLAN
1,479.16
98.88 1,578.04 1,052.03 1,227.36 1,402.70 1,578.04 1,928.72 2,279.39 2,630.07 3,156.08 3,682.09
RHYL
1,479.16
57.66 1,536.82 1,024.55 1,195.30 1,366.06 1,536.82 1,878.34 2,219.85 2,561.37 3,073.64 3,585.91
RUTHIN
1,479.16
63.52 1,542.68 1,028.45 1,199.86 1,371.27 1,542.68 1,885.50 2,228.32 2,571.13 3,085.36 3,599.59
ST ASAPH
1,479.16
72.10 1,551.26 1,034.17 1,206.54 1,378.90 1,551.26 1,895.98 2,240.71 2,585.43 3,102.52 3,619.61
TREFNANT
1,479.16
7.66 1,486.82 991.21 1,156.42 1,321.62 1,486.82 1,817.22 2,147.63 2,478.03 2,973.64 3,469.25
TREMEIRCHION
1,479.16
26.71 1,505.87 1,003.91 1,171.23 1,338.55 1,505.87 1,840.51 2,175.15 2,509.78 3,011.74 3,513.70

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix C

2022/23
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNCIL COUNCIL

Page 107

COUNTY COMMUNITY POLICE TOTAL BAND A BAND B BAND C BAND D BAND E BAND F BAND G BAND H BAND I
PRECEPT PRECEPT PRECEPT
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
ABERWHEELER
1,479.16
21.07
316.80 1,817.03 1,211.35 1,413.25 1,615.14 1,817.03 2,220.81 2,624.60 3,028.38 3,634.06 4,239.74
BETWS G G
1,479.16
19.95
316.80 1,815.91 1,210.61 1,412.37 1,614.14 1,815.91 2,219.45 2,622.98 3,026.52 3,631.82 4,237.12
BODELWYDDAN
1,479.16
47.62
316.80 1,843.58 1,229.05 1,433.90 1,638.74 1,843.58 2,253.26 2,662.95 3,072.63 3,687.16 4,301.69
BODFARI
1,479.16
35.07
316.80 1,831.03 1,220.69 1,424.13 1,627.58 1,831.03 2,237.93 2,644.82 3,051.72 3,662.06 4,272.40
BRYNEGLWYS
1,479.16
35.95
316.80 1,831.91 1,221.27 1,424.82 1,628.36 1,831.91 2,239.00 2,646.09 3,053.18 3,663.82 4,274.46
CEFN MEIRIADOG
1,479.16
32.00
316.80 1,827.96 1,218.64 1,421.75 1,624.85 1,827.96 2,234.17 2,640.39 3,046.60 3,655.92 4,265.24
CLOCAENOG
1,479.16
50.16
316.80 1,846.12 1,230.75 1,435.87 1,641.00 1,846.12 2,256.37 2,666.62 3,076.87 3,692.24 4,307.61
CORWEN
1,479.16
99.96
316.80 1,895.92 1,263.95 1,474.60 1,685.26 1,895.92 2,317.24 2,738.55 3,159.87 3,791.84 4,423.81
CYFYLLIOG
1,479.16
51.99
316.80 1,847.95 1,231.97 1,437.29 1,642.62 1,847.95 2,258.61 2,669.26 3,079.92 3,695.90 4,311.88
CYNWYD
1,479.16
17.62
316.80 1,813.58 1,209.05 1,410.56 1,612.07 1,813.58 2,216.60 2,619.62 3,022.63 3,627.16 4,231.69
DENBIGH
1,479.16
66.00
316.80 1,861.96 1,241.31 1,448.19 1,655.08 1,861.96 2,275.73 2,689.50 3,103.27 3,723.92 4,344.57
DERWEN
1,479.16
25.10
316.80 1,821.06 1,214.04 1,416.38 1,618.72 1,821.06 2,225.74 2,630.42 3,035.10 3,642.12 4,249.14
DYSERTH
1,479.16
41.24
316.80 1,837.20 1,224.80 1,428.93 1,633.07 1,837.20 2,245.47 2,653.73 3,062.00 3,674.40 4,286.80
EFENECHTYD
1,479.16
26.48
316.80 1,822.44 1,214.96 1,417.45 1,619.95 1,822.44 2,227.43 2,632.41 3,037.40 3,644.88 4,252.36
GWYDDELWERN
1,479.16
18.00
316.80 1,813.96 1,209.31 1,410.86 1,612.41 1,813.96 2,217.06 2,620.16 3,023.27 3,627.92 4,232.57
HENLLAN
1,479.16
42.00
316.80 1,837.96 1,225.31 1,429.52 1,633.74 1,837.96 2,246.40 2,654.83 3,063.27 3,675.92 4,288.57
LLANARMON YN IAL
1,479.16
37.71
316.80 1,833.67 1,222.45 1,426.19 1,629.93 1,833.67 2,241.15 2,648.63 3,056.12 3,667.34 4,278.56
LLANBEDR D C
1,479.16
40.00
316.80 1,835.96 1,223.97 1,427.97 1,631.96 1,835.96 2,243.95 2,651.94 3,059.93 3,671.92 4,283.91
LLANDEGLA
1,479.16
32.00
316.80 1,827.96 1,218.64 1,421.75 1,624.85 1,827.96 2,234.17 2,640.39 3,046.60 3,655.92 4,265.24
LLANDRILLO
1,479.16
20.35
316.80 1,816.31 1,210.87 1,412.69 1,614.50 1,816.31 2,219.93 2,623.56 3,027.18 3,632.62 4,238.06
LLANDYRNOG
1,479.16
21.92
316.80 1,817.88 1,211.92 1,413.91 1,615.89 1,817.88 2,221.85 2,625.83 3,029.80 3,635.76 4,241.72
LLANELIDAN
1,479.16
36.22
316.80 1,832.18 1,221.45 1,425.03 1,628.60 1,832.18 2,239.33 2,646.48 3,053.63 3,664.36 4,275.09
LLANFAIR DC
1,479.16
48.62
316.80 1,844.58 1,229.72 1,434.67 1,639.63 1,844.58 2,254.49 2,664.39 3,074.30 3,689.16 4,304.02
LLANFERRES
1,479.16
45.01
316.80 1,840.97 1,227.31 1,431.87 1,636.42 1,840.97 2,250.07 2,659.18 3,068.28 3,681.94 4,295.60
LLANGOLLEN TOWN
1,479.16
80.29
316.80 1,876.25 1,250.83 1,459.31 1,667.78 1,876.25 2,293.19 2,710.14 3,127.08 3,752.50 4,377.92
LLANGYNHAFAL
1,479.16
19.01
316.80 1,814.97 1,209.98 1,411.64 1,613.31 1,814.97 2,218.30 2,621.62 3,024.95 3,629.94 4,234.93
LLANRHAEADR Y C
1,479.16
30.00
316.80 1,825.96 1,217.31 1,420.19 1,623.08 1,825.96 2,231.73 2,637.50 3,043.27 3,651.92 4,260.57
LLANTYSILIO
1,479.16
43.20
316.80 1,839.16 1,226.11 1,430.46 1,634.81 1,839.16 2,247.86 2,656.56 3,065.27 3,678.32 4,291.37
LLANYNYS
1,479.16
24.00
316.80 1,819.96 1,213.31 1,415.52 1,617.74 1,819.96 2,224.40 2,628.83 3,033.27 3,639.92 4,246.57
NANTGLYN
1,479.16
36.98
316.80 1,832.94 1,221.96 1,425.62 1,629.28 1,832.94 2,240.26 2,647.58 3,054.90 3,665.88 4,276.86
PRESTATYN
1,479.16
63.74
316.80 1,859.70 1,239.80 1,446.43 1,653.07 1,859.70 2,272.97 2,686.23 3,099.50 3,719.40 4,339.30
RHUDDLAN
1,479.16
98.88
316.80 1,894.84 1,263.23 1,473.76 1,684.30 1,894.84 2,315.92 2,736.99 3,158.07 3,789.68 4,421.29
RHYL
1,479.16
57.66
316.80 1,853.62 1,235.75 1,441.70 1,647.66 1,853.62 2,265.54 2,677.45 3,089.37 3,707.24 4,325.11
RUTHIN
1,479.16
63.52
316.80 1,859.48 1,239.65 1,446.26 1,652.87 1,859.48 2,272.70 2,685.92 3,099.13 3,718.96 4,338.79
ST ASAPH
1,479.16
72.10
316.80 1,868.06 1,245.37 1,452.94 1,660.50 1,868.06 2,283.18 2,698.31 3,113.43 3,736.12 4,358.81
TREFNANT
1,479.16
7.66
316.80 1,803.62 1,202.41 1,402.82 1,603.22 1,803.62 2,204.42 2,605.23 3,006.03 3,607.24 4,208.45
TREMEIRCHION
1,479.16
26.71
316.80 1,822.67 1,215.11 1,417.63 1,620.15 1,822.67 2,227.71 2,632.75 3,037.78 3,645.34 4,252.90

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8

Report to

Council

Date of meeting

22 February 2022

Lead Member / Officer

Julian Thompson-Hill

Report author

Steve Gadd, Head of Finance and Property

Title

Capital Plan 2021/22 – 2024/25 and Recommendations of the
Strategic Investment Group

1. What is the report about?
The report updates members on the 2021/22 element of the Capital Plan. Also
attached are the recommendations of the Strategic Investment Group of Capital bids
recommended for inclusion in the Capital Plan.

2. What is the reason for making this report?
To provide members with an updated Capital Plan including an update on major
projects and the corporate plan. This report also includes the Capital Strategy Report
for 2022-23. This provides a high level, concise and comprehensive overview to
members of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury management
activity contribute to the provision of the Council’s services. The following Appendices
are included:


Appendix 1: Summary capital plan funding



Appendix 2: Summary capital plan by service



Appendix 3: Details of scheme estimates



Appendix 4: Major capital project updates



Appendix 5: Details of recommendations by Strategic Investment Group



Appendix 6: Capital Bids recommended for approval



Appendix 7: Capital Strategy Report

Page 109



Appendix 8 – 14: Wellbeing Impact Assessment Report for each project
considered by the Strategic Investment Group.

3. What are the Recommendations?
3.1 That Members note the latest position on the 2021/22 element of the Capital Plan and
the update on major projects.

3.2 Members support the recommendation of the Strategic Investment Group as detailed
in Appendix 5 and summarised in Appendix 6.

3.3

Members approve the 2022/23 Capital Plan.

3.4

Members approve the Capital Strategy Report for 2022/23 as detailed in Appendix 7.

4. Report details
4.1 Capital Expenditure 2021/22
The full Capital Plan was last reported to Council in February 2021. Monthly updates
are presented to Cabinet. The Estimated Capital Plan is now £41.16m. The plan has
been updated since being reported to Cabinet on 15 February 2022.
4.2 Major Projects
Appendix 4 provides an update on the following major projects:
 21st Century Schools Programme – Ysgol Llanfair
 21st Century Schools Programme – Rhos Street and Ysgol Pen Barras
 21st Century Schools Programme – Christ the Word, Rhyl
 Rhyl Queens Market Redevelopment
 New Waste Services Remodelling
 East Rhyl Coastal Defence
4.3 Corporate Plan
The current Corporate Plan set out our ambitious but deliverable priorities for the
five year period 2017-22. Some of these priorities have required significant capital
investment although the Council has not have to provide all of the funding itself.

Page 110

Grants from the Welsh Government have been utilised to help fund the planned
work to improve our schools and flood defences. We have also used income from
housing rent to help fund the new council Housing. Work is currently underway to
help develop the new Corporate Plan and it is expected that capital resources will
be required. A number of these are likely to be already included in the current
Capital Plan (e.g. Carbon Zero, 21 Century Schools, Highways etc.) but additional
resource requirements may be identified early in the term of the new Council and
will be considered as part of the usual budget and capital approval processes.
4.4 Capital Receipts
The Capital Plan is dependent for part of its funding on capital receipts generated by
the sale of Council assets. The table below shows those gross receipts achieved in
2021/22. In addition, a number of potential disposals are also currently in development.

Bodelwyddan Castle
Land at Meliden
Geufron Farm,Corwen
Land at Rhos Street,
Ruthin
Total

2021/22
£000
500
544
470
70
1,584

4.5 Prudential Indicators 2021/22
Each year the Council sets Prudential Indicators that determine prudent limits on its
borrowing. The Council’s outstanding debt is currently £241.3m. This is within the
Operational Boundary (£275m) and Authorised Limit (£280m) and is less than the
forecast Capital Financing Requirement (£293.2m). This means the Council is
adhering to the Prudential Code of Capital Finance and is not borrowing in excess of
its capital needs.
The ratio of financing costs to the net revenue stream for 2021/22 is 7.16%. This ratio
is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of existing and
proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue budget
required to meet borrowing costs.

Page 111

4.6 Recommendations of the Strategic Investment Group (SIG)
The Strategic Investment Group has reviewed capital bids and has made
recommendations for inclusion in the Capital Plan from 2022/23 onwards. These are
detailed in Appendix 5 and summarised in Appendix 6.

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate
Priorities?
Projects have been reviewed to ensure that they satisfy the Council’s corporate
objectives.

6.

What will it cost and how will it affect other services?

6.1 Cost Implications
It is necessary to ensure that the Capital Plan is fully funded as any cost overruns
above the total available funding have to be funded from revenue budgets.
6.2 Staffing/ICT/Accommodation Implications
Each new project is required to complete a Business Case form and any specific
implications are discussed at that stage.
6.3 Assessment of impact on Climate Change – Mitigation and Adaptation
New capital projects are subject to scrutiny by the Strategic Investment Group. Each
business case will show, where relevant carbon tonne emission pre and post project,
thus identifying whether the project is carbon emission positive, negative or neutral. In
addition, it is necessary to ensure new capital projects are future proof and able to
adapt to climate change.

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact
Assessment?
A full Impact Assessment has been completed for each capital bid reviewed by the
Strategic Investment Group. These are included within Appendices 8 to 15.

Page 112

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny
and others?
Projects are prepared and subsequently monitored in consultation with Heads of
Service. The figures used in the reports are based upon the latest estimates available.
All members have been informed of the bids, with all bids also available to view on
Mod.Gov.

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement
No project should commence without being fully funded against a robust project plan
and the project being discussed with the Strategic Investment Group.
Project Sponsors need to exercise tight control over their capital expenditure to
ensure that the projects remain within budgets.

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to
reduce them?
10.1 Possible risks would include schemes not progressing, loss of grant and disruptions to
services. The condition of assets would continue to deteriorate if investment is not
made, and this may lead to the loss of important services.

10.2 No capital project is without risk. However all schemes are reviewed by the Strategic
Investment Group and also subject to on-going monthly monitoring and reporting.

11. Power to make the decision
Local Authorities are required under section 151 of the Local Government Act (1972)
to make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs.

Page 113

This page is intentionally left blank

Denbighshire County Council - Capital Plan 2021/22 - 2024/25

APPENDIX 1

Position to end January 2022

Capital Expenditure

Total Estimated Payments - Other

2021/22

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

ORIGINAL

LATEST

LATEST

LATEST

LATEST

ESTIMATE

ESTIMATE

ESTIMATE

ESTIMATE

ESTIMATE

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

24,699

25,553

23,771

100

1,200
366

1,200

3,493
11,428

121

350

Total Estimated Payments - Major Projects:

Page 115
Capital Financing
External Funding
Receipts and Reserves
Prudential Borrowing
Unallocated Funding

Housing Improvement Grants
Rhyl, New 3-16 Catholic School
Ysgol Llanfair, New School
Ysgol Carreg Emlyn, New School
Highways Maintenance
East Rhyl Coastal Defence Scheme
Rhyl Waterfront and Waterpark
Rhyl Queens Market Redevelopment
Waste Service Remodelling

3,128
13,472

1,575
391
75
61
3,830
5,250
44
2,282
2,103

Contingency
Total

500
54,475

0
41,164

500
48,677

500
721

500
850

28,332
6,610
19,533
0

22,973
8,812
9,379
0

19,399
7,944
21,334
0

6,036
121
100
(5,536)

6,036
350
(5,536)

54,475

41,164

48,677

721

850

Total Capital Financing
Note: 2021-22 Original Estimate is the position as approved by Council on 23rd February 2021

2,960
8,150

4,710
3,575

This page is intentionally left blank

Denbighshire County Council - Capital Plan 2021/22 - 2024/25
Position to January 2022
HEAD OF SERVICE
CAPITAL PROGRAMME SUMMARY

Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services

APPENDIX 2
2021/22
Estimated
Programme

2022/23
Estimated
Programme

2023/24
Estimated
Programme

2024/25
Estimated
Programme

£000

£000

£000

£000

218

Head of Finance and Property

6,101

7,673

Head of Planning, Public Protection and Countryside Services

4,593

1,524

777

241

1,427

5,333

20,312

21,561

7,736

11,845

0
41,164

Head of Business Improvement and Modernisation

Page 117

Head of Community Support Services
Head of Highways, Facilities and Environmental Services
Head of Education and Childrens Services
Contingency
TOTAL HEAD OF SERVICE SUMMARY

121

100

350

500

500

500

48,677

721

850

This page is intentionally left blank

Denbighshire County Council - Capital Plan 2021/22 - 2024/25

APPENDIX 3

Position to January 2022

CAPITAL PROGRAMME
DETAILS OF SCHEMES

2021/22
Estimated
Programme

2022/23
Estimated
Programme

2023/24
Estimated
Programme

2024/25
Estimated
Programme

£000

£000

£000

£000

Page 119

Legal, HR and Democratic Services
Relocation of Coroners Accommodation, County Hall, Ruthin
Relocation of Registration Service to County Hall, Ruthin

81
137

Total Legal, HR and Democratic Services

218

0

58
266
11
799
81
69
68
10
62
4

173
400
70
2,199
160

Finance and Property
Agricultural Estates
Asbestos
Equalties
Property, Capital Maintenance Works - Block Allocation
Fire Risk Assessment Works - Public Buildings
Reduction in Carbon Emmissions from Council Assets
Demolition of building on former Rhos Street/Ysgol Penbarras school site
County Hall Improved Utilisation - Upgraded Building Management System
County Hall Improved Utilisation - Relocation of Y Bont
Corwen Pavilion Development
Gypsy and Traveller Site Accommodation - feasibility
Rhyl Waterfront Development - retentions
Rhyl, Queen's Building Redevelopment
West Rhyl Housing Improvement Programme
Former Costigans Building , Rhyl - Tech Hub (Retentions)
West Rhyl Regenration Area Ph 2 (3-23 Edward Henry Street)
Electric Vehicle Infrastructure - Public Charging Points
Energy Efficiency/Reduction at Ysgol Dinas Bran
Energy Efficiency/Reduction at Pavilion Theatre, Rhyl

44
2,282
152
22
932
55
249
90

0

8
15
20
3,493

100
320

121

0

Energy Efficiency/Reduction at County Hall, Ruthin
Corporate Fleet Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure
Land acquisition at Glan Elwy
Rhyl Leisure Centre - All Weather Pitch Replacement
Rhyl Pavilion Theatre - Refurbishment
Corwen Leisure Centre - Pool Hall & Changing Rooms Refurbishment

Page 120

204
492
111
9
17
14

300
400

Total Finance and Property

6,101

7,673

Planning, Public Protection and Countryside Services
Housing Improvement Grants
Renewals - Town Centre Development Fund
Housing Renewal Theme Project
Enable - 2020-21
27 - 29 High Street, Denbigh - Targeted Regeneration Investment grant to third party
Town Centres Covid Response - Grant Assistance
Traffic and Car Parks
Safer Routes in Communities
Local Transport Fund
Active Travel Fund
Local Sustainable Transport - Covid Response
Local Road Safety
Woodland Creation on land owned by the Council
Greengates - Tree Nursery

1,575
132
63
13
250
108
711
60
360
910
108
71
202
30

1,200

Total Planning, Public Protection and Countryside Services

4,593

Business Improvement and Modernisation
ICT Strategy Phase 2
Green Recovery Initiative - WLGA Grant 20-21
Business Development Grants (Final Payment)

15

121

0

1,524

0

0

700
74
3

241

100

350

Total Business Improvement and Modernisation

777

241

100

350

Community Support Services
Minor Adaptations, Community Equipment and Telecare

394

240

324

Integrated Care Fund - Various Initiatives
Adaptation of 17 Middle Land, Denbigh
Acquisition of Accommodation - Llys Awelon, Ruthin
Llys Awelon Extra Care Development Ph 2
Corwen Health, Social Care and Housing - Feasibility
Denbigh Health and Social Care - Feasibility
Acquisition of Extra Care Unit at Awel y Dyffryn, Middle Lane, Denbigh

97
165
430
101
25
215

4,993
100

Page 121

Total Community Support Services

1,427

5,333

Highways, Facilities and Environmental Services
Highways Maintenance
Highways Maintenance - Capital Displacement
Public Highways Refurbishment Grant 18-19 to 21-22
Bridges
Rights of Way
Rights of Way - Access Improvement Grant
Rhyl Harbour/Marine Lake - Works to revetments
Recovery from February 2020 Flooding
Street Lighting
Street Lighting - Sustainable LED Lighting (Salix)
Coastal Defence - Inspections and Essential Maintenance
Prestatyn Coastal Defence - Outline Business Case
Prestatyn Coastal Defence - Repairs to Open Stone Asphalt Revetment 2
Rhyl Central Coastal Defence - Outline Business Case
East Rhyl Coastal Defence Scheme
Flood Prevention Scheme - General
Natural Flood Management in Denbighshire
Urban Catchment Management in Prestatyn
Urban Catchment Management in Rhyl
Vehicles, Plant & Equipment
Electric Taxis Green Fleet Pilot
Botanical Gardens,Rhyl - New Accommodation
New Central Waste Depot, Denbigh
Remodelling Waste Service
All Wales Play Accessibility

2,437
528
943
1,397
134
78
20
53
41
185
330
1,125
4
2,198
5,250
285
1,000
130
110
1,000
285
245
59
2,103
9

4,710

403

3,575

445
1,000
11,428

0

0

Rhyl Green Infrastructure - Transforming Towns Funding
HRC Re-Use Shop, Rhyl
Denbighshire's Circular Economy 'Social Supermarket'
Denbighshire Textile Repair and Reuse Partnership
Total Highways, Facilities and Environmental Services

251
58
44
10

Page 122

20,312

21,561

Education and Children's Services
Schools Capital Maintenance Block Allocation
Schools Maintenance Grant - Welsh Government 2021-22
School Workplace Transport
Equalities
Ysgol Tir Morfa - Outdoor Play Area Improvements
Ysgol Emmanuel - Entrance Improvements
Welsh Language Centre at Ysgol Glan Clwyd, St Asaph (Retention)
Oaktree Centre - Expansion of 'Little Acorns' - WG Childcare Grant
Ysgol Twm o'r Nant - Relocate Cylch Bodawen to Ysgol Twm o'r Nant - WG Childcare Grant
Ysgol Dewi Sant - Relocation of 2 cylch groups - WG Childcare Grant
Ysgol Penmorfa, Extension to Flying Start Accommodation
21c Schools Band A - Ysgol Bro Dyfrdwy - New Area School (Final Retention)
21c Schools Band A - Rhos Street and Ysgol Penbarras - Additional school yard
21c Schools Band A - Ysgol Llanfair - New School (Final Retention)
21c Schools Band A - Ysgol Carreg Emlyn - New School (Final Retention)
21c Schools Band A - Rhyl, Christ the Word - New School
21c Schools Band B - Ysgol Bryn Collen/Gwernant
21c Schools Band B - Ysgol Pendref
21c Schools Band B - Ysgol Plas Brondyffryn
Rhyl Youth Centre - Refurbishment Works
Ysgol y Castell, Rhyl - Classroom Extension

3,493
1,799
100
45
10
83
23
331
40
66
394
33
164
75
61
391
99
122
371
36

7,505

Total Education and Children's Services

7,736

Contingency

0

0

11,845

0

0

500

500

500

856
59
82
100
817
750
1,072

100
504

Total Capital Plan Services

41,164

48,677

721

850

Page 123

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 4

- Major Capital Projects Update – January 2022

21st Century Schools Programme – Ysgol Llanfair
Total Budget
Expenditure to date
Estimated remaining spend in 21/22
Future Years estimated spend
Funding
Narrative:

£4.964m
£4.962m
£0.002m
£0.000m
WG £0.180m; DCC £4.784m

This scheme is within the Band A proposals for 21st Century Schools Programme. The
project has provided a new school building on a new site in Llanfair DC.
The swap in land whereby the Church in Wales St. Asaph Diocese will receive the footprint of
the land at the new school site and the Council will receive ownership of the land in Diocese
ownership at the former school site is still in progress. DCC Legal are currently reviewing the
former sites registered title before completing the land swap.
Once the former site is in the Council’s possession, it will be declared surplus by Education
and discussions on the future use for the former school site will commence.

Forecast In Year Expenditure 21/22

£0.075m

Page 125

21st Century Schools Programme – Glasdir
Total Budget

£11.714m

Expenditure to date

£11.668m

Estimated remaining spend in 21/22

£0.046m

Future Years estimated spend

£0.000m

Funding

DCC £3.066m; WG £8.648m

Narrative
This project has delivered a new shared school building site for Rhos Street School and
Ysgol Penbarras at Glasdir, Ruthin which has been used by the schools since April 2018.
The final account has now been settled.
The work to create an additional school yard for Rhos Street School started on the 21st of
June and was completed in August 2021 ready for the start of the autumn school term.
The costs of the works, is less than the pre tender estimate of £200k, and will be absorbed
from the overall allocation to the Ruthin projects in 2016 as part of Denbighshire’s
contribution to the 21st Century Schools Programme

Forecast In Year Expenditure 21/22

£0.164m

Page 126

21st Century Schools Programme – Rhyl, Christ the Word School
Total Budget

£23.440m

Expenditure to date

£23.081m

Estimated remaining spend in 21/22

£ 0.359m

Future Years estimated spend

£ 0.000m

Funding

WG £5.541m; DCC £17.899m

Narrative:
This scheme is within the Band A proposals for 21st Century Schools Programme.
We are continuing to work closely with the contractor on the remaining snags, further
works at the school are scheduled for the February half term.

The programme and budget continues to be monitored closely as the project comes to an
end.

Forecast In Year Expenditure 21/22

£0.391m

Page 127

Rhyl Queens Market Redevelopment
Total Budget

£10.921m

Expenditure to date

£6.521m

Estimated remaining spend in 21/22

£0.786m

Future Years estimated spend

£3.614m

Funding

WG £7.269m DCC Asbestos £0.252m. DCC
£3.400m

Narrative:
The removal of all asbestos and demolition is now complete, along with the remedial
works to the Queens Chambers building.
Wynne Construction are currently working up the detailed design aiming to get on site in
May 2022 assuming all approvals are in place.
There is currently a funding deficit and a report is on 15 February Cabinet agenda
requesting additional funding for the project to allow it to proceed as planned and deliver
the project and outputs within the grant funding deadlines.

.

Forecast In Year Expenditure 21/22

£2.282m

Page 128

Waste Service Remodelling
Total Budget

£16.362m

Expenditure to date

£4.593m

Estimated remaining spend in 21/22

£0.341m

Future Years estimated spend

£11.428m

Funding

WG £9.544m , DCC £6.818m

Narrative:
A number of work streams are being taken forward to include:


Development of a new single central waste transfer station depot on land adjacent
to the Colomendy Industrial Estate in Denbigh. The Phase 1 Enabling Works
Contract commenced on site on July 5th 2021 and is due to complete in March
2022. Phase 1 will be followed by a further Tender process to appoint a Contractor
to deliver Phase 2 works to complete the development of the new Depot by
spring/summer 2023 to support a subsequent roll out of the proposed new service
model in 2023.



Specification of the new fleet required to support the new model has been
completed following a number of trials / tests and routing of the new rounds with a
tender for the new fleet with the longest lead in times issued in December 2021 for
return in January 2022 to enable a subsequent award of contract to supply the new
fleet in time for manufacture and delivery of the new fleet leading up to the planned
new service roll out.

An Options Appraisal exercise on the detail of the new recycling container design has
been undertaken, with the new service model and supporting Containers presented to
Scrutiny in May 2021. A procurement exercise for the Containers to support the new
model will be undertaken in due course with a delivery schedule in time for roll out
associated with proposed service change. A number of mobilisation and communication
activities are ongoing to prepare for the service change and include developing the new
collection routes; planning for any staffing changes/requirements and ongoing
engagement and communication with stakeholders and residents.

Forecast In Year Expenditure 21/22

£2.103m

Page 129

East Rhyl Coastal Defence Scheme
Total Budget

£23.528m

Expenditure to date

£18.095m

Estimated remaining spend in 21/22

£1.858m

Future Years estimated spend

£3.575m

Funding

WG £20.000m; DCC £3.528m

Narrative:
The ongoing coastal defence scheme at East Rhyl will provide an improved standard of flood
protection for around 1650 properties.
Work on site continues to progress well and is on time and within budget. The new rock
revetment and sea defence wall is complete, along with three new beach accesses. Work on
building the new promenade is around 95% complete. Top soiling and landscaping works are
around 90% complete.

Forecast In Year Expenditure 21/22

£5.250m

Page 130

Appendix 5
Summary of Strategic Investment Group Recommendations
(Capital Plan 2022/23)
1.1 Report Details
1.1 The available funding for 2022/23 is shown below:
Source

Amount
£000

General Capital Grant
Un-hypothecated Supported Borrowing
Prudential Borrowing – Highways
Prudential Borrowing – One off funding
required to offset gap in capital grant
Unused contingency b/f
Total Funds Available 2022/23

2,082
3,021
4,000
2,966
500
12,569

1.2 The Capital Plan spends money on two types of project. Firstly there are one-off
projects such as a new school; the second type is a ‘block allocation’. These are ongoing programmes of work that stretch over several years (and may never be
complete) e.g. schools maintenance. Elements of this work may be paid for from
repair and maintenance budgets but a significant part is funded through the Capital
Plan.

Recommendations of the Strategic Investment Group
1.3

The Strategic Investment Group decided to invite bids in line with previously agreed
block allocations for services. Services were asked to provide a business case to
support their bids. However, the requirement for Heads of Service to present bids
to the Strategic Investment Group was waived.

1.4

Each bid was submitted with approval of the relevant Head of Service. The
proposed allocations are detailed in Appendix 6 and in summary are as follows:

Page 131



An allocation of £240k is recommended for Minor Adaptations, Community
Equipment and Telecare. This funding is targeted at enabling the elderly and
disabled to remain in their own homes.



It is proposed to allocate £1.2m in support of Private Sector Housing Assistance.
The funding will be used in the main on the provision of Disabled Facilities Grants.



Both the school and non-school capital maintenance bids include provision for
essential maintenance such as Asbestos Removal, Fire Risk Assessment Work,
Equalities etc. It is recommended that £3.743m be allocated to Schools Capital
Maintenance Works. It is also proposed to allocate £1.449m to non-schools capital
maintenance work. It is further recommended that the appropriate Heads of
Service determine the precise allocations to works required, in order of priority.
The full allocations proposed meet the highest priority works identified across the
schools and non-schools estate.



Council on 25 January 2022 approved £235k for Highways as part of the 2022/23
Investment in Priorities. This will allow £4.000m of capital expenditure.



In addition to this, it is proposed to allocate £710k block allocation for structural
and other repairs including highway maintenance, street lighting and bridges. Also
included within this recommendation is a further £403k for repairs to bridge
structures. This is the sixth year of a proposed ten year Highways Structure
Backlog Project.



An allocation of £324k is recommended to carry out road safety improvements.



The Strategic Investment Group recommends maintaining the allocation set aside
for any contingencies at £0.5m, in line with 2021/22.

Page 132

2022/23 Capital Bids - Proposed Block Allocations

Ref

Head of
Service

Project Name

APPENDIX 6
Capital Plan
Requirement P B Highways
2022/23
£000

G01

Minor Adaptations; Community Equipment,
Telecare

David
Soley/Ann
Lloyd

G02

Private Sector Housing Assistance

G03

G04

Council
Funds

TOTAL
2022/23

£000

£000

£000

Page 133

240

240

Emlyn
Jones

1,200

1,200

Schools Capital Maintenance Works

Steve Gadd

3,743

Non School Public Buildings Capital
Maintenance Works

Steve Gadd

1,449

Tony Ward

5,113

G05/G06/G07 Highways works

G08

£000

PB

Emlyn
Jones

Traffic Works

Capital Contingency

TOTALS

2,966

4,000

777

Brief Description

240 Minor Adaptations and Equipment

1,200 Housing Improvement Works to Private Sector Dwellings

3,743 Works to a range of work streams in schools.

1,449

1,449 Works to a range of work streams for Public Buildings

1,113

5,113 Improvements to roads and bridges. Coastal Protection

324

324

324 Road Safety Improvement Schemes.

500

500

500

5,603

12,569

12,569

4,000

2,966

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 7

Denbighshire County Council
Capital Strategy Report 2022/23 to 2024/25

Contents
1.

Introduction

2.

Capital Expenditure and Financing

3.

Treasury Management

4.

Revenue Budget Implications

5.

Knowledge and Skills

Page 135

Capital Strategy Report 2022/23 to 2024/25
1

Introduction

1.1

This capital strategy gives a high-level overview of how capital expenditure,
capital financing and treasury management activity contribute to the provision
of local public services along with an overview of how associated risk is
managed and the implications for future financial sustainability. It has been
written in an accessible style to enhance members’ understanding of these
sometimes technical areas.

2

Capital Expenditure and Financing

2.1

Capital expenditure is where the Council spends money on assets, such as
property or vehicles that will be used for more than one year. In local
government this includes spending on assets owned by other bodies, and loans
and grants to other bodies enabling them to buy assets.
In 2022/23, the Council is planning capital expenditure of £86.720m as
summarised below:
Table 1: Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Expenditure
Capital Expenditure

Council Fund
Estimated New Projects
HRA
Total

2021/22
Approved
£000
54,475
1,556
20,663
76,694

2021/22
Revised
£000
41,164
587
24,448
66,199

2022/23
Estimate
£000
48,677
15,220
22,823
86,720

2023/24
Estimate
£000
6,257
34,974
12,133
53,364

2024/25
Estimate
£000
6,386
22,963
13,755
43,104

2.2

For details of the capital projects please refer to Appendix 2-4 in the Capital
Plan report. These give details of the capital plan by service, scheme estimates
and major capital project updates. The estimated new projects includes projects
which are in the pipeline but have not been approved by Council such as the
Band B 21 c Schools project.

2.3

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a ring-fenced account which ensures
that council housing does not subsidise, or is itself subsidised, by other local
services. HRA capital expenditure is therefore recorded separately. Details of
the Housing Capital Budgets can be found in the Housing Rent Setting and
Housing Revenue and Capital Budgets Report to Cabinet on 18 January 2022.

2.4

Governance:
The Strategic Investment Group (SIG) provides an independent review of all
business case proposals for capital investment regardless of value and has
delegated authority to approve bids to the value of £1 million. It will also
recommend schemes to either Cabinet or the full Council if the value of the
Application is above £1m or if for other reasons, it is more appropriate for
Cabinet or the full Council to approve.

Page 136

2

Capital Strategy Report 2022/23 to 2024/25
Annually SIG invite bids from the Heads of Service and meet to review the bids
and recommend the proposed allocation of the funding to Cabinet and Council.
The recommendations for 2022/23 are included in Appendix 5 of the Capital
Plan Report.
A Summary of the Council’s Capital Plan is included in the monthly Finance
Report to Cabinet. It shows the approved Capital Plan against spend to date.
Also an update on the major projects is included in the overall Capital Plan.
2.5

All capital expenditure must be financed, either from external sources
(government grants and other contributions), the Council’s own resources
(revenue, reserves and capital receipts) or debt (borrowing, leasing). The
planned financing of the above expenditure is as follows:
Table 2: Capital Financing
Capital Financing

Council Fund
Capital Receipts
Grants & Contributions
Revenue Contributions &
Reserves
Supported Borrowing
Prudential Borrowing
Estimated New Projects
Grants & Contributions
Prudential Borrowing
Total
HRA
Capital Receipts
Grants & Contributions
Revenue Contributions &
Reserves
Prudential Borrowing
Total

2021/22
Approved
£000

2021/22
Revised
£000

2022/23
Estimate
£000

0
20,269
6,610

5,860
21,212
2,952

1,379
7,018
6,565

121
3,022
0

0
3,022
0

8,063
19,533
54,475

1,761
9,379
41,164

12,381
21,334
48,677

3,014
100
6,257

3,014
350
6,386

1,148
408
1,556
56,031

0
587
587
41,751

3,412
11,808
15,220
63,897

17,120
17,854
34,974
41,231

8,030
14,933
22,963
29,349

2,020
3,613
2,485

2,300
6,683
3,469

1,270
4,356
1,966

920
3,505
1,475

0
2,905
1,459

12,545
20,663

11,996
24,448

15,231
22,823

6,233
12,133

9,391
13,755

Page 137

2023/24
Estimate
£000

2024/25
Estimate
£000

3

Capital Strategy Report 2022/23 to 2024/25
2.6

Debt is only a temporary source of finance, since loans and leases must be
repaid, and this is therefore replaced over time by other financing, usually from
revenue which is known as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). Alternatively,
proceeds from selling capital assets (known as capital receipts) may be used
to replace debt finance. The Council’s full MRP statement is included within the
Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) 2022/23.

2.7

The Council’s cumulative outstanding amount of debt finance is measured by
the capital financing requirement (CFR). This increases with new debt-financed
capital expenditure and reduces with MRP and capital receipts used to replace
debt. The CFR is expected to increase by £49m during 2022/23. Based on the
above figures for expenditure and financing, the Council’s estimated CFR is as
follows:
Table 3: Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement
Capital Financing
Requirement
Council Fund
HRA
Total CFR

2.8

2021/22
Approved
£000
240,511
84,394
324,905

2021/22
Revised
£000
216,900
76,251
293,151

2022/23
Estimate
£000
254,051
88,083
342,134

2023/24
Estimate
£000
265,520
90,525
356,045

2024/25
Estimate
£000
275,136
95,950
371,086

Asset management: To ensure that capital assets continue to be of long-term
use, the Council has an asset management strategy in place. The Asset
Management Group (AMG) meets quarterly and its purpose is to provide
strategic direction for all matters relating to the effective use of Council owned
land and building assets within the County, including (but not exclusively):
Land and Property disposal
Land and property acquisition
Strategic property planning (including consideration of Asset Management
Plans)
Innovative land and property usage / utilisation.

2.9

Asset disposals: When a capital asset is no longer needed, it may be sold so
that the proceeds, known as capital receipts, can be spent on new assets or to
repay debt. The Council has received £1.584m of capital receipts to date in
2021/22 and has a programme of potential disposals which is reported to the
Asset Management Group.

Page 138

4

Capital Strategy Report 2022/23 to 2024/25
3

Treasury Management

3.1

Treasury management is concerned with keeping sufficient but not excessive
cash available to meet the Council’s spending needs, while managing the risks.
Surplus cash is invested until required, while a shortage of cash will be met by
borrowing, to avoid excessive credit balances or overdrafts in the bank current
account. The Council is typically cash rich in the short-term as revenue income
is received before it is spent, but cash poor in the long-term as capital
expenditure is incurred before being financed. The revenue cash surpluses are
offset against capital cash shortfalls to reduce overall borrowing.

3.2

Due to decisions taken in the past, the Council currently has £241.3m borrowing
at an average interest rate of 3.68% and £35.3m treasury investments at an
average rate of 0.14%.

3.3

Borrowing strategy: The Council’s main objectives when borrowing are to
achieve a low but certain cost of finance while retaining flexibility should plans
change in future. These objectives are often conflicting, and the Council
therefore seeks to strike a balance between cheap short-term loans (currently
available at around 0.5%) and long-term fixed rate loans where the future cost
is known but higher (currently 1.0 to 2.0%).
Projected levels of the Council’s total outstanding debt are shown below,
compared with the capital financing requirement (see above).
Table 4: Prudential Indicator: Gross Debt and the Capital Financing
Requirement
Capital Financing
Requirement
CFR
Debt

31/03/22
Approved
£000
324,905
279,705

31/03/22
Revised
£000
293,151
239,705

31/03/23
Estimate
£000
342,134
282,142

31/03/24
Estimate
£000
356,045
304,639

31/03/25
Estimate
£000
371,086
327,048

3.4

Statutory guidance is that debt should remain below the capital financing
requirement, except in the short-term. As can be seen from table 4, the Council
expects to comply with this in the medium term.

3.5

Affordable borrowing limit: The Council is legally obliged to set an affordable
borrowing limit (also termed the authorised limit for external debt) each year
and to keep it under review. In line with statutory guidance, a lower “operational
boundary” is also set as a warning level should debt approach the limit.

Page 139

5

Capital Strategy Report 2022/23 to 2024/25
Table 5: Prudential Indicators: Authorised Limit and Operational
Boundary for External Debt

Authorised Limit
Operational Boundary

2021/22
Approved
£000
300,000
295,000

2021/22
Revised
£000
280,000
275,000

2022/23
Estimate
£000
320,000
315,000

2023/24
Estimate
£000
340,000
335,000

2024/25
Estimate
£000
360,000
355,000

Further details on borrowing are included in the treasury management strategy.
3.6

Investment strategy: Treasury investments arise from receiving cash before
it is paid out again. Investments made for service reasons or for pure financial
gain are not generally considered to be part of treasury management.

3.7

The Council’s policy on treasury investments is to prioritise security and liquidity
over yield that is to focus on minimising risk rather than maximising returns.
Cash that is likely to be spent in the near term is invested securely, for example
with the government, other local authorities or selected high-quality banks, to
minimise the risk of loss.
Table 6: Treasury Management Investments

Investments

31/03/21
Actual
£000
18,900

31/03/22
Estimate
£000
20,000

31/03/23
Estimate
£000
20,000

31/03/24
Estimate
£000
20,000

31/03/25
Estimate
£000
20,000

Further details on treasury investments are included in the treasury
management strategy.
3.8

Governance: Decisions on treasury management investment and borrowing
are made daily and are therefore delegated to the Director of Finance and staff,
who must act in line with the treasury management strategy approved by
Council. Semi-annual reports on treasury management activity are presented
to the Corporate Governance Committee. The Corporate Governance
Committee is responsible for scrutinising treasury management decisions.

4

Revenue Budget Implications

4.1

Although capital expenditure is not charged directly to the revenue budget,
interest payable on loans and MRP are charged to revenue, offset by any
investment income receivable. The net annual charge is known as financing
costs; this is compared to the net revenue stream i.e. the amount funded from
Council Tax, business rates and general government grants.

Page 140

6

Capital Strategy Report 2022/23 to 2024/25
Table 7: Prudential Indicator: Proportion of Financing Costs to Net
Revenue Stream
Ratio of Financing
Costs to Net
Revenue Stream

2021/22
Approved
£000

2021/22
Revised
£000

2022/23
Estimate
£000

2023/24
Estimate
£000

2024/25
Estimate
£000

Financing Costs
Net Revenue Stream
Council Fund Ratio

15,246
216,818
7.03%

15,515
216,818
7.16%

16,695
233,693
7.14%

17,280
242,248
7.13%

17,865
249,016
7.17%

Financing Costs
Net Revenue Stream
HRA Ratio

6,498
16,743
38.81%

6,219
16,365
38.00%

6,631
17,235
38.47%

7,532
17,946
41.97%

8,444
19,114
44.18%

4.2

Sustainability: Due to the very long-term nature of capital expenditure and
financing, the revenue budget implications of expenditure incurred in the next
few years will extend for up to 50 years into the future. The Head of Finance
and Property / Section 151 Officer is satisfied that the proposed capital
programme is prudent, affordable and sustainable.

5

Knowledge and Skills

5.1

The Council’s approach to ensuring that the requisite knowledge and skills are
held and demonstrated when making capital, borrowing and investment
decisions is three fold.




Employment of professionally qualified and experienced staff with
responsibility for making decisions.
Continuous and extensive training for Council members to aid informed
decision making and effective scrutiny.
Employment of Treasury Management advisors, Arlingclose to provide
specialist advice in requisite areas.

Page 141

7

This page is intentionally left blank

Capital Bid for Minor Adaptations and
Equipment 2022 - 2023
10th January 2022
Equality Impact Assessment

Page 143

Capital Bid for Minor Adaptations and Equipment
Contact:

Jane Moore

Updated:

10.01.2022

1.

What type of proposal / decision is being assessed?

A strategic or service plan

2.

What is the purpose of this proposal / decision, and what
change (to staff or the community) will occur as a result of its
implementation?

To bid for Capital allocation for 2022/23:
To enable the continuation of the provision of minor adaptations up to the value of
£1,000
( Forecast requirement = £70,000)
To enable the continued purchase of expensive mechanical community equipment
such as easy-track hoists, used by disabled children and adults in Denbighshire
following assessment by Occupational Therapists.(forecast requirement = £60,000)
To fund the continued purchase of Telecare Equipment (forecast requirement =
£110,000)

3.

Does this proposal / decision require an equality impact
assessment? If no, please explain why.
Please note: if the proposal will have an impact on people (staff or the
community) then an equality impact assessment must be undertaken
No

4.

These services all provide assistance to disabled people of all
ages and an EQIA would only be necessary if the funding was
withdrawn and the service fully reviewed with the possibility of
the introduction of means testing.

Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any
engagement undertaken
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance)

It is well established from previous discussions between Councillors and the Older
People's Commissioner for Wales that minor adaptations are vitally important for
promoting independence. There is regular discussion with the 3rd Sector and we

Page 144
1

will continue to work closely with Care and Repair in the provision of the Minor
Adaptation Service. There are also evaluative mechanisms in place for citizens.

5.

Will this proposal / decision have a positive impact on any of
the protected characteristics (age; disability; genderreassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and
maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation)?
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected
characteristics)

Age and disability in particular but all assessments are person centred and would
take into account needs arising from other protected characteristics.

6.

Will this proposal / decision have a disproportionate negative
impact on any of the protected characteristics (age; disability;
gender-reassignment; marriage and civil partnership;
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and
sexual orientation)?

No

7.

Has the proposal / decision been amended to eliminate or
reduce any potential disproportionate negative impact? If no,
please explain why.
No

8.

Not applicable

Have you identified any further actions to address and / or
monitor any potential negative impact(s)?
No

Not applicable

Action(s)
<Please describe>
<Please describe>
<Please describe>
<Please describe>
<Unrestrict editing to insert additional rows>

Owner
<Enter Name>
<Enter Name>
<Enter Name>
<Enter Name>
<Enter Name>

By when?
<DD.MM.YY>
<DD.MM.YY>
<DD.MM.YY>
<DD.MM.YY>
<DD.MM.YY>

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------9.

Declaration

Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact
of the proposal / decision will be reviewed at the appropriate stage.

Page 145
2

Review Date:

10.01.2022

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment
Jane Moore

Date
10/01/2022

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact.

Page 146
3

Block capital bid for Housing Renewal
Wellbeing Impact Assessment Report
This report summarises the likely impact of a proposal on the social, economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.
Assessment Number:

179

Brief description:

Block capital bid for Housing Renewal

Date Completed:

Version: 0

Completed By:
Responsible Service:

Planning & Public Protection

Localities affected by the proposal:

Whole County,

Page 147

IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider how the
proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in a manner which seeks
to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet
their own needs."
Score for the sustainability of the approach
Could you do more to make your approach more sustainable?
(2 out of 4 stars)

Actual score: 15/ 24.
Summary of impact
Wellbeing Goals
A prosperous Denbighshire

Positive

A resilient Denbighshire

Positive

A healthier Denbighshire

Positive

A more equal Denbighshire

Positive

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities

Positive

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Neutral

A globally responsible Denbighshire

Neutral

Main conclusions

Page 148

THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE WORLD
A prosperous Denbighshire

Overall Impact:

Positive

Justification for Impact:

Projects are awarded to local contractors who in turn use locals sub-contractors and
local builders merchants. Resources are spent within the local community and local
employment. Opportunities for new local employment and training.

Positive consequences identified:
All work carried out in accordance with Building Regulations and where possible energy efficiency of existing
dwellings will be improved.
Local contractors are used to carry out the work. Local employment
Unintended negative consequences identified:

Mitigating actions:

Page 149

A resilient Denbighshire

Overall Impact:

Positive

Justification for Impact:

Some funding is provided to improve energy efficiency in dwellings and energy
conservation advice is provided to residents. Officer are able to provide Energy
Performance Reports to help residents better understand how to be more energy
efficient in and around the home and help to reduce fuel consumption and reduce
fuel costs.

Positive consequences identified:
Properties that receive energy conservation financial assistance will be more energy efficient and therefore lower
energy consumption and reduced energy usage
Energy conservation advice offered to householders together with signposting to potential financial support for
energy conservation measures
Unintended negative consequences identified:

Mitigating actions:

Page 150

A healthier Denbighshire

Overall Impact:

Positive

Justification for Impact:

Residents indoor environments are improved through being adapted to meet the
needs of the residents, The work promotes independent living and therefore
contributes to a healthier mental and physical life style

Positive consequences identified:
Adaptation of dwellings for the benefit of the disabled occupants will provide an environment to promote
independence. Provision of improved access to and from the dwelling and to and from the garden encourages a
healthier more active lifestyle.
Steps, paths and walls – trips hazards within homes are removed
Adaptation of dwellings for the benefit of the disabled occupants promotes independence in and around the
home which will have a positive impact on the emotional and mental well-being of the occupants
Unintended negative consequences identified:

Mitigating actions:

Page 151

A more equal Denbighshire

Overall Impact:

Positive

Justification for Impact:

Housing Renewal assistance helps to provide better quality of housing and living
conditions for people in greatest need. Projects enable vulnerable people to live as
independently as possible.

Positive consequences identified:
Financial assistance is prioritised to applicants with disabilities to adapt dwellings to assist the disabled occupants
to access facilities in and around the home
All applications for financial assistance are means tested and awards are based on applicants ability to pay.
Applicants are referred to 3rd sector for benefits checks where appropriate in order to maximise income.
Unintended negative consequences identified:

Mitigating actions:

Page 152

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities

Overall Impact:

Positive

Justification for Impact:

Improvements to the visual amenity of an area

Positive consequences identified:
Assistance is offered to make dwellings safe and secure to benefit the occupants. Assistance is also available to
elderly residents to help them maintain their dwellings and therefore to remain living independently in their own
homes for longer.
Assistance is provided to bring empty homes back into use. This can improve the visual amenity of an area and
can prevent further potential deterioration of the visual impact in the community
Unintended negative consequences identified:

Mitigating actions:

Page 153

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Overall Impact:

Neutral

Justification for Impact:

Impact on Welsh language is neutral however improvements in promoting the Welsh
language could be made through encouraging contractors to use bi-lingual signage,
company stationary and their websites etc

Positive consequences identified:
A number of officers within the team are Welsh speaking.
Unintended negative consequences identified:

Mitigating actions:

Page 154

A globally responsible Denbighshire

Overall Impact:

Neutral

Justification for Impact:

Advice and physical environmental improvements to properties and behaviours of
residents and a key element in delivering housing renewal projects

Positive consequences identified:
Local contractors and supply chains are used to deliver projects
Unintended negative consequences identified:

Mitigating actions:

Page 155

This page is intentionally left blank

Capital Investment - Essential
H&S Works to Buildings
2018/19
Wellbeing Impact Assessment Report
This report summarises the likely impact of a proposal on the social, economic, environmental and
cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.
Assessment Number:
Brief description:
Date Completed:
Completed by:
Responsible Service:
Localities affected by the
proposal:

341
Capital Investment for the building maintenance programme
2018/19 - Essential H&S works
01/12/2017 13:21:03 Version: 1
David Lorey
Facilities, Assets & Housing
Whole County,

Page 157

IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider
how the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach
Could some small changes in your thinking produce a better result?

(3 out of 4 stars)
Actual score : 17 / 24.

Summary of impact
Wellbeing Goals

A prosperous Denbighshire
A resilient Denbighshire
A healthier Denbighshire
A more equal Denbighshire
A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh
language
A globally responsible Denbighshire

Positive
Positive
Positive
Positive
Positive
Positive
Positive

Main conclusions
Council buildings that are safe, secure and energy efficient. The delivery of the programme of works
will protect Denbighshire County Council’s assets, workforce, school children and residents. Works
identified on the programme may also lead to savings in future maintenance and running costs.

Page 158

THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE
WORLD
A prosperous Denbighshire
Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for impact

The programme is fundamental to ensure the Council meets its
statutory obligations in terms of accommodation to deliver
services across the corporate spectrum. As an example, poor
maintenance of educational and leisure facilities etc. will impact
negatively on the delivery of statutory and non statutory
services which improve the prospects and wellbeing of DCC
residents and in some cases the commercial viability of
providing opportunities for growth within the public and private
sector.

Positive consequences identified:
The maintenance of building fabric and systems is essential in reducing heating & power needs.
Where possible, increased levels of insulation are incorporated into the proposed works and any
upgrading of heating and/or power systems incorporates more modern & efficient equipment and
controls.
The works programme will provide opportunities for the local contracting community and help deliver
wider community benefits such as training and employment opportunities created via the
procurement process. Local supply chains will be supported in terms of both specific materials and
labour and supporting local employment.
Opportunity for the local contracting community and help deliver wider community benefits such as
training and employment opportunities Improve and enhance the working environment for
employees including school teaching and support staff and also provide improved facilities for pupils
and customers of the Council. Investment in this programme will provide the local contracting
community with an opportunity to invest in their staff and offer training placement to the wider
community where applicable. Maintenance framework set up by Property will be utilised to deliver
elements of this programme. Reporting on KPI's is embedded into this framework and will be
regularly monitored to ensure the providers are delivering the committed community benefits which
include training, apprenticeships and up skilling their work force.
Maintenance framework set up by Property will be utilised to deliver elements of this programme.
Reporting on KPI's is embedded into this framework and will be regularly monitored to ensure the
providers are delivering the committed community benefits which include training, apprenticeships
and up skilling their work force. Improved educational facilities will help deliver the curriculum and
improve educational standards.
Maintaining the Council's property stock provides buildings which are suitable for a range of service
delivery requirements, including pre/after school clubs, youth centres, schools and leisure centres
which contribute to the education and wellbeing of children in controlled environments.

Unintended negative consequences identified:
Mitigating actions:

A resilient Denbighshire
Overall Impact
Justification for impact

Positive
The programme will ensure Council buildings comply with H&S
legislation and improve the energy efficiency of the building
Page 159
stock.

Positive consequences identified:
No impact foreseen on biodiversity, where individual projects are identified that may impact on the
biodiversity, consultation will be carried out with the Ecology Officer and an Ecologist may be
appointed to advise in such cases.
Larger project will require contractors to provide and comply with their waste management plan,
which sets out how they intend to deal with waste associated with a project.
Upgrading / improving the building services and fabric of our school stock will create more energy
efficient buildings and therefore lower carbon emissions

Unintended negative consequences identified:
Mitigating actions:
Where practical (i.e. following a cost benefit analysis) specify suitable energy efficient materials and
equipment. Contractors to provide details of their waste management procedures wherever
practical.

A healthier Denbighshire
Overall Impact
Justification for impact

Positive
Buildings that are compliant with H&E legislation and provide
safe and suitable working, learning, leisure and customer
environments.

Positive consequences identified:
Poor maintenance of educational and leisure facilities will impact negatively on the delivery of
statutory and non statutory services which improve the prospects and wellbeing of DCC residents.
Well maintained school kitchens provide healthy meals to children during school term.
Ensures well maintained and updated leisure provision via Leisure Centres, Youth Clubs, Libraries
and public realm.
Well maintained educational facilities contribute to learning opportunities including access to
educational and health care professionals
Maintaining office accommodation to provide potential space sharing opportunities with health
agencies etc.

Unintended negative consequences identified:
Mitigating actions:

A more equal Denbighshire
Overall Impact
Justification for impact

Positive
The work packages have potential to address physical shortfalls
in access to services for all.

Page 160

Positive consequences identified:
Larger improvement schemes will encompass accessibility improvements across all portfolios.

Unintended negative consequences identified:
Mitigating actions:

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for impact

Improvements to the internal and external fabric and
appearance of buildings and open spaces will ensure safe use
and improve the visual appearance of public areas.

Positive consequences identified:
The works will address identified H&S issues within the Council's building stock
Improvements to the external appearance of buildings and open spaces, including improving access,
will enhance the appearance of street scenes and public realm

Unintended negative consequences identified:
Mitigating actions:

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
Overall Impact
Justification for impact

Positive
Opportunities to communicate in Welsh and promote the
language via bilingual signs, public notices etc. are incorporated
into the contract tenders & awards.

Positive consequences identified:
Well maintained buildings enhance learning opportunities and interpretation opportunities. All
tendering of works includes opportunities to communicate via the medium of Welsh.
All site information boards etc. are bilingual. Welsh Language Standards are promoted through
contracts

Unintended negative consequences identified:
Mitigating actions:

A globally responsible Denbighshire
Overall Impact

Positive

Page 161

Justification for impact

Opportunities for local growth, reduced carbon emissions, more
attractive and safer buildings and open spaces are maximised
wherever possible and the nature of the works undertaken is to
maintain and improve service provision from the Council and
it's partner organisations.

Positive consequences identified:
Opportunities for the local contracting community and help deliver wider community benefits such as
training and employment opportunities. Where applicable, OJEU compliant tendering is undertaken

Unintended negative consequences identified:
Mitigating actions:

Page 162

Highways Block Allocation Bid
Well-being Impact Assessment Report
This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.
Assessment Number:
Brief description:

94
Funding to maintain / enhance bridges, flood defences, footways and
other public rights of way
02/11/2016 16:57:02 Version: 1
Tim Towers
Highways & Environmental Services

Date Completed:
Completed by:
Responsible Service:
Localities affected by
Whole County,
the proposal:
Who will be affected by All residents and road users in the County
the proposal?
Was this impact
assessment completed No
as a group?

Page 163

IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider
how the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach
( 3 out of 4 stars ) Actual score : 22 / 30.

Implications of the score
Summary of impact
Well-being Goals
A prosperous Denbighshire
A resilient Denbighshire
A healthier Denbighshire
A more equal Denbighshire
A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh
language
A globally responsible Denbighshire

Positive
Positive
Positive
Positive
Neutral
Neutral
Neutral

Main conclusions
Overall this outcome shows that targeted funding that both helps with general maintenance whilst at
the same time improving access for users will prove beneficial when measured against the desires of
the Act

Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment
We have consulted published research or guides that inform us about the likely impact of the
proposal
We have involved an expert / consulted a group who represent those who may affected by the
proposal
We have engaged with people who will be affected by the proposal

Page 164

THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE
WORLD
A prosperous Denbighshire
Overall Impact
Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Positive
This funding will be used to boost access opportunities for many

Positive impacts identified:
A low carbon society
Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport
Economic
development

This proposal includes the opportunity to improve disabled access in urban
areas and enhance access to the countryside for others
This proposal is specifically designed to improve the highway / PROW
infrastructure
Easier access to the countryside has been shown to boost tourism. Well
maintained bridges will stop roads from having restrictions on them

Quality skills for the
long term
Quality jobs for the
long term
Childcare

Negative impacts identified:
This proposal also includes a bid to fund bridge maintenance which could
A low carbon society make driving more desirable
Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport
Economic
development
Quality skills for the
long term
Quality jobs for the
long term
Childcare

A resilient Denbighshire
Overall Impact
Justification for
impact

Positive
On the whole this project is likely to have a slight positive impact

Page 165

Further actions
required

Positive impacts identified:
Biodiversity and the
natural environment
Biodiversity in the
built environment
Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling
Reduced energy/fuel
consumption
People’s awareness
Greater access to the countryside will enhance visitor's experience of the
of the environment
environment
and biodiversity
Flood risk
management

Negative impacts identified:
Biodiversity and the
natural environment
Biodiversity in the
built environment
Reducing waste,
Work to bridges will result in some minimal production of potentially
reusing and
hazardous waste material
recycling
Reduced energy/fuel
consumption
People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity
Flood risk
management

A healthier Denbighshire
Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

As far as possible this bid will enhance health

Positive impacts identified:

Page 166

A social and physical
environment that
The proposal will improve access for the disabled, walkers, cyclists and
encourage and
horse riders by giving improved access via dropped kerb crossing, better
support health and
bridleways and along the coast
well-being
Access to good
quality, healthy food
People’s emotional
and mental wellbeing

The proposal will improve access for the disabled, walkers, cyclists and
horse riders by giving improved access via dropped kerb crossing, better
bridleways and along the coast
The decision to target dropped kerb accesses at chemist shops, surgeries
Access to healthcare
etc., will aid access for all
The proposal will improve access for the disabled, walkers, cyclists and
Participation in
horse riders by giving improved access via dropped kerb crossing, better
leisure opportunities
bridleways and along the coast

Negative impacts identified:
A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being
Access to good
quality, healthy food
People’s emotional
and mental wellbeing
Access to healthcare
Participation in
leisure opportunities

A more equal Denbighshire
Overall Impact
Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Positive
as far as possible this proposal supports the desire to provide a more
equal Denbighshire

Positive impacts identified:

Page 167

Improving the wellbeing of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
Dropped kerbs and improved access to coastal facilities as well as the
reassignment;
countryside will prove beneficial to all
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation
People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage
Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes
People in poverty

Dropped kerbs and improved access to coastal facilities as well as the
countryside will prove beneficial to all

Negative impacts identified:
Improving the wellbeing of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation
People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage
Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes
People in poverty

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
Overall Impact

Neutral

Page 168

Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Positive impacts identified:
Safe communities
and individuals
Community
participation and
resilience
The attractiveness of
the area
Connected
communities

Negative impacts identified:
Safe communities
and individuals
Community
participation and
resilience
The attractiveness of
the area
Connected
communities

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
Overall Impact

Neutral

Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Positive impacts identified:
People using Welsh
Promoting the Welsh
language
Culture and heritage

Negative impacts identified:
People using Welsh

Page 169

Promoting the Welsh
language
Culture and heritage

A globally responsible Denbighshire
Overall Impact

Neutral

Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Positive impacts identified:
Local, national,
international supply
chains
Human rights
Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

Negative impacts identified:
Local, national,
international supply
chains
Human rights
Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

Page 170

Highway Capital programme
Well-being Impact Assessment Report
This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.
Assessment Number:
Brief description:
Date Completed:
Completed by:
Responsible Service:
Localities affected by
the proposal:
Who will be affected by
the proposal?
Was this impact
assessment completed
as a group?

90
Provision of highway maintenance and surfacing works
27/10/2016 14:40:04 Version: 1
Tim Towers
Highways & Environmental Services
Whole County,

No

Page 171

IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider
how the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach
( 3 out of 4 stars ) Actual score : 22 / 30.

Implications of the score
Summary of impact
Well-being Goals
A prosperous Denbighshire
A resilient Denbighshire
A healthier Denbighshire
A more equal Denbighshire
A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh
language
A globally responsible Denbighshire

Positive
Negative
Positive
Positive
Neutral
Neutral
Positive

Main conclusions
This proposal is basically offering a like for like outcome and therefore wouldn't be expected to add
significantly to the aims of the Wellbeing and Future Generations Act however it will also have very
little negative effect too

Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment
We have consulted published research or guides that inform us about the likely impact of the
proposal
We have involved an expert / consulted a group who represent those who may affected by the
proposal
We have engaged with people who will be affected by the proposal

Page 172

THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE
WORLD
A prosperous Denbighshire
Overall Impact
Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Positive
A good road network is vital to so many areas of everyday life
Other initiatives can be used to assist with walking / cycling

Positive impacts identified:
A low carbon society
Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

The whole purpose of the project is to boost this

Economic
development

A good quality road network has been proven to boost economic benefit

Quality skills for the
long term

A good local economy can create quality long term jobs

Quality jobs for the
long term
Childcare

A good local economy can create quality long term jobs

Negative impacts identified:
A low carbon society Better roads could make driving more desirable
Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport
Economic
development
Quality skills for the
long term
Quality jobs for the
long term
Childcare

A resilient Denbighshire
Overall Impact
Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Negative
By it's very nature the processes and end result of this work tend to be
detrimental to the environment
Where possible we will overlay existing roads or recycle material to
reduce waste
Page 173

Positive impacts identified:
Biodiversity and the
natural environment
Biodiversity in the
built environment
Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling
Reduced energy/fuel
consumption
People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity
Flood risk
management

As part of the normal maintenance we tend to clean and upgrade drainage
systems thus reducing risk

Negative impacts identified:
Biodiversity and the
natural environment
Biodiversity in the
built environment
Reducing waste,
reusing and
Highway maintenance produces often hazardous waste
recycling
Reduced energy/fuel The proposal is likely to sustain energy levels and may even increase
consumption
them
People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity
Flood risk
management

A healthier Denbighshire
Overall Impact
Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Positive
A good quality network encourages people to get out more and provides
for a safer environment

Positive impacts identified:
A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
This proposal would certainly provide a safer environment
support health and
well-being

Page 174

Access to good
quality, healthy food
People’s emotional
and mental wellbeing
Access to healthcare A good network aids movement
Participation in
A good quality network encourages cycling and walking due to a reduction
leisure opportunities in hazards such as potholes

Negative impacts identified:
A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being
Access to good
quality, healthy food
People’s emotional
and mental wellbeing
Access to healthcare
Participation in
leisure opportunities

A more equal Denbighshire
Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for
impact

A good quality road and footway network with adequate dropped kerbs
creates a better environment for all

Further actions
required

Positive impacts identified:
Improving the wellbeing of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
A good quality road and footway network with adequate dropped kerbs
reassignment;
creates a better environment for all
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

Page 175

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage
Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes
People in poverty

A good quality road and footway network with adequate dropped kerbs
creates a better environment for all

Negative impacts identified:
Improving the wellbeing of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation
People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage
Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes
People in poverty

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
Overall Impact

Neutral

Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Users and residents tend to take a good quality road for granted but don't
like poor ones

Positive impacts identified:
Safe communities
and individuals
Community
participation and
resilience

Page 176

The attractiveness of Good quality roads and footways are easier to clean and are aesthetically
the area
pleasing
Connected
communities

Negative impacts identified:
Safe communities
and individuals
Community
participation and
resilience
The attractiveness of
the area
Connected
communities

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
Overall Impact
Justification for
impact

Neutral

Further actions
required

Positive impacts identified:
People using Welsh
Promoting the Welsh
language
Culture and heritage

Negative impacts identified:
People using Welsh
Promoting the Welsh
language
Culture and heritage

A globally responsible Denbighshire
Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Positive impacts identified:

Page 177

Local, national,
international supply
chains
Human rights
Broader service
provision in the local The road network contributes to many service provision aims
area or the region

Negative impacts identified:
Local, national,
international supply
chains
Human rights
Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

Page 178

Investment in Highway
Bridges and Retaining Walls
Well-being Impact Assessment Report
This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.
Assessment Number:
Brief description:
Date Completed:
Completed by:
Responsible Service:
Localities affected by
the proposal:
Who will be affected by
the proposal?
Was this impact
assessment completed
as a group?

100
The desire to fund a backlog in bridge maintenance
04/11/2016 13:40:31 Version: 1
Tim Towers
Highways & Environmental Services
Whole County,
All road users in the County
No

Page 179

IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider
how the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach
( 3 out of 4 stars ) Actual score : 24 / 30.

Implications of the score
Summary of impact
Well-being Goals
A prosperous Denbighshire
A resilient Denbighshire
A healthier Denbighshire
A more equal Denbighshire
A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh
language
A globally responsible Denbighshire

Positive
Neutral
Positive
Positive
Positive
Neutral
Positive

Main conclusions
Although this work is intended to fulfil our Statutory Duty to provide a safe network it can also be
used to underpin the aims of the Wellbeing Act

Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment
We have consulted published research or guides that inform us about the likely impact of the
proposal
We have involved an expert / consulted a group who represent those who may affected by the
proposal
We have engaged with people who will be affected by the proposal

Page 180

THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE
WORLD
A prosperous Denbighshire
Overall Impact
Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Positive
For the reasons outlined above there is an overall benefit
Other initiatives can be used to assist with walking and cycling to combat
the potential negative effect on a low carbon society

Positive impacts identified:
A low carbon society
Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

The whole project is designed to boost this

Economic
development

A good quality road network has been proven to boost economic benefit

Quality skills for the
long term

A good local economy can create quality long term skils

Quality jobs for the
long term
Childcare

A good local economy can create quality, long term jobs

Negative impacts identified:
A low carbon society A better road network could make driving more desirable
Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport
Economic
development
Quality skills for the
long term
Quality jobs for the
long term
Childcare

A resilient Denbighshire
Overall Impact
Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Neutral

Page 181

Positive impacts identified:
Biodiversity and the
natural environment
Biodiversity in the
built environment
Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling
Reduced energy/fuel
consumption
People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity
Flood risk
management

As part of the normal maintenance we tend to clean out watercourses and
upgrade adjacent drainage systems thus reducing risk

Negative impacts identified:
Biodiversity and the
natural environment
Biodiversity in the
built environment
Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling
Reduced energy/fuel The proposal is likely to sustain energy levels and may even increase
consumption
them
People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity
Flood risk
management

A healthier Denbighshire
Overall Impact
Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Positive
A good quality network encourages people to get out more and provides
for a safer environment

Positive impacts identified:
A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
Open bridges allow greater access for walkers, cyclists etc.
support health and
well-being

Page 182

Access to good
quality, healthy food
People’s emotional
and mental wellbeing
Access to healthcare Open bridges allow greater access to all our facilities
Participation in
leisure opportunities Open bridges allow greater access for walkers, cyclists etc.

Negative impacts identified:
A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being
Access to good
quality, healthy food
People’s emotional
and mental wellbeing
Access to healthcare
Participation in
leisure opportunities

A more equal Denbighshire
Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for
impact

Where possible the maintenance work will incorporate improvements to
enable greater access

Further actions
required

Positive impacts identified:
Improving the wellbeing of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
Where possible the maintenance work will incorporate improvements to
reassignment;
enable greater access
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

Page 183

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage
Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes
People in poverty

Where possible the maintenance work will incorporate improvements to
enable greater access

Negative impacts identified:
Improving the wellbeing of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation
People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage
Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes
People in poverty

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
Overall Impact
Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Positive
Overall, even minor improvements can make a good positive difference

Positive impacts identified:
Safe communities
and individuals
Community
participation and
resilience

These works are designed to provide a safer environment for users

Page 184

The attractiveness of Many of these bridges are Listed Structures and so to enhance them will
the area
add to the attractiveness of the environment
Connected
communities

Negative impacts identified:
Safe communities
and individuals
Community
participation and
resilience
The attractiveness of
the area
Connected
communities

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
Overall Impact
Justification for
impact

Neutral

Further actions
required

Positive impacts identified:
People using Welsh
Promoting the Welsh
language
Culture and heritage

Negative impacts identified:
People using Welsh
Promoting the Welsh
language
Culture and heritage

A globally responsible Denbighshire
Overall Impact
Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Positive
The road network contributes to many service provision aims

Positive impacts identified:

Page 185

Local, national,
international supply
chains
Human rights

The road network contributes to many service provision aims

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

Negative impacts identified:
Local, national,
international supply
chains
Human rights
Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

Page 186

Traffic Block Capital 2022-23
Well-being Impact Assessment Report
This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.
Assessment Number:
Brief description:
Date Completed:
Completed by:
Responsible Service:
Localities affected by
the proposal:
Who will be affected by
the proposal?
Was this impact
assessment completed
as a group?

1007
Package of traffic and car parks projects included within the block bid
13/01/2022 21:59:21 Version: 1
Mike Jones
Planning & Public Protection
Whole County,
People with impaired vision or impaired mobility Pedestrians generally
Cyclists Residents Businesses Road users
Yes

Page 187

IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider
how the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach
( 3 out of 4 stars ) Actual score : 29 / 36.

Summary for each Sustainable Development principle

Long term

Prevention

Rhyl Central Promenade project is focused on encouraging walking and
cycling activity, whilst creating also creating a more attractive public
realm. Project will consider carbon footprint in selection of materials.
Traffic signal projects involved replacing existing halogen signal lamps
with LED equivalents which have lower power consumption and a a lower
whole life cost
LED lamps, consideration of whole life costs i.e. natural stone paving
favoured over use of concrete alternatives

Integration

More active travel journeys improves physical health and reduces vehicle
emissions where these journeys replace trips in vehicles fuelled by fossil
fuels.

Collaboration

Central Promenade project has involved numerous internal stakeholders.
Large scale public engagement is planned for later this year

Involvement

Large public engagement exercise planned for later this year

Summary of impact
Well-being Goals
A prosperous Denbighshire
A resilient Denbighshire
A healthier Denbighshire
A more equal Denbighshire
A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving
Welsh language
A globally responsible Denbighshire

Positive
Positive
Positive
Positive
Positive
Positive
Positive

Main conclusions
Lots of positive outcomes from the projects included in the package proposed for the Traffic Block
allocation - particularly from the Rhyl Central Promenade project.

Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment
We have consulted published research or guides that inform us about the likely impact of the
proposal
We have involved an expert / consulted a group who represent those who may affected by the
proposal
Page 188

We have engaged with people who will be affected by the proposal

Page 189

THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE
WORLD
A prosperous Denbighshire
Overall Impact
Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Positive
Carbon emissions reduction and economic benefits
Existing signals need replacing anyway so there is always going to be
some carbon emissions resulting from producing the new equipment

Positive impacts identified:
Central Promenade project promotes active travel
3 x Traffic signal projects will see traditional halogen lamps replaced with
A low carbon society LED meaning lower power consumption.
Preference for natural stone paving instead of concrete alternatives
Quality
communications,
Schemes involve enhancement to specific transport infrastructure
infrastructure and
transport
Rhyl Central Promenade project will encourage pedestrian movements
Economic
between the beach and town centre and make the central promenade
development
area a more attractive place to visit
Quality skills for the
long term

N/A

Quality jobs for the
long term
Childcare

N/A
N/A

Negative impacts identified:
A low carbon society Carbon produced in manufacture of new signals.
Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport
Economic
development
Quality skills for the
long term
Quality jobs for the
long term
Childcare

A resilient Denbighshire
Overall Impact
Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Positive
Reduced energy consumption, reduced catchment for surface water
running into drainage systems
Consider whole life costs in development of Central Promenade project.

Page 190

Positive impacts identified:
Biodiversity and the
N/A
natural environment
Biodiversity in the
Central Promenade project includes proposals for "dunescape"
built environment
landscaping. Ecology officer to be engaged in development of design.
Reducing waste,
reusing and
N/A
recycling
Reduced energy/fuel Reduced energy consumption due to use of LED lamps in 3 x traffic signal
consumption
installations
People’s awareness
of the environment
N/A
and biodiversity
Central Promenade project to include some rain garden features which in
Flood risk
combination with redesign will result in a net decrease in the amount of
management
impermeable surface in this location.
Negative impacts identified:
Biodiversity and the
natural environment
Biodiversity in the
built environment
Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling
Reduced energy/fuel Energy consumed in construction of projects and in the manufacture of
consumption
materials
People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity
Flood risk
management

A healthier Denbighshire
Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for
impact

Physical and mental health benefits of active travel. More attractive public
realm i.e. creates a nicer place to spend time in.

Further actions
required

Good engagement during design process

Positive impacts identified:
A social and physical
environment that
Central Promenade project promotes walking and cycling which has both
encourage and
physical and mental health benefits
support health and
well-being
Access to good
N/A
quality, healthy food
People’s emotional
More attractive public realm and encouragement of walking and cycling
and mental wellhas mental wellbeingPage
benefits
191
being

Access to healthcare N/A
Participation in
leisure opportunities Encourages active travel

Negative impacts identified:
A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being
Access to good
quality, healthy food
People’s emotional
and mental wellbeing
Access to healthcare
Participation in
leisure opportunities

A more equal Denbighshire
Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Improved physical accessibility and economic benefits of the Central
Promenade project
High quality public engagement exercise to ensure the local community is
effectively engaged with

Positive impacts identified:
Improving the wellbeing of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
Central Promenade project will reduce the amount of road width that
gender
needs to be crossed to walk or cycle between the town centre and
reassignment;
beach/promenade
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation
People who suffer
discrimination or
N/A
disadvantage
The Central Promenade project overlaps into West Rhyl which has wards
with some of the highest levels of deprivation in Wales. The project will
People affected by
have benefits to the local economy in terms of making the area of central
socio-economic
promenade more attractive to visit, and making the town centre more
disadvantage and
accessible from the national cycle network which passes along the
unequal outcomes
promenade and carries an estimated 400,000 walking and cycling
journeys every year.

Page 192

Areas affected by
socio-economic
disadvantage

See above comment

Negative impacts identified:
Improving the wellbeing of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation
People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage
People affected by
socio-economic
disadvantage and
unequal outcomes
Areas affected by
socio-economic
disadvantage

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
Overall Impact
Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Positive
Physical accessibility improvements. Comprehensive public engagement
High quality public engagement to ensure design is suitable.

Positive impacts identified:
Safe communities
Central Promenade project will improve road safety through reducing road
and individuals
widths
Community
participation and
Public engagement during design of Central Promenade project
resilience
The attractiveness of Central Promenade project will include significant improvements to the
quality of the public realm in terms of design and the specification of
the area
materials.
Connected
communities
Rural resilience

Central Promenade project will see better physical connections for walking
and cycling between the town centre and beach/promenade.
N/A

Negative impacts identified:

Page 193

Safe communities
and individuals
Community
participation and
resilience
The attractiveness of
the area
Connected
communities
Rural resilience

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
Overall Impact
Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Positive
Bilingual engagement. Bilingual traffic signage.
Ensure Welsh language standards are adhered to

Positive impacts identified:
Public engagement for Central Promenade project will include use of
People using Welsh bilingual materials. Welsh speaking officers will be made available during
drop-in sessions. People will be able to contact us in Welsh on the
telephone, by email or in writing.
Promoting the Welsh
All road signage will be bilingual Welsh above English
language
Culture and heritage N/A
Negative impacts identified:
People using Welsh
Promoting the Welsh
language
Culture and heritage

A globally responsible Denbighshire
Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for
impact

Using Sell2Wales for procurement. LED lamps. Active travel
improvements from Central Prom scheme.

Further actions
required

Need to comply with contract procedure rules.

Positive impacts identified:
Local, national,
Although all procurement must comply with procurement rules, will be
international supply opportunity for local contractors to bid as schemes are advertised on
chains
Sell2Wales
Human rights
N/A
Broader service
provision in the local N/A
area or the region

Page 194

Reducing climate
change

Traffic signal schemes using LED lamps
Central Promenade project promotes active travel

Negative impacts identified:
Local, national,
international supply
chains
Human rights
Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region
Reducing climate
change

Page 195

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9

Report to

Council

Date of meeting

22 February 2022

Lead Member / Officer

Julian Thompson Hill

Report author

Steve Gadd, Head of Finance & Property

Title

Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) 2022/23
and Prudential Indicators 2022/23 to 2024/25 (Appendix 1)

1

What is the report about?

1.1

The TMSS (Appendix 1) shows how the Council will manage its investments and its
borrowing for the coming year and sets the policies within which the TM function
operates.

2

What is the reason for making this report?

2.1

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Code of Practice on
Treasury Management (the “CIPFA TM Code”) requires the Council to approve the
TMSS and Prudential Indicators annually. A decision is required therefore to approve
the recommendations below.

3

What are the Recommendations?

3.1

That Council approves the TMSS for 2022/23 (Appendix 1).

3.2

That Council approves the setting of Prudential Indicators for 2022/23, 2023/24 and
2024/25 (Appendix 1 Annex A).

3.3

That Council approves the Minimum Revenue Provision Statement (Appendix 1
Section 6).

3.4

That Council confirms that it has read, understood and taken account of the Wellbeing Impact Assessment (Appendix 2) as part of its consideration.

Page 197

4

Report details
Background

4.1

TM involves looking after the Council’s cash which is a vital part of the Council’s work
because approximately £0.5bn passes through the Council’s bank account every
year.

4.2

At any one time, the Council normally has up to £20m in cash so it needs to make
sure that the best rate of return possible is achieved without putting the cash at risk
which is why money is invested with a number of financial institutions.
When investing, the Council’s priorities are to:
 keep money safe (security);
 make sure that the money comes back when it is needed (liquidity);
 make sure a decent rate of return is achieved (yield).
TMSS 2022/23

4.3

The TMSS for 2022/23 is set out in Appendix 1. This report includes TM Prudential
Indicators which set limits on the Council’s TM activity as shown in Appendix 1 Annex
A.
Capital Prudential Indicators

4.4

The Capital related Prudential Indicators have been excluded from the TMSS and
are now included in the Capital Strategy Report which is a new report introduced by
the 2017 edition of the Prudential Code. It is intended to give a high level, concise
and comprehensible overview to all elected members of how capital expenditure,
capital financing and treasury management activity contribute to the provision of the
Council’s services.

4.5

The Capital Strategy Report has been included with the Capital Plan report to Council
and includes the following Capital related Prudential Indicators:
Estimates of Capital Expenditure and Financing
Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream
Capital Financing Requirement

Page 198

Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt

5
5.1

How does the decision contribute to the Corporate
Priorities?
An efficient TM strategy allows the Council to minimise its borrowing costs and
release funding for its investment priorities.

6

What will it cost and how will it affect other services?

6.1

There are no additional cost implications arising as a result of the setting of Prudential
Indicators. The point of the TM Strategy is to obtain the best return within a properly
managed risk framework.

7

What are the main conclusions of the Wellbeing Impact
Assessment?

7.1

Financial planning and decision making should ensure that proper regard is given to
the requirements of the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act and in particular, proper
consideration of the long term impact of financial decisions, including the payback
period and whole life costs of capital investment decisions, properly impact assessed
budget proposals and long term debt and investment (treasury management)
strategies. The principles of prudence, affordability and sustainability are already
enshrined within the requirements of the Prudential Code and should underpin
financial planning and decision making.

7.2

In the context of treasury management, the existing requirements to assess and
report on the long term financial consequences of investment and borrowing
decisions using prudential indicators and long-term debt planning support the
sustainability goals of the Wellbeing Act.

7.3

The Wellbeing Impact Assessment report is included in Appendix 2 which shows how
an efficient Treasury Management strategy promotes the wellbeing goals of the Act.

8

What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny
and others?

8.1

The Strategy Statement was reviewed by the Governance and Audit Committee on
26 January 2022.

8.2

The Council has consulted with its TM consultants, Arlingclose Ltd.

Page 199

9

Chief Finance Officer Statement

9.1

TM involves looking after significant sums of cash so it is a vital part of the Council’s
work. It requires a sound strategy and appropriate controls to safeguard the Council’s
money, to ensure that reasonable returns on investments are achieved and that debt
is effectively and prudently managed.

9.2

It is a requirement of the CIPFA Code of Practice on TM for Council to approve a
TMSS each financial year.

10

What risks are there and is there anything we can do to
reduce them?

10.1

There are inherent risks involved in any TM activity as outlined in the Strategy
Statement. The Council has a risk management policy but it is impossible to eliminate
these risks completely.

11

Power to make the Decision

11.1

The Local Government Act 2003 determines the requirement for local authorities to
set Prudential Indicators and requires the Council to comply with the Prudential Code
of Capital Finance for Local Authorities that has been produced by the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).

Page 200

APPENDIX 1
Denbighshire County Council
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25

Contents
1.

Background

2.

Treasury Position

3.

Treasury Investment Strategy

4.

Borrowing Strategy

5.

Debt Rescheduling

6.

MRP Statement 2022/23

7.

Reporting Treasury Management Activity

8.

Other Items

Annexes
A.

Prudential Indicators

B.

Interest Rate Outlook

C.

Glossary

Page 201

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25
1

Background

1.1

The Council is responsible for its Treasury Management decisions and
activity which involves looking after the Council’s cash. This is a vital part of
the Council’s work because approximately £0.5bn passes through the
Council’s bank account every year.

1.2

The 2017 CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management requires the
Authority to approve a treasury management strategy statement (TMSS)
before the start of each financial year.

1.3

In December 2021, CIPFA published its revised Prudential Code and
Treasury Management Code of Practice. The accompanying guidance
notes, which include the Treasury Management Prudential Indicators, have
yet to be published. CIPFA will allow authorities to defer introducing the
revised reporting requirements until the 2023/24 financial year.

1.4

In addition, the Welsh Government (WG) issued revised Guidance on Local
Authority Investments in November 2019 that requires the Authority to
approve an investment strategy before the start of each financial year. It
also requires the Authority to include details of investments and loans which
are not held for Treasury Management purposes. Following a review, the
Authority has concluded that it doesn’t have any non-Treasury related
arrangements which fall within the scope of this guidance.

1.5

This report fulfils the Authority’s legal obligation under the Local
Government Act 2003 to have regard to both the CIPFA Code and the WG
Guidance.

1.6

The purpose of the TMSS is to set the:





Treasury Management Strategy for 2022/23
Annual Investment Strategy for 2022/23
Prudential Indicators for 2022/23, 2023/24 and 2024/25 (Annex A)
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement

2

Treasury Position

2.1

The levels of the Council’s borrowing and investment balances over the last
three years are shown in the graphs below. The first chart shows the
Council’s borrowing has increased over this period because the Council has
been borrowing to fund its capital plan either from the Public Works Loan
Board (PWLB) or on a temporary basis from other local authorities. The
second chart shows a corresponding increase in the amount of money
which is available for investment.

Page 202

1

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25

3

Treasury Investment Strategy

3.1

Both the CIPFA Code and the WG Guidance require the Authority to invest
its treasury funds prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity
of its investments before seeking the highest rate of return, or yield. The
Authority’s objective when investing money is to strike an appropriate
balance between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from
defaults and the risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income.

Page 203

2

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25
3.2

Given the increasing risk and very low returns from short-term unsecured
bank investments, the Council will continue to hold a minimal amount of
investments for short-term cash flow purposes and will continue to place a
far greater emphasis on investing with the UK Government’s Debt
Management Office and other local authorities in order to minimise these
risks.

3.3

The Authority may invest its surplus funds with any of the counterparty types
in table 1 below, subject to the cash limits (per counterparty) and the time
limits shown.
Table 1: Treasury Investment Counterparties and Limits

50 years

Counterparty
limit
Unlimited

25 years

£10m

25 years

£10m

Banks (unsecured) *

13 months

£5m

Building societies (unsecured) *
Registered providers
(unsecured) *
Money market funds *

13 months

£5m

5 years

£5m

n/a

£10m

Strategic pooled funds

n/a

£10m

Real estate investment trusts

n/a

£10m

5 years

£5m

Sector

Time limit

The UK Government
Local authorities & other
government entities
Secured investments *

Other investments *

* Minimum Credit Rating: Treasury investments in the sectors marked with
an asterisk will only be made with entities whose lowest published long-term
credit rating is no lower than A-. Where available, the credit rating relevant
to the specific investment or class of investment is used, otherwise the
counterparty credit rating is used. However, investment decisions are never
made solely based on credit ratings, and all other relevant factors including
external advice will be taken into account.
Government: Loans, bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by national
governments, regional and local authorities and multilateral development
banks. These investments are not subject to bail-in, and there is generally a
lower risk of insolvency, although they are not zero risk. Investments with
the UK Government are deemed to be zero credit risk due to its ability to
create additional currency and therefore may be made in unlimited amounts
for up to 50 years.

Page 204

3

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25
Secured investments: Investments secured on the borrower’s assets,
which limits the potential losses in the event of insolvency. The amount and
quality of the security will be a key factor in the investment decision.
Covered bonds and reverse repurchase agreements with banks and
building societies are exempt from bail-in. Where there is no investment
specific credit rating, but the collateral upon which the investment is secured
has a credit rating, the higher of the collateral credit rating and the
counterparty credit rating will be used. The combined secured and
unsecured investments with any one counterparty will not exceed the cash
limit for secured investments.
Banks and Building Societies (Unsecured): Accounts, deposits,
certificates of deposit and senior unsecured bonds with banks and building
societies, other than multilateral development banks. These investments
are subject to the risk of credit loss via a bail-in should the regulator
determine that the bank is failing or likely to fail.
Registered Providers (Unsecured): Loans and bonds issued by,
guaranteed by or secured on the assets of registered providers of social
housing and registered social landlords, formerly known as housing
associations. These bodies are regulated by the Regulator of Social
Housing (in England), the Scottish Housing Regulator, the Welsh
Government and the Department for Communities (in Northern Ireland). As
providers of public services, they retain the likelihood of receiving
government support if needed.
Money Market Funds: Pooled funds that offer same-day or short notice
liquidity and very low or no price volatility by investing in short-term money
markets. They have the advantage over bank accounts of providing wide
diversification of investment risks, coupled with the services of a
professional fund manager in return for a small fee.
Strategic Pooled Funds: Bond, equity and property funds that offer
enhanced returns over the longer term but are more volatile in the short
term. These allow the Authority to diversify into asset classes other than
cash without the need to own and manage the underlying investments.
Because these funds have no defined maturity date, but are available for
withdrawal after a notice period, their performance and continued suitability
in meeting the Authority’s investment objectives will be monitored regularly.
Real Estate Investment Trusts: Shares in companies that invest mainly in
real estate and pay the majority of their rental income to investors in a
similar manner to pooled property funds. As with property funds, REITs offer
enhanced returns over the longer term, but are more volatile especially as
the share price reflects changing demand for the shares as well as changes
in the value of the underlying properties.

Page 205

4

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25
Other investments: This category covers treasury investments not listed
above, for example unsecured corporate bonds and company loans. Nonbank companies cannot be bailed-in but can become insolvent placing the
Authority’s investment at risk.
3.4

Natwest is the Council’s banker and will continue to be used for operational
and liquidity purposes by transferring cash in and out of the instant access
account as required even if its credit rating falls below A-.

3.5

For a group of banks under the same ownership, the banking group limit is
equal to the individual bank limit.

3.6

Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the Authority’s treasury
advisers, who will notify changes in ratings as they occur. Where an entity
has its credit rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the approved
investment criteria then:
 no new investments will be made,
 any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will
be, and
 full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing
investments with the affected counterparty.

3.7

The Authority understands that credit ratings are good, but not perfect,
predictors of investment default. Full regard will therefore be given to other
available information on the credit quality of the organisations in which it
invests, including credit default swap prices (the cost of banks insuring
themselves against default), financial statements, information on potential
government support, reports in the quality financial press and analysis and
advice from the Council’s treasury management adviser. No investments
will be made with an organisation if there are substantive doubts about its
credit quality, even though it may otherwise meet the above criteria.

3.8

When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of
all organisations, as happened in 2008 and 2020, this is not generally
reflected in credit ratings, but can be seen in other market measures. In
these circumstances, the Authority will restrict its investments to those
organisations of higher credit quality and reduce the maximum duration of
its investments to maintain the required level of security. If these restrictions
mean that insufficient commercial organisations of high credit quality are
available to invest the Authority’s cash balances, then the surplus will be
deposited with the UK Government, via the Debt Management Office or
invested in government treasury bills for example, or with other local
authorities. This will cause investment returns to fall but will protect the
principal sum invested.

Page 206

5

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25
3.9

Specified Investments: The WG Guidance defines specified investments
as those:
•
•
•
•

denominated in pound sterling,
due to be repaid within 12 months of arrangement unless the
counterparty is a local authority,
not defined as capital expenditure by legislation, and
invested with one of:
o the UK Government,
o a UK local authority, parish council or community council, or
o a body or investment scheme of “high credit quality”.

The Authority defines “high credit quality” organisations as those having a
credit rating of A- or higher that are domiciled in the UK or a foreign country
with a sovereign rating of AA+ or higher.
3.10

Non-specified Investments: Any investment not meeting the definition of a
specified investment is classed as non-specified. The Authority does not
intend to make any investments denominated in foreign currencies. Nonspecified investments will therefore be limited to long-term investments, i.e.
those that are due to mature 12 months or longer from the date of
arrangement and investments with bodies and schemes not meeting the
definition of high credit quality. Under this category, the Council has given
three loans to Town Councils for capital purposes which are being paid
back in instalments over the agreed terms.
Limits on non-specified investments are shown in table 3 below.
Table 3: Non-Specified Investment Limits

Total long-term investments
Total investments without credit ratings or rated
below A- (except the UK government and UK local
authorities)
Total investments (except pooled funds) with
institutions domiciled in foreign countries rated
below AA+
Total non-specified investments

Cash limit
£10m
£10m

£10m
£30m

4

Borrowing Strategy

4.1

The Council has continued to undertake temporary borrowing from other
local authorities as required to cover short-term cash flow requirements as
this is a good source of readily available cash at historically low rates.

Page 207

6

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25
4.2

At the same time, the Council will also continue to monitor its cash position
and interest rate levels to ensure that further long term borrowing is
undertaken at the optimal time to fund on-going Capital commitments.

4.3

The approved sources of borrowing are listed below:








PWLB and any successor body
any institution approved for investments
any other bank or building society authorised to operate in the UK
any other UK public sector body
UK public and private sector pension funds (except Clwyd Pension
Fund)
capital market bond investors
UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc and other special purpose
companies created to enable local authority bond issues

5

Debt Rescheduling

5.1

The Council is able to pay off loans earlier than it has to and to replace
them with cheaper loans in order to save money or to reduce the risk to the
Council. Sometimes, these loans will be replaced and sometimes not,
depending on market conditions and interest rates.

5.2

The lower interest rate environment and changes in the rules regarding the
premature repayment of PWLB loans has adversely affected the scope to
undertake meaningful debt rescheduling although occasional opportunities
arise. A weekly update on this is received from the Council’s treasury
management advisers so the position is kept under review.

6

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement

6.1

The Council’s MRP policy was reviewed during 2017/18 to explore potential
savings options and the changes have been implemented from 2017/18.
The revised MRP policy was agreed by Council on 17 October 2017.

6.2

The Council sets aside money each year to repay debt and this is known as
the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).
There are four different methods of calculating MRP and the Council needs
to say each year which methods it will use. This is known as the MRP
Statement.

6.3

6.4

The MRP Statement is submitted to Council before the start of each
financial year. If the terms of the original MRP Statement are revised again
during the year, a revised statement will be put to Council at that time.

Page 208

7

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25
6.5 MRP Statement
The Council will apply the Asset Life Method to calculate MRP on
outstanding supported borrowing incurred up to 31 March 2017 using a
straight line calculation over 50 years. This represents a change from the
Regulatory Method which had been applied previously.
The Council will apply the Asset Life Method to calculate MRP on
supported borrowing incurred on or after 1 April 2017 using a straight line
calculation over an appropriate number of years, dependent on the period
of time that the capital expenditure is likely to generate benefits. This also
represents a change from the Regulatory Method which had been applied
previously.
The Council will apply the Asset Life Method to calculate MRP on all
capital expenditure funded from unsupported borrowing. This represents
a continuation of the previous policy.
6.6

MRP on housing assets funded through Prudential Borrowing is charged at
5% of the HRA’s CFR. MRP on all other items such as new builds are
charged at 2% of the HRA’s CFR.

7

Reporting Treasury Management Activity

7.1

The Section 151 Officer (Chief Finance Officer) will report to the
Governance and Audit Committee on treasury management activity /
performance as follows:
(a)

(b)
(c)

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential
Indicators will be submitted to the committee in January each year
prior to approval by Council.
Two treasury management updates will be submitted to the committee
in January and July each year.
An annual report on treasury activity will be submitted to the committee
in July each year for the preceding year prior to approval by Cabinet.

A treasury update showing the latest investment and borrowing position will
be included in the monthly Revenue Monitoring report and borrowing will
also be reported on in the Capital Plan to Council. The Capital Strategy
Report will also be reported to Council in February with the Capital Plan.
8

Other items

8.1

Investment Training

8.1.1 Member Training
The CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management requires the Section
151 Officer to ensure that all members tasked with treasury management

Page 209

8

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25
responsibilities, including scrutiny of the treasury management function,
understand fully their roles and responsibilities. The last Treasury
Management training session for members was given on 20 November
2019. Member training requirements will be reviewed as part of the
preparations for the new Council after the May elections.
The Council has nominated the Governance and Audit Committee as the
committee which has responsibility for scrutiny of the treasury management
function.
8.1.2 Staff Training
Staff attend training courses, seminars and conferences provided by
Arlingclose and CIPFA. There is a team of three members of staff who
cover TM duties on a rota basis to ensure that their knowledge is kept up to
date. These members of staff are also members of professional
accountancy bodies including the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Association of Accounting Technicians
(AAT). The operational processes which staff must follow are shown within
the Treasury Management Practices (TMPs) which have been updated
recently. Since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic, staff have been
accessing the Council’s TM systems through the Council’s remote access
system from home. The same processes are followed but a paperless
system is now used which involves maintaining the same documentation in
PDF format with electronic signatures.
8.2

Treasury Management Advisers
The Council uses Arlingclose Ltd as Treasury Management Advisers and
receives the following services:







Credit advice
Investment advice
Borrowing advice
Technical accounting advice
Economic & interest rate forecasts
Workshops and training events

The Council maintains the quality of the service with its advisers by holding
quarterly strategy meetings and tendering every 5 years. The strategy
meetings have been held on line since the beginning of the COVID-19
pandemic. Following a tendering exercise at the end of 2018, the contract
was renewed with Arlingclose from 01 January 2019 for three years with an
option to extend for a further two year period. The contract was reviewed at
the end of 2021 and extended for a further two year period as the Council
was satisfied with the service received.

Page 210

9

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25
8.3

Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MIFID)

8.3.1 The way that local authorities can access financial services changed in
January 2018 as a result of the second Markets in Financial Instruments
Directive (MIFID) from the EU. Under the new regulations, local authorities
can only continue to be classed as professional clients if they have at least
a £10m investment balance and staff with relevant experience. Local
authorities not meeting the criteria are reclassified as retail clients. Retail
clients have greater protection when placing investments because there is a
requirement for firms to ensure that investments are suitable for the client.
Professional clients are assumed to have greater knowledge and therefore
need less protection.
8.3.2 The Council is not in a position to be classed as a professional client
because it does not have an investment balance which is consistently
above £10m so it is classified as a retail client. In practice, this does not
have an impact on the Council’s treasury management activities which
consist of cash deposits or loans which are outside the scope of MIFID. The
Council’s investment advisers, Arlingclose, will continue to advise retail
clients as they have a retail adviser who is able to advise on any investment
products which come under the scope of MIFID such as shares and bonds.
8.4

Investment of Money Borrowed in Advance of Need
The Authority may, from time to time, borrow in advance of need, where this
is expected to provide the best long term value for money. Since amounts
borrowed will be invested until spent, the Authority is aware that it will be
exposed to the risk of loss of the borrowed sums, and the risk that
investment and borrowing interest rates may change in the intervening
period. These risks will be managed as part of the Authority’s overall
management of its treasury risks.
The total amount borrowed will not exceed the authorised borrowing limit.
The maximum period between borrowing and expenditure is expected to be
three years, although the Authority is not required to link particular loans
with particular items of expenditure.

8.5

Policy on Use of Financial Derivatives
In the absence of any explicit legal power to do so, the Authority will not use
standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps, forwards, futures and
options). Derivatives embedded into loans and investments, including
pooled funds and forward starting transactions, may be used, and the risks
that they present will be managed in line with the overall treasury risk
management strategy.

Page 211

10

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25
8.6

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
The Council operates one loans pool for the General Fund and the HRA. A
proportion of the Council’s investment and debt interest is apportioned to
the HRA at year end. The amount of HRA investment interest is calculated
by applying the Council’s average investment interest rate to the HRA’s
average notional cash balance.

Page 212

11

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25
ANNEX A
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2022/23 TO 2024/25
1

Upper Limits for Fixed Interest Rate Exposure and Variable Interest
Rate Exposure

1.1

These indicators allow the Council to manage the extent to which it is
exposed to changes in interest rates. This Council calculates these limits
on a net interest paid basis (i.e. interest paid on fixed rate debt net of
interest received on fixed rate investments).

1.2

The upper limit for variable rate exposure has been set to ensure that the
Council is not exposed to interest rate rises which could adversely impact
on the revenue budget. The limit allows for the use of variable rate debt to
offset exposure to changes in short-term rates on investments.
2021/22
Approved
%
Upper Limit for
Fixed Interest
Rate Exposure
Upper Limit for
Variable Rate
Exposure

2022/23
Estimate
%

2023/24
Estimate
%

2024/25
Estimate
%

100

100

100

100

40

40

40

40

1.3

The limits above provide the necessary flexibility within which decisions will
be made for drawing down new loans on a fixed or variable rate basis; the
decisions will ultimately be determined by expectations of anticipated
interest rate movements as set out in the Council’s treasury management
strategy.

2

Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate borrowing

2.1

This indicator highlights the existence of any large concentrations of fixed
rate debt needing to be replaced at times of uncertainty over interest rates
and is designed to protect against excessive exposures to interest rate
changes in any one period, in particular in the course of the next ten years.

2.2

It is calculated as the amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate
maturing in each period as a percentage of total projected borrowing that is
fixed rate. The maturity of borrowing is determined by reference to the
earliest date on which the lender can require payment.

Page 213

12

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25
Maturity structure of fixed rate
borrowing
under 12 months

Actual
%

Lower Limit
%

Upper Limit
%

3.61

0

30

12 months and within 24 months

3.58

0

30

24 months and within 5 years

10.11

0

30

5 years and within 10 years

14.15

0

30

10 years and above

68.55

50

100

3

Credit Risk

3.1

The Council considers security, liquidity and yield, in that order, when
making investment decisions.

3.2

Credit ratings remain an important element of assessing credit risk, but they
are not a sole feature in the Council’s assessment of counterparty credit
risk.

3.3

The Council also considers alternative assessments of credit strength, and
information on corporate developments of and market sentiment towards
counterparties. The following key tools are used to assess credit risk:
 Published credit ratings of the financial institution (minimum A- or
equivalent) and its sovereign (minimum AA+ or equivalent for nonUK sovereigns);
 Sovereign support mechanisms;
 Credit default swaps (where quoted);
 Share prices (where available);
 Economic fundamentals, such as a country’s net debt as a
percentage of its GDP;
 Corporate developments, news, articles, markets sentiment and
momentum;
 Subjective overlay.

3.4

The only indicators with prescriptive values are credit ratings. Other
indicators of creditworthiness are considered in relative rather than absolute
terms.

4

Upper Limit for total principal sums invested over 1 year

4.1

The purpose of this limit is to contain exposure to the possibility of loss that
may arise as a result of the Council having to seek early repayment of the
sums invested.
Upper Limit for total
principal sums
invested over 1 year

2021/22
Approved
£m
10.00

2022/23
Estimate
£m
10.00

Page 214

2023/24
Estimate
£m
10.00

2024/25
Estimate
£m
10.00

13

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25
ANNEX B
INTEREST RATES FORECAST
The graph below shows the interest rate forecast for the Official UK Bank Rate and
the 50 year GILT rate from March 2022 to May 2025. The Official Bank Rate
influences the rate at which the Council can invest. The GILT rate is the rate at
which the Government borrows money and therefore this affects the rate at which
the Council can borrow from the PWLB which is approximately 1% above GILT
rates.
As the graph shows, it’s much more expensive to borrow than to invest at the
moment with the Official UK Bank Rate expected to remain fairly constant over the
period. The graph illustrates that the difference between investment and borrowing
rates is approximately 1.5%.

_______

Official Bank Rate

-------

50-yr GILT Rate

Page 215

14

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25
ANNEX C
GLOSSARY - Useful guide to Treasury Management Terms and Acronyms
BANK OF ENGLAND

UK’s Central Bank

BANK RATE

Bank of England Interest Rate (also known as Base
Rate)

CPI

Consumer Price Index – a measure of the increase in
prices

RPI

Retail Price Index – a measure of the increase in prices

DMO

Debt Management Office – issuer of gilts on behalf of
HM Treasury

FSA

Financial Services Authority - the UK financial
watchdog

GDP

Gross Domestic Product – a measure of financial
output of the UK

LIBID

London Interbank Bid Rate - International rate that
banks lend to other banks

LIBOR

London Interbank Offer Rate – International rate that
banks borrow from other banks (the most widely used
benchmark or reference for short term interest rates)

PWLB

Public Works Loan Board – a Government department
that lends money to Public Sector Organisations

MPC

Monetary Policy Committee - the committee of the
Bank of England that sets the Bank Rate

LONG TERM RATES

More than 12 months duration

SHORT TERM RATES

Less than 12 months duration

BOND (GENERAL)

An investment in which an investor loans money to a
public or private company that borrows the funds for a
defined period of time at a fixed interest rate

GOVERNMENT BOND

A type of bond issued by a national government
generally with a promise to pay periodic interest
payments and to repay the face value on the maturity
date

Page 216

15

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25
CORPORATE BOND

A type of bond issued by a corporation to raise money
in order to expand its business

COVERED BOND

A corporate bond issued by a financial institution but
with an extra layer of protection for investors whereby
the investor has recourse to a pool of assets that
secures or “covers” the bond if the financial institution
becomes insolvent

GILT

A bond that is issued by the British government which
is classed as a low risk investment as the capital
investment is guaranteed by the government

REPO

A repurchase agreement involving the selling of a
security (usually bonds or gilts) with the agreement to
buy it back at a higher price at a specific future date
For the party selling the security (and agreeing to
repurchase it in the future) it is a REPO
For the party on the other end of the transaction e.g.
the local authority (buying the security and agreeing to
sell in the future) it is a reverse REPO

FTSE 100

Financial Times Stock Exchange 100 - An index
composed of the 100 largest companies listed on the
London Stock Exchange which provides a good
indication of the performance of major UK companies

Page 217

16

This page is intentionally left blank

Treasury Management
Strategy Statement 2022/23
Well-being Impact Assessment Report
This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.
Assessment Number:
Brief description:
Date Completed:
Completed by:
Responsible Service:
Localities affected by
the proposal:

148
The Treasury Management strategy for 2021/22
10/12/2021 09:23:41 Version: 20
Rhys Ifor Jones
Finance
Whole County,

Who will be affected by Proposals have little or no direct impact on the vast majority of
residents as the strategy involves managing the Council's investments
the proposal?
and borrowing.
Was this impact
assessment completed No
as a group?

Page 219

IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider
how the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach
( 2 out of 4 stars ) Actual score : 23 / 36.

Summary for each Sustainable Development principle
Long term
Prevention
Integration

The impact of this report is neutral in this particular area.
The impact of this report is neutral in this particular area.
The impact of this report is neutral in this particular area.

Collaboration

The impact of this report is neutral in this particular area.

Involvement

The impact of this report is neutral in this particular area.

Summary of impact
Well-being Goals
A prosperous Denbighshire
A resilient Denbighshire
A healthier Denbighshire
A more equal Denbighshire
A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving
Welsh language
A globally responsible Denbighshire

Positive
Positive
Neutral
Neutral
Neutral
Neutral
Neutral

Main conclusions
An effective Treasury Management strategy ensures that the Council's investment and borrowing
decisions will contribute towards the goal of maximising income and minimising costs which supports
efficient service delivery.

Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment
We have consulted published research or guides that inform us about the likely impact of the
proposal
We have involved an expert / consulted a group who represent those who may affected by the
proposal
We have engaged with people who will be affected by the proposal

Page 220

THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE
WORLD
A prosperous Denbighshire
Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for
impact

An effective Treasury Management strategy ensures that the Council's
investment and borrowing decisions will contribute towards the goal of
maximising income and minimising costs which supports efficient service
delivery.

Further actions
required

Sound financial planning and efficient long term treasury management
strategies ensure that the positive impact of this report on the County's
prosperity is maximised.

Positive impacts identified:
A low carbon society
Financial planning and decision making ensures that proper consideration
Quality
of the long term impact of financial decisions is given, including the
communications,
payback period and whole life costs of capital investment decisions,
infrastructure and
properly impact assessed budget proposals and long term debt and
transport
investment (treasury management) strategies.
The Treasury Management strategy and Prudential Indicators ensure that
Economic
the Council's cash is safeguarded as much as possible by making
development
investments in banks recommended in the annual strategy statement.
Quality skills for the
long term
Quality jobs for the
long term
Childcare

The strategy ensures that the Council's borrowing is monitored and is
within set limits and is affordable. It identifies current financing
requirements for the Capital Plan and estimates the proposed capital
requirements for the next three financial years.
Sound investment and borrowing decisions relating to the Council's cash
will maximise the Council's income within the guidelines set in the
Treasury Management strategy.
The Prudential Indicators are a statutory requirement which demonstrate
the affordability of our plans and contribute towards the overall financial
wellbeing of Denbighshire.

Negative impacts identified:
A low carbon society
Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport
Economic
development
Quality skills for the
long term
Quality jobs for the
long term
Childcare

A resilient Denbighshire
Overall Impact

Positive

Page 221

Justification for
impact

A sound Treasury Management strategy ensures that the Council's cash is
secure and new borrowing is affordable. It also enables the Council to
react quickly to market volatility by continual monitoring of the financial
institutions throughout the year.

Further actions
required

Good investment decisions will help the Council to develop more efficient
working practices which will use less resources which will help to
maximise the positive impact of this report on the County's resilience.

Positive impacts identified:
Biodiversity and the
natural environment
Biodiversity in the
built environment
Reducing waste,
Good investment decisions will help the Council to develop more efficient
reusing and
working practices which will use less resources.
recycling
Reduced energy/fuel The strategy is set at the start of the financial year but it is monitored
carefully throughout the year to ensure that the Council reacts quickly to
consumption
any market volatility and the impact on the banking institutions.
People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity
Flood risk
management

Negative impacts identified:
Biodiversity and the
natural environment
Biodiversity in the
built environment
Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling
Reduced energy/fuel
consumption
People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity
Flood risk
management

A healthier Denbighshire
Overall Impact
Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Neutral
Proposals have little or no direct impact on the vast majority of residents
as the strategy involves managing the Council's investments and
borrowing.
The impact of this report is neutral in this particular area so this is not
applicable.

Positive impacts identified:

Page 222

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being
Access to good
quality, healthy food
People’s emotional
and mental wellbeing
Access to healthcare
Participation in
The strategy contributes to the overall financial health of Denbighshire and
leisure opportunities therefore supports the delivery of the annual budget.

Negative impacts identified:
A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being
Access to good
quality, healthy food
People’s emotional
and mental wellbeing
Access to healthcare
Participation in
leisure opportunities

A more equal Denbighshire
Overall Impact
Justification for
impact

Neutral
A good treasury management strategy contributes to the overall financial
resilience of the Council and supports the on-going work of the Authority
without impacting on residents.

Further actions
required

The impact of this report is neutral in this particular area so this is not
applicable.

Positive impacts identified:

Page 223

Improving the wellbeing of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation
People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage
People affected by
socio-economic
disadvantage and
unequal outcomes
Areas affected by
socio-economic
disadvantage

An efficient treasury management strategy contributes to the financial
resilience of the Council and supports service delivery.

Negative impacts identified:
Improving the wellbeing of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation
People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage
People affected by
socio-economic
disadvantage and
unequal outcomes
Areas affected by
socio-economic
disadvantage

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities

Page 224

Overall Impact

Neutral

Justification for
impact

A good treasury management strategy contributes to the overall financial
resilience of the Council and supports the on-going work of the Authority
without impacting on residents.

Further actions
required

The impact of this report is neutral in this particular area so this is not
applicable.

Positive impacts identified:
Safe communities
and individuals
Community
participation and
resilience
The attractiveness of
the area
Connected
communities
Rural resilience
Negative impacts identified:
Safe communities
and individuals
Community
participation and
resilience
The attractiveness of
the area
Connected
communities
Rural resilience

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
Overall Impact

Neutral

Justification for
impact

A good treasury management strategy contributes to the overall financial
resilience of the Council and supports the on-going work of the Authority.
It has no direct impact on the language and the culture because any
treasury management decisions are based on the treasury strategy and
advice from financial consultants.

Further actions
required

The impact of this report is neutral in this particular area so this is not
applicable.

Positive impacts identified:
People using Welsh
Promoting the Welsh
language
Culture and heritage
Negative impacts identified:
People using Welsh

Page 225

Promoting the Welsh
language
Culture and heritage

A globally responsible Denbighshire
Overall Impact
Justification for
impact
Further actions
required

Neutral
A good treasury management strategy contributes to the overall financial
resilience of the Council and supports the on-going work of the Authority.
It has no direct impact on the local area.
The impact of this report is neutral in this particular area so this is not
applicable.

Positive impacts identified:
Local, national,
international supply
chains
All investments are undertaken from national institutions in line with the
strategy and financial advice. The strategy determines the institutions
Human rights
with the minimum credit rating which the Authority is permitted to invest
with.
Broader service
provision in the local All borrowing is undertaken from central Government as detailed in the
strategy and in line with other local authorities.
area or the region
Reducing climate
change

Negative impacts identified:
Local, national,
international supply
chains
Human rights
Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region
Reducing climate
change

Page 226

Agenda Item 10

Report to

Council

Date of meeting

22nd February 2022

Lead Member / Officer

Leader

Report author

Gary Williams, Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services

Title

Role of Diversity Champion

1. What is the report about?
1.1. The report is about the proposal to create the role of Diversity Champion.

2. What is the reason for making this report?
2.1. To seek Council’s approval regarding the creation of the role of Diversity
Champion and the role description set out in Appendix 1.

3. What are the Recommendations?
3.1. That Council approves the creation of the role of Diversity Champion in accordance
with the role description set out in Appendix 1.

4. Report details
4.1. In November 2012 Council determined that there should be four member
champions. These were:


Older People’s Champion



Homelessness Champion



Carers’ Champion



Learning Disabilities Champion

Page 227

4.2. On 7th December 2021 Council agreed that the role of Young Persons’
Champion be created and that this role could be occupied by any member of
the Council.
4.3. Also on the 7th December 2021 Council considered a motion calling for the
creation of a Diversity Champion. Council resolved that a report on the role of a
Diversity Champion be presented to Democratic Services Committee to define
the role and a further report to be presented to Full Council.
4.4. A role description has been drafted and is attached as Appendix 1 to this report.
The role description is drafted to follow the same form as the role descriptions
adopted for the current champions.
4.5. The Democratic Services Committee was asked, at its meeting on 28th January
2022 to consider the content of this draft role description, whether the role
should be carried out by the relevant Lead Member or a non-Cabinet member,
and to recommend to Council whether to adopt the role description as drafted
or as amended by the Committee.
4.6. The Democratic Services Committee agreed to recommend to Council that
there should be a role of Diversity Champion and that it could be carried out by
a non-Cabinet member. The Committee agreed the role description as set out in
Appendix 1.

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate
Priorities?
5.1. The Council’s Corporate Plan contains a commitment to engage, challenge and
where possible remove barriers to opportunities for those with protected
characteristics

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services?
6.1 There may be occasional travelling costs incurred if a member champion
attends meetings or events related to their champion role. These will be
contained within the existing budgets allocated for member travel.

Page 228

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact
Assessment?
7.1. An assessment is not required for this report.

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny
and others?
8.1. There has been no consultation with Scrutiny. The matter was referred to the
Democratic Services Committee directly by Council.

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement
9.1. The report confirms that any modest additional costs will be contained within
existing budgets allocated for member travel. There does not appear to be any
wider financial considerations.

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to
reduce them?
10.1. There is a risk that there is confusion or duplication arising out of the role of
member champion and the role of the relevant Lead Member if the champion is
not also the Lead Member. This can be mitigated by having a clear role
description and a good working relationship between the Lead Member and the
Champion.

11. Power to make the decision
11.1 s111 Local Government Act 1972

Page 229

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1
Denbighshire County Council
Role Description – Diversity Champion
Accountability
To the Full Council
Role, purpose and activities
1. To act as a strong strategic leader on raising and promoting diversity issues
2. To argue, support and defend the concerns, issues and needs of people with protected
characteristics in the Councils’ area.
3. To establish good working relationships with officers and others driving forward strategies, polices
and plans.
4. To gain an understanding of diversity and equality issues and the Council’s statutory obligations,
and where required to explain those duties.
5. To commit to attending nationally facilitated events (such as provided by the WLGA) and to
consider making your own regional, cross border and national links as are necessary.
6. To ensure that diversity and equality remain a priority in the Councils’ work. As a spokesperson to
keep issues at the forefront of debate; raising awareness amongst fellow elected members on issues
relating to diversity and equality and the implications of these for the Council.
7. To promote the involvement, participation and engagement of people from diverse backgrounds
in the planning and reviewing of all aspects of a local authority’s work, including service delivery and
policy development.
8. To consider and highlight the role of public, private and third sectors in bringing forward solutions.
9. To attend training and regular briefings.
10. To keep abreast of the evolving impact of national and legislative changes.
11. Where required, in conjunction with the relevant Lead Member (where appropriate) and the
Councils’ Communications team, to engage with the media.
12. To consider the role of other Champions and their impact on this role and whether to work
together where appropriate.
Person Specification
Within the Council
Understanding of the area of interest being championed in terms of council strategies and policy,
good practice, improvement and national agendas and the needs of the client group
Ability to engage with a range of members and officers around the area of interest and listening to
requirements
Ability to advocate on behalf of the area of interest within the council

Page 231

In the Community
Understanding of the needs of the community in relation to the interest
Ability to engage with citizens and community groups in matters related to the interest.
Ability to lead and support local initiatives related to the interest.
Ability to represent the position of the council to the community in relation to the interest.

Page 232

Agenda Item 11
Notice of Motion put forward by Councillor Brian Jones on behalf of the Welsh
Conservative Group for consideration by Full Council:

That Denbighshire County Council acknowledge that proposals for a large scale tidal
project off the coast of Denbighshire are being developed by the private sector.
That significant work is required to bring mature proposals before the council and that
the council would consider these detailed proposals in due course.
That the Council is supportive in principle to the development of a tidal energy project
off the Denbighshire Coastline.
Accordingly Denbighshire County Council resolve to:
1) Support in principle to the development of a large scale tidal energy project off the
Denbighshire Coast line.
2) That a group of DCC elected members, including the leader or nominated deputy,
and member of each MAG be set up to monitor evaluate and progress a NW tidal
lagoon and to lobby both governments to support the project.

Page 233

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12
Notice of Motion put forward by Councillor Ellie Chard on behalf of the Labour Group
for consideration by Full Council:
“On behalf of the Labour Group I am seeking financial support from Denbighshire
County Council to assist Ysgol Tir Morfa to build a hydrotherapy pool for the severely
disabled pupils. The school does not have enough money to complete the project and
every year the pool isn’t built is a year of lost learning for the most vulnerable young
people in society plus provision for the most disabled in Denbighshire is lacking”.

Page 235

This page is intentionally left blank

COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

Meeting

Item (Description / Title)

Purpose of Report

Council
Decision
Required
(yes/no)

Lead member and Contact
Officer

14 March 2022
SPECIAL COUNCIL
24 May 2022
ANNUAL COUNCIL

1

Appointment of Chair

Gary Williams

2

Appointment of Vice-Chair

Gary Williams

3

Election of Leader of the Council

To elect the Leader of the Council

Yes

Gary Williams

Page 237

5 July 2022

6 September 2022

11 October 2022

Agenda Item 13

6 December 2022

COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

FUTURE ITEMS
Real Living Wage Accreditation

Pay Policy 2022/2023

Report requested by Council to consider the
steps to becoming an accredited Real Living
Wage Employer
Report and Policy requiring agreement from
Full Council

Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill/ Catrin
Roberts / Sophie Vaughan
Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill /
Louise Dougal / Sophie Vaughan

Page 238

Note for Officers – Full Council Report Deadlines

Meeting
05.04.2022
06.09.2022
Updated 01/02/2022 SLW

Deadline
22.03.2022
23.08.2022

Meeting
24.05.2022
11.10.2022

Deadline

Meeting

Deadline

10.05.2022
27.09.2022

22.02.2022
05.07.2022
06.12.2022

08.02.2022
21.06.2022
22.11.2022

Council Briefing Forward Work Programme

Meeting

Item (Description / Title)

Purpose of Report

14 March 2022

1

Police & Crime Commissioner
Presentation
Update on the Waste Model

For the PCC Andrew Dunbobbin to give an
overview briefing to members.
To brief members.

Inclusion Service & Pupil Referral
Unit

To brief members of the roles the Inclusion
Service and PRU undertake on behalf of the
Council and wider partners.

2

Lead member and Contact
Officer

Cllr Brian Jones / Tony Ward

13 June 2022
7 November 2022

1

Page 239

Updated 19.1.2022 - SP
Council Briefing Forward Work Programme.doc

Geraint Davies / Nicola Roberts

This page is intentionally left blank

